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These annual financial statements have been prepared as required by the Companies Act, 71 of 2008 (as amended), and have been compiled by Ms

R Boonzaaier CA(SA), Senior Executive Manager: Group Finance, under supervision of Mr D de Klerk CA(SA), Group Chief Financial Officer.
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The audit report of PricewaterhouseCoopers Incorporated is presented on pages 14 to 20.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 September 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr RJ Khoza D de Klerk

Chairman Group Chief Financial Officer

COMPANY SECRETARY COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

FluidRock Co Sec (Pty) Ltd

Company Secretary

The annual financial statements presented on pages 21 to 102 have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the South

African Companies Act, 71 of 2008, and the Insurance Act, 18 of 2017, and comply with International Financial Reporting Standards

and guidelines issued by the Actuarial Society of South Africa. It include amounts based on judgements and estimates made by

management.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements. Based on cash forecasts, liquidity solvency and

capital assessments, the directors have no reason to believe that the company or any company within the Assupol Group (with the

exception of those companies that are in the process of being wound up) will not be a going concern in the foreseeable future. These

financial statements support the viability of the company and the Assupol Group.

The financial statements have been audited by the independent auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers Incorporated, who has been given

unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes of all meetings of shareholders, the Board and

committees of the Board. The directors believe that all the representations made to the independent auditor during its audit are valid

and appropriate. The directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records, which may be relied upon in

the preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial control.

In our capacity as Company Secretary, we hereby certify, in accordance with the provisions of section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act,

71 of 2008, that for the year ended 30 June 2022, the company has lodged with the Registrar of Companies all such returns and

notices as required of a public company in terms of this legislation, and that all such returns and notices are, to the best of our

knowledge and belief, true, correct and up to date.

The Board of Directors ('Board') takes responsibility for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the annual financial

statements of Assupol Holdings Limited ('Assupol Holdings' or the 'company') and its subsidiaries (collectively 'Assupol Group' or the

'Group').  The Board is also responsible for the accuracy and consistency of other information included in the financial statements.  

To enable the Board to meet these responsibilities the annual financial statements are prepared by management and opinions are

obtained from the external auditor and also from the Head of Actuarial Function ("HAF') of Assupol Life Limited regarding the statutory

solvency of that entity. The Board is also advised by the Audit Committee, comprising independent non-executive directors, and the

Actuarial Committee that meets regularly with the external auditor, the HAF and the management to ensure that adequate internal

controls are maintained and that the financial information complies with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') and

advisory practice notes issued by the Actuarial Society of South Africa. The internal auditor and external auditor as well as the HAF

have unrestricted access to these committees.
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The Audit Committee presents its report for the financial year ended 30 June 2022.

APPOINTMENT

-

-

-

TERMS OF REFERENCE

MEMBERSHIP, ATTENDANCE AND ASSESSMENT

Name of member Qualification Date appointed 2021/09/08 2021/09/15 2021/11/24 2022/02/24 2022/05/27

NB Duker October 2020 Chair Chair Chair Chair Chair

SIM Braudo June 2019 Member Member Member Member Member

MD Collier October 2020 Member Member Member Member Member

LJ Sennelo May 2021 Member - Member Member Member

The Prudential Authority granted Assupol Life exemption from establishing its own audit committee in terms of section 66 of the

Insurance Act, 18 of 2017, and section 7.3 of the Prudential Standard Governance and Operational Standards for Insurers (GOI 2),

subject to the following conditions:

The composition of the committee must at all times comply with the requirements of section 94(4) of the Companies Act, 2008,

and any deviation thereof will constitute non-compliance and the necessary regulatory actions will be taken against Assupol Life;

The committee must formally accept full responsibility and accountability for the functions of the audit committee as contemplated

in the Companies Act, 71 of 2008 and in GOI 2; and

The Prudential Authority, through the Board of Assupol Holdings, shall at all times have full access to the work of the committee

and any matters relating to Assupol Life and the committee shall avail itself to the Prudential Authority at all times to discuss

matters pertaining to Assupol Life.

B Com (Hons), 

CA(SA)

The Audit Committee is a statutory committee of the Board of Directors of Assupol Holdings, in terms of section 94(7) of the

Companies Act, 71 of 2008.  The members of the Audit Committee are appointed by the shareholders at the annual general meeting.

B Com (Hons), 

CA(SA)

Members of the committee satisfy the requirements to serve as members due to their non-executive and independent designation in

the governance structures of the Group, which are in compliance with the principles of the King Report on Corporate Governance for

South Africa (King IV).  In addition, the members have adequate knowledge and experience to carry out their duties.

Meetings and attendance

The committee held five meetings during the financial year. Details of the members as well as their role, qualifications and

attendance at meetings are indicated below:

The Audit Committee should meet at least twice a year as required in its terms of reference. The Group Chief Executive Officer,

Assupol Life Chief Executive Officer, Group Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk Officer, Group Legal and Compliance Officer, external

auditor, internal auditor, Head of Actuarial Control Function, and other assurance providers (actuarial, legal and compliance) attend

meetings by invitation only to provide the committee with greater insight into specific issues or areas of the Group. The chairman of

the committee has regular contact with the management team to discuss relevant matters directly over and above the closed

sessions at the interim and year-end reporting periods. The Group’s external and internal auditors have direct access to the

committee, over and above closed sessions without management at every meeting, on any matter that they regard as relevant to the

fulfilment of the committee’s responsibilities.

B Econ Sc, BSc 

(Hons), FIA, CFA

HND/BA Business 

Studies

The Board has approved the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. The committee has conducted its affairs in compliance with

these terms of reference.
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ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

External auditor appointment and independence

All decision letters and explanations issued by the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors in South Africa (IRBA) or any other

regulator, and any summaries relating to monitoring procedures or deficiencies (if applicable) issued by the audit firm to confirm the

suitability for appointment of the audit firm and the designated individual partner, Mr L Sihiya, were considered.

The Audit Committee’s role and responsibilities include statutory duties in terms of the Companies Act and additional responsibilities

assigned to it by the Board. The main objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities,

in particular with regard to evaluation of the adequacy and efficiency of accounting policies, internal controls and financial and

corporate reporting processes. In addition, the committee assesses the independence and effectiveness of the external auditors.

This report aims to provide details on how the Audit Committee has satisfied its various statutory obligations during the year, as well

as discuss some of those significant matters that arose during the year under review and how these have been responded to by the

committee in order to ensure the integrity of the Group’s financial reporting. 

A formal procedure governs the process whereby the auditor is considered for other non-audit related services. For the year ended

30 June 2022, the external auditor provided non-audit services to the Group. The committee affirms that these services did not impair

the external auditor's independence.

There were no reportable irregularities which were identified and reported by the external auditors in terms of the Auditing Profession

Act, 26 of 2005, of South Africa.

Assupol Holdings is considered a public interest company. In terms of the mandatory audit firm rotation rule implemented by the

Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors (IRBA), the current auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, will not be able to continue. The

committee has recommended the appointment of KPMG Incorporated to audit the financial year ending June 2023.

The committee is satisfied that the external auditor is independent in accordance with King IV, which includes consideration of

previous appointments of the auditor, the extent of non-audit work undertaken by the auditor for the Group and compliance with

criteria relating to independence or conflicts of interest as prescribed by the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors. The auditor

provided requisite assurance that internal governance processes within the audit firm support and demonstrate its claim to

independence.

The committee, in consultation with executive management, agreed to the engagement letter, including its terms and conditions, audit

plan and budgeted audit fees, for the 2022 financial year.

The committee understood and assessed the procedures performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers as detailed in their audit plan to the

committee and further confirmed in their final report to the committee. A review of the external auditors’ report on the year end audit

and the key audit matters was conducted by the committee (more detail is provided under “Financial statements and accounting

practices” below). The monitoring of the effectiveness of the external auditors in terms of their audit quality, expertise and

independence, as well as the content and execution of the audit plan was also performed by the Audit Committee. This included

reviewing the findings and recommendations of the external auditors and confirming that there were no unresolved matters.

The external auditor had direct and unrestricted access to the chairman of the Audit Committee. The committee is satisfied with the

quality of the external audit work that was performed. The factors considered were specifically the feedback from management as

well as the interaction between the committee and the external auditor.
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ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)

Financial statements and accounting practices

Material matter Manner addressed by the committee

Refer to notes 2.17.3, 3.1, 4, 5 and 28 to the financial statements.

Financial controls, actuarial controls and risk management

Going concern

Combined assurance

Valuation of policyholder assets

and liabilities under insurance

contracts 

The Group’s valuation methodologies and practices for the policyholder assets and

liabilities under insurance contracts are monitored and implemented by the Risk

Committee and the Actuarial Committee. Both these committees have reporting

responsibilities to the Audit Committee. The work performed by these committees

in this regard included:

The Group's combined assurance framework governs the combined assurance in the Group. The combined assurance strategy

entails risk identification, identification of controls, identification of assurance providers, planning, assurance activities, the assurance

result, corrective actions, as well as reporting. The combined assurance forum discuss overarching issues and co-ordinate

assurance activities. This forms the basis for the assurance plan which is tabled at the Audit Committee as well as the Risk

Committee for approval.

Based on processes and assurances obtained, the committee recommended the financial statements to the Board for approval.

The committee has reviewed the accounting policies and the interim and year-end financial statements of the Group with both

management and the external auditor and is satisfied that they are appropriate and comply with International Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRS). Accounting estimates and assumptions, accounting treatments, significant unusual transactions and key

accounting judgements which have the potential for significant adjustment of the overall financial statements are specifically listed in

note 3 to the annual financial statements. The committee has considered the appropriateness of key audit matters reported in the

external audit opinion contained on pages 14 to 20 in these annual financial statements and considered the significant audit matters

relating to the Group annual financial statements and how these were addressed by the committee.

The committee has reviewed documented assessments prepared by management and presented on a quarterly basis, on the going

concern status of the Assupol Group. Specific attention was placed by the committee on the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and

its aftermath. Management provided regular feedback to the Board of Directors and the committee on the volatility and uncertainty

that were experienced in the operating environment, the markets and economy.  

The Board of Directors' statement on the going concern status of the Assupol Group, as supported by the committee, is disclosed on

page 2.

- A detailed review of the fit and purpose of the valuation practices and

methodologies, with a specific focus on impact on COVID-19 on the Group’s

business and relevant scenarios from the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment

(ORSA).

- An impact assessment on the reported results, whilst also benchmarking to peers

and the industry at large, through independent guidance and feedback from the

Head of Actuarial Control Function and external auditors.

The committee also reviewed the accounting policies of the Group, with a particular

focus on the valuation requirements arising from IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and

IAS 39 Financial Instruments. 

Over the course of the financial year, management reported to the committees of

Risk, Actuarial and Audit on the valuation models and outcomes which formed the

basis of the quarterly management reporting as well as interim and year end

financial statements reporting. The processes, key areas of judgement and

outcomes were found to be appropriate. 

The committee reviewed a written assessment on the effectiveness of the design and implementation of internal financial controls,

actuarial controls, and risk management as considered through feedback from the Risk Committee. Nothing has come to the

committee’s attention that causes it to believe that the system of internal financial controls, actuarial controls, and risk management is

not effective, or has resulted in any material financial loss, fraud, corruption or error; or that the internal financial controls do not form

a sound basis for the preparation of reliable financial statements.
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ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)

Governance of risk and information technology

Internal audit

The committee approved internal audit’s annual audit plan for the 2022 financial year.

Evaluation of the expertise and experience of the Group Chief Financial Officer and the finance function

Integrated report

Regulatory and compliance matters

NB Duker

Chairman: Audit Committee

The committee forms an integral part of the risk management framework and the governance of information technology. The Board

of Directors specifically assigns oversight of the Group’s financial risk management function to the committee in respect of financial

reporting risks, internal financial controls, fraud and information technology risks relating to financial reporting, and compliance with

laws and regulations.

The committee fulfils an oversight role regarding the Group’s integrated report and the reporting process. The committee considered

the Group’s sustainability information as disclosed in the integrated report and has assessed its consistency with operational and

other information known to the Audit Committee members, and with the annual financial statements. 

On a quarterly basis, the committee received feedback from the chairman of the Risk Committee on matters pertaining to risk,

combined assurance and information technology.  No adverse matters were noted.

Ernst & Young confirmed, through a negative assurance statement, the strength of the internal control environment that supports the

reporting for the year under review. The committee befitting used this confirmation in concluding on the control environment and the

reported results.

The committee is responsible for ensuring that the Group’s internal audit function is independent and has the necessary resources,

standing and authority within the Group to enable it to discharge its duties. In addition, the committee oversees co-operation between

the internal and external auditors, and serves as a link between the Board and these functions.

The committee also assesses the performance of the internal auditor and the internal audit function, and is satisfied with the overall

effectiveness of the chief audit executive and the arrangements for the internal audit function.

The impact of pending regulatory and compliance matters that could affect the internal financial and other controls, financial

statements, or other matters relating to the roles and responsibilities of the committee is discussed at the meetings of the Audit

Committee.

The execution of the internal audit work was outsourced to Ernst & Young. The internal audit service provider reports directly to the

Audit Committee and is responsible for reviewing and providing assurance on the adequacy of the internal control environment. The

service provider reports the findings of the internal audit work to the committee on a regular basis and has direct unrestricted access

to the committee, primarily through its chairman.

21 September 2022

The committee is satisfied that the Group Chief Financial Officer has appropriate expertise and experience. Furthermore, the

committee has considered and satisfied itself of the appropriateness of the expertise and adequacy of resources of the finance

function, and experience of the senior members of management responsible for this function. In making these assessments, the

committee has obtained feedback from both internal and external audit.
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NATURE OF BUSINESS

CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

Update on the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic

Distribution channels

Cash back and loyalty benefits to clients

Corporate social investment

International Financial Reporting Standard 17: Insurance contracts

The devastating impact that the COVID-19 pandemic had in South Africa since March 2020 seems to have diminished substantially

since the start of the 2022 calendar year, with restrictions experienced by the sales teams and other operating activities largely being

eased and the business environment improving.

Direct Marketing: The Group reassessed the structure of this distribution channel with the aim to improve new business quality as well

as improving operational efficiencies. A decision was taken to restructure the operations of the channel through the in-sourcing of the

call center capability which impacted new business generation. However, early indications from these actions have seen a realization

of the intended benefits of the restructure.

The Group continues with the implementation of this accounting standard that will become effective in Assupol's financial year ending

June 2024. The implementation is currently on track with the project plan being closely monitored by the Board of Directors through

the Audit Committee and Group Executive Committee. For more information regarding the governance and progress of the project,

refer to note 2.1.1 to the financial statements.

During the third wave, that peaked during the first quarter of the financial year, Assupol has experienced excess death claims to the

value of R181m, which have largely been funded out of COVID-19 reserves set up in the previous financial year. The Group had an

insignificant number of excess death claims during the fourth wave that occurred during the third quarter of the financial year. 

An amount of R286.3 million worth of cash back and loyalty benefits were paid to the Group's clients during the financial year. This is

an increase of 98.9% compared to the previous financial year.

During the financial year, the Group contributed to South Africa's social development agenda by upgrading the ablution facilities of

rural schools to an amount of R10.0 million.

The longer term outlook for the pandemic remains uncertain. The Group has set up a reserve for its individual and group business

channels to provide for the impact of possible future excess deaths. The after-tax value of the reserve was R126.4 million at the end

of the financial year.  This is continuously being monitored by the Board and more specifically the Actuarial Committee.

The Board is pleased to present the audited financial statements of Assupol Holdings and its subsidiaries for the year ended 30 June

2022. The Board is of the opinion that the Group is in compliance with the South African Companies Act, 71 of 2008, as well as the

company's Memorandum of Incorporation.

Assupol Holdings is incorporated in South Africa and acts as the ultimate holding company of the Assupol Group. During the year

under review the Group continued to provide a range of financial services to its chosen markets. For more detailed information

regarding the nature of business of each subsidiary, refer to note 39 to the financial statements.

Cornerstone: The positive experience of the previous financial year continued during the financial year ended June 2022.

The performance of the various distribution channels in Assupol Life varied. Those that had a significant impact on the results are

discussed below: 

Single premium business: The sales in this distribution channel were significantly higher than the previous financial year. This

increase was supported by rising interest rates; enhancing the relative attractiveness of the offering.

The shares of Assupol Holdings are listed on the Cape Town Stock Exchange ('CTSE'). The directors are aware of their

responsibilities in terms of the CTSE Listings Requirements and are not aware of any non-compliance with the listing requirements.
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GROUP RESULTS

The key financial performance statistics for the Assupol Group for the year under review are set out below:

Earnings performance 2022 2021 % change

Gross insurance premium revenue (R'm) 4 714            4 359           8.14%

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (R'm) 615               353              74.22%

Value of new business (R'm) 258               394              -34.57%

Return on equity (%) 13% 8% 4.89%

The adjusted operating profit is a metric that reflects management's view of the underlying long-term profitability of the Group.

R'm 2022 2021 % change

Profit for the year 615               352              74.72%

Adjustment on investment returns on shareholders funds (9)                  (43)               -79.07%

Non-recurring transactions 26                 257              -89.88%

Non-recurring economic assumption adjustments 143               (20)               -815.00%

Other non-recurring actuarial adjustments (10)                201              -104.98%

Adjusted operating profit 765               747              2.41%

The adjusted operating profit is calculated by adjusting the reported profit to exclude the impact of short-term market fluctuations on

the investment returns of shareholders funds, as well as non-recurring transactions or events such as the discontinuation of a

business relationship, non-recurring actuarial adjustments and non-core transactions. The calculation does not consider the

economic impact of actuarial adjustments on new business during a financial period.

Details of the Assupol Group's financial performance are set out in the financial statements and notes thereto on pages 21 to 102.

When a transaction, that was initially perceived to be a non-recurring event, continues to occur in subsequent financial years, the

transaction is reassessed to determine whether or not it should have been included in the adjusted operating profit at all. The non-

recurring transactions calculated in the previous financial year were reassessed as more information and certainty regarding the

impact of the pandemic became available. The previously reported 2021 adjusted operating profit of R799 million was adjusted lower

by R52 million to R747 million. 

- The withdrawal and not-taken-up assumptions were updated in accordance to the most recent withdrawal experience investigation,

with an improvement in longer term durations having the largest impact.  This detracted R136.0 million from net profit.

The adjustments that were made in the non-recurring transactions of the 2021 financial year are COVID-19 related expenses. The

duration of the impact of the pandemic was longer than initially anticipated and as a result the Group no longer regard these

transactions to be short-term or non-recurring in nature. 

The Group's life insurer is in a financially sound position and held, at the end of the financial year, eligible own funds exceeding the

solvency capital requirement with a cover of 1.78.

- The investment return assumptions for both the unit and non-unit reserves were increased, as well as the inflation assumption,

reducing profits by R233.7 million (2021: -R96.4 million).

- The unused portion of the COVID-19 reserve that was set up in the previous financial year was released (R45.0 million after tax). A

reserve for excess deaths amounting to R126.4 million was created for individual and group business.

With the business and sales environment slowly returning to normal, new business generation, with the exception of the Direct

Marketing channel, showed positive improvements during the financial year.

- The renewal expense per policy was decreased for individual business and left unchanged for the Cornerstone business channel

and amounted to a release of R111.2 million (2021: -R79.0 million). Significant expense savings were recorded during the financial

year.

The after taxation returns on shareholders assets outperformed the long-term investment return assumption by R9 million (2021: R43

million).   The investment return achieved on shareholders funds was 7.47% (2021: 16.97%).

Actuarial assumption and modelling adjustments detracted R240.2 million (2021: R353.5 million) from profit after taxation. This

included the following significant adjustments:
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An analysis of the total new business premiums written during the financial year is provided below.

New business (R'm) 2022 2021 % change

Recurring premiums 397               549              -27.67%

Single premiums 1 083            224              > 100%

Total new business premiums 1 480            773              91.46%

Annual premium equivalent (APE) 505               571              -11.56%

Present value of new business premiums (PV NBP) 4 802            4 225           13.65%

Value of new business margin 5.4% 9.3% -3.96%

Group embedded value (R'm) 2022 2021

Shareholders' funds 5 059           4 582           

Value of in-force business 1 732           1 939           

Gross 2 332           2 494           

Cost of required capital (600)             (555)             

Embedded value of covered business 6 791           6 520           

Embedded value of other Group operations (34)               3                  

Group embedded value at year end 6 757           6 523           

Return on embedded value (%) 6.49% 4.19%

The embedded value represents an estimated value of the Group that comprises shareholders' funds which is the aggregate of free

surplus funds and required capital to support the in-force business; plus the present value of in-force business; less the cost of

required capital.

Covered business is business written under a life insurance license and is valued by using the methodology outlined in the Advisory

Practice Note, APN 107, of the Actuarial Society of South Africa.

Other Group operations include the value of Assupol Holdings as well as other subsidiaries in the Group that are not included in the

value of covered business.  
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Embedded value earnings (R'm)

Embedded value at 30 June 2021 - Covered business 4 582            2 494            (555)             6 521           

Opening adjustments 44                 (1)                  -               43                

Embedded value as at the beginning of the year 4 626            2 493            (555)             6 564           

Dividends paid (187)             -                -               (187)             

Deferred bonus shares 17                 -                -               17                

Embedded value after adjustments 4 456            2 493            (555)             6 394           

Unwinding of risk discount rate -                300               (60)               240              

Expected profits 463               (463)             -               -               

New business 38                 318               (99)               257              

Operating experience variations 21                 (77)                (31)               (87)               

Taxation 87                 -                -               87                

Assumption changes (153)             (252)             47                (358)             

Investment experience 138               (7)                  98                229              

Miscellaneous 9                   20                 -               29                

Embedded value at 30 June 2022 - Covered business 5 059            2 332            (600)             6 791           

Embedded value at 30 June 2021 - Other Group operations 3                   -                -               3                  

Dividends received 187               -                -               187              

Dividends paid (178)             -                -               (178)             

Embedded value after adjustments 12                 -                -               12                

Net profits (9)                  -                -               (9)                 

Holdings company expense adjustment -                (60)                -               (60)               

Market value adjustment -                23                 -               23                

Embedded value at 30 June 2022 - Other Group operations 3                   (37)                -               (34)               

Group embedded value at 30 June 2022 5 062            2 295            (600)             6 757           

SHARE STATISTICS

Key statistics in relation to the issued shares of Assupol Holdings are provided below:

2022 2021 % change

Share price - closing (R) * 7.15              8.00             -10.63%

Market capitalisation (R'm) * 3 047            3 409           -10.62%

Earnings per share (cents) 145               84                72.39%

Diluted earnings per share (cents) 144               83                73.51%

Diluted adjusted operating profit per share (R) 1.79              1.88             -4.70%

Group embedded value per share (R) 15.86            15.31           3.56%

Dividends per qualifying ordinary shares (cents) 106               42                152.38%

* Market information is based on the CTSE exchange on which the company's shares trade.

Value 

of 

in-force

Cost of 

required 

capital Total

Adjusted

net 

worth
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors of the company as at 30 June 2022 were:

Name

Date 

appointed

Non-executive directors

20 May 2019

20 Feb 2013

6 May 2019

6 May 2019

6 Aug 2020

1 Oct 2020

7 May 2013

8 Sept 2021

11 May 2021

Executive directors

30 Jul 2010

30 Jul 2010

1 Sep 2012

PRESCRIBED OFFICERS

Name

Date 

appointed

1 Jan 2020

1 Jul 2017

1 Jan 2019

1 Jan 2017

DETAILS OF SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Group has permanent employee contracts with all the executive directors and prescribed officers.

Member: Actuarial Committee, Nominations Committee, 

Remuneration Committee

Board committee involvement

Chief Risk Officer

Mr EZ Mngoma retired on 30 June 2022. Ms VZ Nkosi was appointed as Sales Executive: Assupol Life to oversee the majority of the functions of this

vacancy, together with the assistance of the Group Executive Committee.

Member: Social and Ethics Committee

Chair: Actuarial Committee, Remuneration Committee

Member: Audit Committee

Member: Nominations Committee, Remuneration Committee

EDJ Ashkar

Member: Risk Committee

Dr RJ Khoza 
(Chairman)

MD Collier

Chair: Nominations Committee

Member: Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee

Member: Nomination Committee, Social and Ethics Committee

Group Executive: Sales

LJ Sennelo (1)

Member: Actuarial Committee

SL Ndwalaza
(Human Resources)

MB Mokwena-Halala (2)

(Group Chief Executive Officer)

D de Klerk 
(Group Chief Financial Officer)

Position held in Group

NB Duker

Group Head: Legal and compliance

(2) Ms MB Mokwena-Halala was appointed as Group Chief Executive Officer after the resignation of Mr CJ van Dyk on 8 November 2021 as Group

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director. Ms Mokwena-Halala will also continue in her existing position as Assupol Life’s Chief Executive

Officer.

(1) Ms LJ Sennelo was appointed by the Board in March 2022 as lead independent director as per the King IV Report on Corporate Governance of

South Africa.

NE Gubb

MS Keetse

SIM Braudo

Chief Information Officer

Member: Actuarial Committee, Risk Committee

Member: Actuarial Committee

MP Salmon

EN Nelwamondo

EZ Mngoma

Chair: Risk Committee

Member: Audit Committee, Nominations Committee

SRL Mbili

Chair: Audit Committee, Social and Ethics Committee

Member: Risk Committee

GR Burger
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BOARD COMMITTEES

HEAD OF ACTUARIAL CONTROL FUNCTION

COMPANY SECRETARY

AUDITOR

SUBSIDIARIES

SHARE CAPITAL

2022 2021

R'000 R'000

425 542 109 no par value ordinary shares (2021: 421 714 290) 676 882       640 495       

69 661 B no par value shares 417              417              

192 039 B1 no par value shares 1 392           1 392           

358 166 B2 no par value shares (2021: 4 185 985) 3 404           39 791         

Total share capital 682 095       682 095       

In the conversion of the insurance license of Assupol Life, the Prudential Authority granted Assupol Life exemption from establishing

its own audit committee in terms of section 66 of the Insurance Act, 18 of 2017, and section 7.3 of the Prudential Standard

Governance and Operational Standards for Insurers (GOI 2). Exemption was also granted to Assupol Life from establishing its own

Risk and Remuneration Committees, as required in terms of section 7.4 of the GOI 2.

The company secretary, Ms T Nkomo, has resigned with effect from 31 January 2022. FluidRock Co Sec (Pty) Ltd was appointed

with effect from 1 February 2022.

In terms of the Insurance Act, 18 of 2017, Mr R Subotzky has continued in office as the Head of Actuarial Control Function of Assupol

Life Limited.

The Board dissolved the Investment Committee following the adjustment of the Memorandum of Incorporation approved at the annual

general meeting in November 2021.  The functions of this committee were incorporated into the Risk Committee.

The issued share capital of the company as at 30 June 2022 is shown below.  Refer note 24.

The B3, B4 and B5 shares were awarded to senior management in September 2019, September 2020 and September 2021

respectively in terms of the deferred bonus scheme (refer note 26) but have not been issued as yet due to the requisite approval from

the Prudential Authority. 

During the financial year 3 827 819 B2 shares that were issued as a deferred bonus in 2018, have vested and are disclosed as

ordinary shares.

The Assupol Group's material interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the financial statements. These companies were

subsidiaries throughout the year.  The subsidiaries are involved in the financial services industry in South Africa.

Due to the Mandatory Audit Firm Rotation rule issued by the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors (IRBA),

PricewaterhouseCoopers Incorporated has resigned as the external auditor. KPMG Incorporated was recommended for appointment

as the auditor in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act, 2008, for the financial year ending 30 June 2023.
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SHAREHOLDERS' DIVIDEND

Dividends were declared in respect of the following financial years:

cents per share 2022 2021

Ordinary dividend 64                42                

Special dividend 42                -               

For the 2021 financial year

For the 2022 financial year

The following dates will apply to the dividend:

Last date to trade cum dividend 14 October 2022

Record date 14 October 2022

Trading ex dividend  commences 17 October 2022

Dividend payment date 17 October 2022

 

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The qualifying shares included the listed ordinary shares but excluding shares held by the Share Incentive Trust. It will also include

those 'B' shares that qualify to be converted to ordinary shares after the restricted period ends in September 2022 and that are

unrestricted at record date.

Subsequent to the year-end Assupol Life has received approval from the Prudential Authority to raise debt to an amount of R350

million through a debt medium term note programme. The Board approved this subordinated debt prior to the year end. It is

expected that the process will be completed by the end of September 2022.

The dividends have been declared from retained earnings. A dividend withholding taxation of 20% will be applicable to all

shareholders who are not exempt.

The declaration was done after careful consideration of solvency and liquidity requirements of the Group as well as the prioritisation

of the preservation of capital by entities is emphasized.

After the reporting period, the Board of Directors approved an ordinary dividend of 64 cents and a special dividend of 42 cents on

qualifying shares, of which the declaration date will be 28 September 2022.

On 28 September 2021 the Board of Directors declared an ordinary dividend of 42 cents per qualifying ordinary share. This was

declared in terms of the company's dividend policy to shareholders recorded at close of business on 15 October 2021. The dividends

were paid on 18 October 2021.



Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholders of Assupol Holdings Limited

Report on the audit of the consolidated and separate financial

statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material

respects, the consolidated and separate financial position of Assupol Holdings Limited (the Company)

and its subsidiaries (together the Group) as at 30 June 2022, and its consolidated and separate

financial performance and its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies

Act of South Africa.

What we have audited

Assupol Holding Limited’s consolidated and separate financial statements set out on pages 21 to 102

comprise:

● the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at 30 June 2022;

● the consolidated and separate statements of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

● the consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity for the year then ended;

● the consolidated and separate statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and

● the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting

policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the

audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’

Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence

requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc., 4 Lisbon Lane, Waterfall City, Jukskei View, 2090

Private Bag X36, Sunninghill, 2157, South Africa

T: +27 (0) 11 797 4000, F: +27 (0) 11 209 5800, www.pwc.co.za

Chief Executive Officer: L S Machaba

The Company's principal place of business is at 4 Lisbon Lane, Waterfall City, Jukskei View, where a list of directors' names is available for inspection.

Reg. no. 1998/012055/21,  VAT reg.no. 4950174682.
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our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code and in accordance with other

ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with

the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards).

Our audit approach

Overview

Overall group materiality

● Overall group materiality: R47.1 million, which represents 1% of

the consolidated insurance premiums revenue.

Group audit scope

● Our group scoping included full scope audits on three out of eight

components. Two based on financial significance and another

based on statutory audit requirements.

We performed analytical procedures on the remaining

non-significant components.

Key audit matters

● Valuation of policyholder assets and liabilities under insurance

contracts.

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material

misstatement in the consolidated and separate financial statements. In particular, we considered

where the directors made subjective judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting

estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently

uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal

controls, including among other matters, consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that

represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. An audit is designed to obtain

reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of the consolidated financial statements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,

including the overall group materiality for the consolidated financial statements as a whole as set out

in the table below. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope
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of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of

misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Overall group

materiality

R47.1 million

How we determined it 1% of consolidated insurance premiums revenue

Rationale for the

materiality benchmark

applied

We chose consolidated insurance premiums revenue as the benchmark

because, in our view, it is the benchmark that best reflects the Group’s

operational results and its ability to generate cashflows in circumstances

where consolidated profit before tax is volatile.

We chose 1% which is consistent with quantitative materiality thresholds

that we consider to be appropriate.

How we tailored our group audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an

opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the

Group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

The consolidated financial statements are a consolidation of the Company and seven subsidiaries

(each considered a component) for purposes of our group audit scope. The group engagement team

performed full scope audits for two financially significant components based on their contribution to

consolidated total assets and consolidated insurance premium revenue and another component

based on statutory audit requirements. We performed analytical review procedures on the remaining

components to support our conclusion that the work performed was sufficient and appropriate to

support our group audit opinion.

All testing was performed centrally by the group audit team. By performing the procedures outlined

below, we obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the

Group to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

The following key audit matter relates to the consolidated financial statements. We have determined

that there are no key audit matters in respect of the separate financial statements to communicate in

our report.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Valuation of policyholder assets and
liabilities under insurance contracts

Refer to the following accounting policies and
notes to the consolidated financial statements
for details:

● Note 2.17.3 - Insurance contracts
● Note 3.1 - Policyholder liabilities / assets

under long-term insurance contracts;
● Note 4 - Assumptions and estimates

relating to policyholder assets and
liabilities ;

● Note 5 - Risk Management; and
● Note 28 - Policyholder assets and

liabilities under insurance contracts

The Group issues contracts that transfer
insurance risk or financial risk or, in some cases,
both. An insurance contract is a contract under
which the insurer accepts significant insurance
risk from the policyholder. Such contracts may
also transfer financial risk. The Group defines
significant insurance risk as the possibility of
having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an
insured event that are significantly more than
the benefits payable if the insured event did not
occur.

Management valued net policyholder assets and
liabilities arising from insurance contracts of R2
567 million as disclosed in note 28 using a
discounted cash flow method in terms of the
Financial Soundness Valuation (FSV) method
using the Actuarial Society of South Africa’s
guidance as contained in Standard of Actuarial
Practice note 104 (SAP 104) and the Actuarial
Practice Notes (APNs).

The valuation of the policyholder assets and
liabilities took into account key economic and
non-economic assumptions which were then
applied to projected future cash flows.

Economic assumptions which are based on
market observable data as at the end of the
financial year that were applied by management
included the following:

● Discount rates;

● Investment returns; and

● Inflation rates.

Using our actuarial expertise, we tested the
valuation of policyholder assets and liabilities
under insurance contracts by performing the
following procedures:

● We attended relevant meetings to obtain an
understanding of the Group’s actuarial
control environment and governance, such
as the functioning of the Actuarial
Committee which approves the methodology
and assumption changes, against industry
practice and regulatory requirements. During
these meetings, we understood the
governance processes in relation to
assumption and model changes, including
those relating to Covid-19, and assessed
the reasonableness of these assumptions
and model changes relative to industry and
market developments.

● We tested a sample of the underlying data
and key management reconciliations
between the policyholder administration
system and the data used in the valuation.
No material differences were noted.

● We compared the valuation methodology
used by management against the Group’s
accounting policy, guidance of SAP 104 and
industry practice and we found
management’s valuation methodology to be
consistent with these.

● We examined management’s Analysis of
Surplus (AoS), which shows sources of
profit and how it relates to the change in
insurance contract provisions as disclosed
on the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The AoS was found
to be reasonable as a control over the
valuation of policyholder assets and
liabilities.

● We assessed the reasonableness of
economic assumptions through comparison
to available market observable data, and
assessed the Group’s underlying
methodology against SAP 104. The
assumptions were found to be within an
appropriate range, taking into account the
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Non-economic assumptions are set based on
experience investigations performed by the
Group and therefore contain judgement and an
element of subjectivity. The key non-economic
assumptions that were applied by management
include the following:

● Mortality

● Withdrawals; and

● Renewal expenses.

We considered the valuation of policyholder
assets and liabilities under insurance contracts
to be a matter of most significance to our current
year audit due to the following:

● The subjectivity and the significant
judgement applied by management in
setting key assumptions, which could
result in a material change in the
valuation. This was particularly the case
in respect of the non-economic
assumptions, in light of the Covid-19
pandemic; and

● The magnitude of the policyholder
assets and liabilities under insurance
contracts balance in relation to total
assets and liabilities.

Group’s circumstances and their underlying
methodology.

● Our assessment of the non-economic
assumptions included the following, which
resulted in us accepting management’s
assumptions:

o We assessed the reasonableness of the
base non-economic assumptions by
comparing the assumptions to the most
recent experience investigations
conducted by management and our
knowledge of the business.

o We assessed management’s process to
determine the impact of Covid-19 on
each of the assumptions. This was done
by considering these against various
information sources such as the South
African Medical Research Council
(SAMRC) data, as well as our experience
of prevailing industry practice.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the document titled “Assupol Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries Annual

Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022”, which includes the Directors’ Report, the

Report of the Audit Committee and the Company Secretary compliance statement as required by the

Companies Act of South Africa, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the

document titled “Assupol Holdings Limited 2022 Integrated Report”, which is expected to be made

available to us after that date. The other information does not include the consolidated or the separate

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is

to read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information

is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge

obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated and separate financial

statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and

separate financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the

requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors

determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the directors are responsible for

assessing the Group and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

the directors either intend to liquidate the Group and/or the Company or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial

statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

● Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting

from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

● Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Company’s internal control.

● Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

● Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in

the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
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modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date

of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and / or

Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

● Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate

financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

● Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities

or business activities within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial

statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions

taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most

significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period

and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law

or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,

we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015,

we report that PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. has been the auditor of Assupol Holdings Limited for 89

years.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc.

Director: Lumko Sihiya

Registered Auditor

Johannesburg, South Africa

27 September 2022
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

NOTES R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

 

Insurance premiums revenue 4 714 047    4 359 112    -               -               

Insurance premiums ceded to reinsurers (178 012)      (145 113)      -               -               

Net insurance premium revenue 7 4 536 035    4 213 999    -               -               

Commission received on outward reinsurance 3 895            74                 -               -               

Fee income 8 96 913          75 183          -               -               

Investment income on financial assets

- at fair value through profit or loss 9 269 099        226 360        -               -               

- at amortised cost 9 167 512        157 073        1 293           2 692           

Dividend received from subsidiaries 9 -                -                186 551       232 207       

Net fair value (losses) / gains on financial assets 10 (103 463)      367 539        -               -               

Other income 11 2 445             692               -               -               

Income 4 972 436    5 040 920    187 844       234 899       

Insurance benefits and claims (2 018 965)   (2 016 378)   -               -               

Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers 192 990        261 272        -               -               

Net insurance benefits and claims 12 (1 825 975)   (1 755 106)   -               -               

Commission expenses 13 (859 099)      (888 404)      -               -               

Operating and administrative expenses 14 (1 281 605)   (1 221 934)   (9 823)         (7 715)         

Investment management expenses (15 080)        (11 850)        -               -               

Change in insurance contract provisions 28 (63 491)        (279 036)      -               -               

Value adjustments on investment

contract liabilities 29 (116 412)      (322 265)      -               -               

Expenses (4 161 662)   (4 478 595)   (9 823)         (7 715)         

Result of operating activities 810 774        562 325        178 021       227 184       

Finance charges 15 (38 746)        (38 312)        -               -               

Profit before taxation 772 028        524 013        178 021       227 184       

Income taxation expense 16 (157 413)      (171 685)      (362)             (832)             

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 614 615        352 328        177 659       226 352       

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 614 615        352 328        177 659       226 352       

Profit attributable to:

Owners of Assupol Holdings Ltd 614 800            352 680            177 659           226 352           

Non-controlling interests (185)                  (352)                  -                   -                   

614 615            352 328            177 659           226 352           

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of Assupol Holdings Ltd 614 800            352 680            177 659           226 352           

Non-controlling interests (185)                  (352)                  -                   -                   

614 615            352 328            177 659           226 352           

Group earnings per share (cents)

Basic earnings per share (cents) 17 145.2                84.2                  

Diluted earnings per share (cents) 17 144.0                83.0                  
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

NOTES R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

ASSETS  

Property and equipment 18 228 091        200 085        -               -               

Intangible assets 19 230 671        181 269        -               -               

Investments in subsidiaries 20 -                -                842 740       813 390       

Financial assets - Investments

At fair value through profit or loss

Equity securities 21 2 031 500    1 564 654    -               -               

Debt securities 21 2 390 943    2 222 110    -               -               

Deposits and money market securities 21 1 374 258    1 051 868    -               -               

At amortised cost

Deposits and money market securities 21 1 557 610    1 869 308    -               -               

Policyholder assets

Insurance contracts 28 2 567 083    2 596 284    -               -               

Reinsurance assets 28 66 302          100 593        -               -               

Insurance and other receivables 22 208 180        204 421        3 300           1 824           

Current taxation 35 -                2 612            -               -               

Cash and cash equivalents 23 439 128        384 400        35 068         39 064         

TOTAL ASSETS 11 093 766  10 377 604  881 108       854 278       

EQUITY

Share capital 24 682 095        682 095        682 095       682 095       

Treasury shares 25, 26 (18 206)        (45 615)        (5 097)         (41 434)       

Employee benefits reserve 26 183 987        203 651        183 987       203 651       

Black Economic Empowerment reserve 27 14 300          14 300          14 300         14 300         

Retained earnings 4 250 128    3 813 346    (16 830)       (16 437)       

Capital and reserves attributable to owners of Assupol Holdings 5 112 304    4 667 777    858 455       842 175       

Non-controlling interest -                (399)             -               -               

TOTAL EQUITY 5 112 304    4 667 378    858 455       842 175       

LIABILITIES

Policyholder liabilities: Investment contracts

At fair value through profit or loss 29 2 524 658    1 995 293    -               -               

At amortised cost 29 1 596 889    1 925 292    -               -               

Other liabilities 30 446 328        412 046        -               -               

Employee benefits 31 73 982          76 404          -               -               

Deferred revenue liability 32 486               478               -               -               

Deferred taxation liability 33 702 519        798 961        -               -               

Insurance and other payables 34 614 246        501 752        22 638         12 095         

Current taxation 35 22 354          -                15                8                  

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5 981 462    5 710 226    22 653         12 103         

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11 093 766  10 377 604  881 108       854 278       
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EMPLOYEE NON-

SHARE TREASURY BENEFITS BEE RETAINED CONTROLLING TOTAL

CAPITAL SHARES RESERVE RESERVE EARNINGS INTEREST EQUITY

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

NOTES 24 25 26 27

COMPANY

Balance at 30 June 2020 640 484     (36 993)      210 047     14 300       (13 498)      -             814 340     

Cost of incentive shares -             -             536            -             -             -             536            

B2 shares issued 39 791       (39 791)      -             -             -             -             -             

Deferred bonus recognition -             -             28 418       -             -             -             28 418       

Dividend paid -             -             -             -             (231 059)    -             (231 059)    

Vesting of deferred bonus shares -             35 350       (35 350)      -             -             -             -             

Adjustment of redemption on preference shares 1 820         -             -             -             1 768         -             3 588         

Profit for the year -             -             -             -             226 352     -             226 352     

Balance at 30 June 2021 682 095     (41 434)      203 651     14 300       (16 437)      -             842 175     

Cost of incentive shares -             -             211            -             -             -             211            

Deferred bonus recognition -             -             16 462       -             -             -             16 462       

Dividend paid -             -             -             -             (178 052)    -             (178 052)    

Vesting of deferred bonus shares -             36 337       (36 337)      -             -             -             -             

Profit for the year -             -             -             -             177 659     -             177 659     

Balance at 30 June 2022 682 095     (5 097)        183 987     14 300       (16 830)      -             858 455     
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EMPLOYEE NON-

SHARE TREASURY BENEFITS BEE RETAINED CONTROLLING TOTAL

CAPITAL SHARES RESERVE RESERVE EARNINGS INTEREST EQUITY

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

NOTES 24 25 26 27

CONSOLIDATED

Balance at 30 June 2020 640 484     (39 498)      210 047     14 300       3 689 366  (47)             4 514 652  

Cost of incentive shares -             -             536            -             -             -             536            

B2 shares issued 39 791       (39 791)      -             -             -             -             -             

Treasury shares acquired -             (1 676)        -             -             -             -             (1 676)        

Deferred bonus recognition -             -             28 418       -             -             -             28 418       

Dividend paid -             -             -             -             (230 468)    -             (230 468)    

Vesting of deferred bonus shares -             35 350       (35 350)      -             -             -             -             

Adjustment of redemption on preference shares 1 820         -             -             -             1 768         -             3 588         

Profit for the year -             -             -             -             352 680     (352)           352 328     

Balance at 30 June 2021 682 095     (45 615)      203 651     14 300       3 813 346  (399)           4 667 378  

Cost of incentive shares -             -             211            -             -             -             211            

Treasury shares acquired -             (8 928)        -             -             -             -             (8 928)        

Deferred bonus recognition -             -             16 462       -             -             -             16 462       

Dividend paid -             -             -             -             (177 434)    -             (177 434)    

Vesting of deferred bonus shares -             36 337       (36 337)      -             -             -             -             

Acquisition of non-controlling interest in subsidiary -             -             -             -             (584)           584            -             

Profit for the year -             -             -             -             614 800     (185)           614 615     

Balance at 30 June 2022 682 095     (18 206)      183 987     14 300       4 250 128  -             5 112 304  
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

NOTES R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from / (utilised in) operations 36 941 872        820 411        (802)             21 007         

Net acquisition of financial instruments 

at fair value through profit or loss (1 061 532)   (446 889)      -               -               

at amortised cost 466 544        (101 233)      -               -               

Interest received 9 228 787        202 916        1 293           2 692           

Dividends received 9 52 978          34 929          186 551       232 207       

Dividends paid (177 434)      (230 468)      (178 052)     (231 059)     

Interest paid 15 (38 746)        (38 312)        -               -               

Taxation paid 35 (228 843)      (194 388)      (309)             (1 092)         

Net cash flows from operating activities 183 626        46 966          8 681           23 755         

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property and equipment (25 551)        (18 619)        -               -               

Acquisition of intangible assets 19 (71 041)        (44 000)        -               -               

Proceeds on disposal of equipment 3 978            3 417            -               -               

Acquisition of shares in subsidiary 20 -                -                (12 677)       -               

Net cash flows from investing activities (92 614)        (59 202)        (12 677)       -               

Cash flows from financing activities

Increase in treasury shares 26 (8 928)          (1 676)          -               -               

Payment of principal lease payments 30 (27 356)        (26 238)        -               -               

Net cash flows from financing activities (36 284)        (27 914)        -               -               

54 728          (40 150)        (3 996)         23 755         

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 384 400        424 550        39 064         15 309         

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 23 439 128        384 400        35 068         39 064         

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash 

equivalents
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

Carried at fair value

• Financial assets designated as 'at fair value through profit or loss';

•

Carried at a different measurement basis

• Policyholder liabilities / assets under insurance contracts are valued in terms of the Financial Soundness Valuation

(FSV) basis contained in the Actuarial Society of South Africa's Actuarial Practice Note SAP104 and described in

accounting policy 2.17.3.

The Group and the company prepare the audited financial statements on a going concern basis. The assets and liabilities

are valued on the historical cost basis, except for the following items:

The consolidated financial statements of the Assupol Group and the financial statements of the company have been

prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, in South

Africa, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guidelines as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, the Financial

Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, as well as the reporting requirements of Cape

Town Stock Exchange (CTSE).

2.1

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It

also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the company and Group’s accounting

policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are

significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements.

IFRS comprises International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (IAS) and Interpretations,

and are set by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Financial liabilities for policyholder liabilities under investment contracts designated as 'at fair value through profit or

loss'.

Assupol Life Limited ('Assupol Life'), the life insurance subsidiary of Assupol Holdings, underwrites life insurance risks, such as

those associated with death, disability and dread disease. The company also issues a diversified portfolio of investment

contracts, consisting both fixed and variable return portfolios, to provide its customers with solutions for their savings and

retirement needs.  

Assupol Holdings Limited ('Assupol Holdings' or 'the company') and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the 'Assupol

Group' or 'Group') operate mainly in the financial services industry, with all products and services offered only in the Republic of

South Africa.  

Assupol Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited ('Assupol Investment Holdings') holds the investments in other subsidiaries. All

of these subsidiaries are currently non-operational and the majority of them, with the exception of Assupol Wealth Proprietary

Limited ("Assupol Wealth") is in the process of being wound down with the intent to deregister the companies. These

subsidiaries include Cornerstone Brokers Corporate Proprietary Limited ('Cornerstone Brokers'), Siebador Sewentien Proprietary

Limited ('Siebador Sewentien'), and Top Top Business Consultants Proprietary Limited ("Top Top Business Consultants").

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated and separate financial statements are set out

below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise indicated. All amounts are shown

in thousands of South African Rand, rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Standards and interpretations not yet effective

• IFRS 17 - Insurance contracts (effective 1 January 2023)

Temporary exemption from IFRS 9 - Financial instruments (effective 1 January 2018)

To date the majority of the actuarial modelling has been completed and runs are being performed to test the system

build and interrogate the results against expectations. The links to the accounting and reporting systems as well as the

data warehouse are currently being addressed.

The focus for the coming financial year will be on the completion of the build in both the actuarial and accounting side,

rigorous testing of the models, parallel reporting on IFRS 4 and IFRS 17 results, development of reports, and enhanced

communication on expectations to the relevant stakeholders.

The Group elected to defer the implementation of this standard to coincide with the implementation of IFRS 17 as a result of

an assessment performed by management in line with the deferral provisions in IFRS 4. Based on this assessment it was

concluded that the Group meets these provisions due to the fact that the Group's insurance liabilities exceed 80% of total

liabilities. There has been no change in the Group's activities that warrants a reassessment of applying the temporary

exemption from IFRS 9. The Group has not previously applied IFRS 9 and qualified for the exemption from the period

preceding 1 April 2016.

The amendment of IFRS 4 - Insurance contracts requires entities to disclose the fair value at the end of its reporting period

and the change in fair value during the period for groups of financial assets with contractual cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest (SPPI) and other financial assets separately.

Assupol Life will recognise IFRS 9 from the year ending 30 June 2024. Assupol Holdings implemented IFRS 9 in the year

ended June 2019.

The Assupol Group will first report on the IFRS 17 based results in the annual financial statements for the year ending

30 June 2024. 

The risks attached to the project were recorded in the Group's risk register. The risk management division of the Group

hold quarterly meetings with the steering committee to update the risk register. The residual risks are all appropriately

mitigated.

The standard addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, as

well as a new impairment model for financial assets. This standard replaces the multiple classification and measurement

models in IAS 39 (Financial instruments - recognition and measurement) with a single model that has only two classification

categories: amortised cost and fair value.

The project was included in the combined assurance plan of the Group. Both the internal and external auditors have

performed reviews on specific aspects of the project. It is planned that the involvement of especially external audit will

increase during the coming financial year.

2.1.1

During the financial year training was provided to the Board where the possible outcome on key financial metrics were

illustrated. Furthermore, a training platform was acquired to provide more detailed training to relevant staff, members of

the steering committee, executive managers as well as the audit committee.

The standard eliminates inconsistencies and weaknesses in existing practices by providing a single principle-based

framework to account for all types of insurance contracts, including reinsurance contracts that an insurer holds. It also

provides requirements for presentation and disclosure items to enhance comparability between entities.

The following accounting standards that are applicable to the Group have been amended by the International Accounting

Standards Board (IASB), but with effective dates that are after the Group's current reporting period. The Group will comply

with the amendments from the effective date. The standards have not been early adopted and the impact thereof is

currently being assessed. The effective date that is indicated below represents financial periods beginning on or after that

specific date, unless otherwise indicated.

2.1.2

The implementation process is managed by the Group's IFRS 17 steering committee which consists of representatives

from various disciplines in the Group such as actuarial valuations, finance, information technology, and risk

management. It is also supported by external consultants that provides the technical insights and guidance. The

committee meets on a monthly basis and reports to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 Temporary exemption from IFRS 9 - Financial instruments (effective 1 January 2018) (continued)

FVTPL ** Total
R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Equity instruments

Opening balance                   -        1 194 759     1 194 759                  -   

Contributions                   -   609 176               609 176                  -   

Withdrawals                   -   (183 645)            (183 645)                  -   

Increase / (decrease) in fair value                   -   8 677                       8 677                  -   

Investment income                   -   54 378                   54 378                  -   

Fees                   -   (1 597)                    (1 597)                  -   

Closing balance                   -        1 681 748     1 681 748                  -   

Global unit trusts

Opening balance                   -           369 895        369 895                  -   

Contributions                   -   35 198                   35 198                  -   

Withdrawals                   -   (47 288)                (47 288)                  -   

Increase / (decrease) in fair value                   -   (11 643)                (11 643)                  -   

Investment income                   -   3 654                       3 654                  -   

Fees                   -   (64)                               (64)                  -   

Closing balance                   -           349 752        349 752                  -   

Debt securities

Opening balance                   -        2 222 110     2 222 110                  -   

Contributions                   -   195 183               195 183                  -   

Withdrawals                   -   (87 660)                (87 660)                  -   

Increase / (decrease) in fair value                   -   (100 542)            (100 542)                  -   

Investment income                   -   166 897               166 897                  -   

Fees                   -   (5 045)                    (5 045)                  -   

Closing balance                   -        2 390 943     2 390 943                  -   

Deposits and money markets securities

Opening balance      1 869 308      1 051 868     2 921 176                  -   

Contributions         341 914 2 180 555        2 522 469                  -   

Withdrawals        (805 028) (1 904 662)      (2 709 690)                  -   

Increase / (decrease) in fair value               (436) 483                               47                  -   

Investment income         154 744 46 430                 201 174                  -   

Fees            (2 891) (417)                       (3 308)                  -   

Closing balance      1 557 611      1 374 257     2 931 868                  -   

Other receivables

Opening balance             7 046                   -              7 046          17 893 

Accrued interest 315                                 -                 315                 41 

Additions -                                  -                    -              1 436 

Repayment received            (6 710)                   -             (6 710)           (5 369)

Closing balance                651                   -                 651          14 001 

Cash and cash equivalents

Opening balance         384 400                   -          384 400                  -   

Net contributions received           54 728                   -            54 728                  -   

Closing balance         439 128                   -          439 128                  -   

* SPPI: Solely payments of principal and interest

** FVTPL: Fair value through profit or loss

Other 

financial 

instruments

Amortised 

cost meeting 

SPPI *

The Group has assessed its financial instruments to determine whether or not it contains contractual cash flows that meet

the SPPI criteria.  The table below summarises the results of this assessment.

Financial instruments
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation

2.2.1 Interest in subsidiaries (refer notes 5.4.1.b and 39).

2.2.2 Subsidiaries under common control

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Transactions and balances

The cost of an acquisition of a subsidiary under common control is measured at the fair value of the assets given, equity

instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. On acquisition the carrying values of assets

and liabilities are not restated to fair value. Under the principles of predecessor accounting, the Group incorporates assets

and liabilities at their pre-combination carrying amounts. Any excess/deficit of the purchase price over the ultimate holding

company's pre-combination recorded net asset value of the subsidiary is adjusted directly to equity.

The Group presents its financial statements in South African Rand (ZAR), the functional currency of the holding company

and its subsidiaries.

The Group's financial statements represent the consolidated financial position and changes therein, operating results, and

cash flow information of the company and all of its subsidiaries.

Under IFRS 10 all entities, including structured entities such as collective investment schemes, over which the Group has

control are regarded as subsidiaries. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to or has rights to variable

returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect these returns through its power over the entity. The

shares held by the Assupol Share Incentive Trust have been consolidated into the financial results of the Group as the

Group has effective control over these shares.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less accumulated impairment losses in the stand-alone financial

statements of the company.

The Group converts transactions in foreign currencies to South African Rand at the spot rate on the transaction date.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated to South African Rand using the rates of exchange ruling

at the financial year-end. Any translation differences are included in profit or loss in the period in which the difference occurs

in 'net fair value gains on financial assets'.

Common control is defined as a business combination in which all the combining entities are ultimately controlled by the

same party both before and after the business combination and control is not transitory.

The interest of non-controlling shareholders is stated at their proportionate share of the subsidiary's identifiable net assets

on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Once the company no longer controls or has significant influence over a subsidiary,

the investment is treated as a financial instrument in terms of IFRS 9.

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are fully

consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are derecognised from the date that control

ceases. The Group recognises identifiable assets and liabilities, and contingent liabilities acquired in its statement of

financial position at their fair values at the date of acquisition. It eliminates all inter-company transactions, balances and

unrealised surpluses and deficits on transactions between companies in the Group. The excess of the cost of acquisition

over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. Therefore, the cost of

the acquisition is measured as the fair value of assets given and liabilities assumed at date of exchange and costs directly

attributable to the acquisition.

2.3.1

2.3

2.3.2

2.2



ASSUPOL HOLDINGS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  for the year ended 30 June 2022 Page 30

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition and other income and expenses

Revenue recognition

Revenue in terms of IFRS 4

(i) Insurance premiums received

Revenue in terms of IFRS 15

(i) Fee income

Other income

Income in terms of IFRS 4

(i) Reinsurance premiums received

Income in terms of IAS 39

(i) Investment income

Investment income is recognised in the following manner:

• Dividends are brought to account once the last date of registration has passed.

•

Other sundry income

Acquisition costs of insurance and investment contracts

Operating and administration expenses

Finance charges

Reinsurance premiums are recognised when due in accordance with the terms of each insurance contract.

Surrender charges are levied on an investment contract when it is prematurely terminated or lapsed due to non-payment of

premiums. This is done to recover any unrecouped expenses incurred when the contract was issued. Surrender charges

are seen as separate performance obligation and are recognised when they are paid i.e. at a point in time.

2.4.1

2.4.4

2.4

2.4.2

Refer to the accounting policy on Policyholder contracts - Investment and insurance, note 2.17.

Fee income includes income from the administration of investment contracts on behalf of policyholders. A management fee

is charged to manage the investments of the contracts and is recognised over time as the customer receives the benefits as

the services are performed.  The fee income is calculated by using an agreed percentage and is payable monthly in arrears. 

Each management fee contract is seen as a single performance obligation to provide the services to the customer over the

duration of the contract. Therefore, revenue from administration of investment contracts is recognised and recorded

monthly.

2.4.2.c

2.4.3

2.4.1.b

2.4.1.a

2.4.5

2.4.2.b

2.4.2.a

Acquisition costs on insurance contracts include both new business and renewal commissions as well as expenses related

thereto, including sales managers' remuneration and production bonuses payable. These acquisition costs are expensed as

incurred.

Other sundry income comprises mainly of profit on disposal of equipment.

Interest for all interest-bearing financial instruments is recognised within investment income and is accounted for on the

effective interest rate method.

Acquisition costs for the guaranteed single premium products are recognised within the fair value of the contract at initial

recognition.

Acquisition costs on investment contracts with investment management services are recognised as deferred acquisition

costs.  The annual amortisation of the deferred acquisition costs is included in the acquisition cost expense.

Operating and administration expenses include head office and branch administration expenditure, marketing and

development expenditure as well as all other non-commission related expenditure, and are expensed as incurred.

Interest expense is recognised as finance charges in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Reinsurance contracts held

Insurance premiums received on reinsurance agreements

Insurance premiums ceded to reinsurers

Insurance claims incurred in respect of reinsurance agreements

Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers

Taxation

Current taxation

Current taxation includes South African corporate taxation payable as well as capital gains taxation.

Dividend withholding taxation

Deferred taxation

The Group calculates deferred taxation using the liability method. It calculates deferred taxation liabilities or assets by

applying corporate enacted or substantially enacted taxation rates to the temporary differences existing at each end of a

reporting period between the taxation values of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statements,

where such temporary differences are expected to result in taxable or deductible amounts in determining taxable income for

future periods when the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled. If the deferred income taxation

arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that, at the time of the

transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for.

The charge for current taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are non-taxable or

disallowed. It is calculated using taxation rates and legislation that have been enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The Group recognises deferred taxation assets if the directors of the Group consider it probable that future taxation income

will be available against which the unused taxation losses can be utilised. The major categories of assets and liabilities

giving rise to a deferred taxation balance are policyholder valuation basis on investment and insurance contracts,

policyholder liabilities special transfers, deferred acquisition costs, deferred revenue liabilities, and unrealised gains on

investments and intangible assets.

Dividend withholding taxation is a taxation on distributions to beneficial owners and levied at 20%. A beneficial owner is the

person entitled to the benefit of the dividend attaching to a share. The taxation is payable by the beneficial owners and not

the Group.

Taxation in respect of the South African life insurance operations is determined using the 'five fund' method applicable to life

insurance companies.

Insurance premiums received on reinsurance agreements are recognised when receivable. Premiums are shown before

deduction of commission.  Outstanding premiums are included in receivables.

Insurance claims incurred in respect of reinsurance agreements are recognised when the claim is received from the party

that was reinsured.

Insurance premiums ceded to reinsurers are recognised when due for payment, and calculated in terms of the reinsurance

contract. Premiums are shown before accrual of commission.  Unpaid premiums are included in payables.

2.6

2.6.3

2.6.2

2.6.1

2.5

The expected benefits to which the Group is entitled to under its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance

assets. These assets consist of short-term balances due by reinsurers (classified within insurance and other receivables),

as well as longer-term receivables (classified as reinsurance assets), if any, that are dependent on the present value of

expected claims and benefits arising net of expected premiums payable under the related reinsurance contracts. Amounts

recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured contracts

and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance contracts are contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group is compensated for

the entire or a portion of losses arising on one or more of the insurance contracts issued by the Group.

Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers are recognised in profit or loss in the same period as the related claim at the

undiscounted amount receivable in terms of the contracts.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Dividend distributions

Recognition of assets, liabilities and provisions

Assets

Liabilities and provisions

The Group recognises liabilities, including provisions when:

• it has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;

• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and

• a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Property and equipment

Measurement

The measurement of right-of-use assets is described in note 2.10.

Depreciation

The periods of depreciation (for both owned and leased assets) are as follows:

• Office equipment 5 - 10 years

• Computer equipment 3 - 5 years

• Motor vehicles 5 years

• Right-of-use asset: Property 2 - 10 years

• Right-of-use asset: Equipment 3 - 5 years

Gains and losses on disposal

2.7

2.9

Dividend distributions to the company's shareholders are recognised in the Statement of Changes in Equity when declared.

If they have not yet been paid, it is disclosed as a liability in the financial statements in the period in which the dividends

were approved by the company's directors.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in

the Statement of Comprehensive Income in 'other income'.

2.9.2

2.9.3

2.9.1

2.8.1

The Group recognises assets when it obtains control of a resource as a result of past events and from which future

economic benefits are expected to flow to the Group.

The Group recognises a provision for onerous contracts, except on insurance contracts (for which the liability adequacy test

is required), when the expected benefits to be derived from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs of meeting the

obligations under the contract.

The Group depreciates property and equipment on a straight-line basis at rates calculated to reduce the book value of these

assets to estimated residual values over their expected useful lives. Management reviews useful lives annually to evaluate

their appropriateness and current and future depreciation charges are adjusted accordingly.

If the effect of discounting is material, provisions are discounted using an appropriate discount rate that reflects current

market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

2.8.2

2.8

The Group impairs an asset to its recoverable amount when there is an impairment indicator in the carrying value of the

asset.

Equipment is initially recorded at cost and subsequently measured at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment.

There has been no change to useful lives from those applied in the previous financial year. The residual values and useful

lives are reassessed on an annual basis.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when

it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be

measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the financial period in which

they are incurred.



ASSUPOL HOLDINGS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  for the year ended 30 June 2022 Page 33

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accounting for leases - where the Group is the lessee

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured at present value.  

Intangible assets

Deferred acquisition costs (DAC)

Refer note 2.17.2 for the accounting treatment of the DAC intangible asset.

Goodwill

Goodwill that arises in a business combination is not amortised, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairments.

Trademark and customer relationships

IT development cost

- it is technically feasible to complete the project so that it will be available for use;

- it is the intention of the Group to complete the intangible asset and use it;

- the Group has the ability to use it;

- it can be demonstrated how the project will generate probable future economic benefits;

-

- the expenditure attributable to the development can be reliably measured.

It is initially accounted for at cost and is subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation less impairment. It is

amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use and the amortisation reflects the pattern of benefits. The

development cost has useful lives ranging from 3 to 10 years.

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the Group's share of the net assets acquired (including

contingent liabilities) over the cost of acquisition.  Negative goodwill is recognised in profit in the year in which it arises.

Lease liabilities are determined as the net present value of the lease payments less any lease incentives receivable. The

lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, or the Group's

incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and the finance cost. The finance cost is

charged to profit or loss so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each

period.

Directly attributable cost that are capitalised include employee cost, consulting fees and other cost that can be directly

attributed to the development project.

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method of accounting. The cost of the business

combination is the fair value of the purchase consideration due at the date of acquisition. Goodwill represents the excess of

the purchase price consideration of an acquisition over the attributable fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable

assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.  

2.11

2.11.2

2.11.4

The right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any

lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, any initial direct cost, and

restoration costs. The right-of-use assets are included in Property and Equipment. The right-of-use asset is depreciated

over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Impairment tests are performed annually on all cash generating units to which goodwill can be allocated. A cash generating

unit is the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows generated by

other groups of assets.  Impairment losses recognised against goodwill may not be reversed.

2.11.3

IT development cost that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique IT development projects

are recognised as intangible assets where the following criteria are met:

2.11.1

adequate technical, financial and other resources are available to complete the development and use the intangible

asset; and

Payments associated with short-term leases, i.e. leases with a lease term of 12 months or less, and leases of low-value

assets are recognised on a straight line basis as an expense in profit or loss. 

2.10

Acquired trademark and customer relationships are initially accounted for at fair value and subsequently shown at cost less

accumulated amortisation. Trademarks and customer relationships have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less

accumulated amortisation and impairment. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of

trademarks and customer relationships over their estimated useful lives of 5 years.



ASSUPOL HOLDINGS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  for the year ended 30 June 2022 Page 34

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets

• Financial assets designated as 'at fair value through profit or loss'; and

• Financial assets carried 'at amortised cost'.

Financial assets designated as 'at fair value through profit or loss'

Initial classification and recognition

•

•

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried 'at amortised cost'.

Initial classification and recognition

Subsequent measurement and impairment

2.12.1

Assets in this category are subsequently measured at fair value and the fair value adjustments are recognised in the

Statement of Comprehensive Income in 'investment income' or 'net fair value gains on financial assets'. No impairment test

is therefore necessary on this asset class.

Financial assets listed in this category are recognised initially at fair value on trade date, which is the date on which the

Group assumes or transfers substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.  Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

Financial assets classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss' consist of local listed shares, local and global unit trusts,

corporate and government bonds, debt securities in parastatals, utilities and municipalities, investment in insurance policies,

deposits and money market securities.

Financial assets carried on the Statement of Financial Position include all assets, except for property and equipment,

intangible assets, current taxation and deferred taxation assets.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from them have expired or where they have been

transferred and the Group has also transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

The Group does not currently hold any held-to-maturity or available-for-sale financial assets.

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories:

2.12

The impairment for financial assets in this category is recognised in accordance with 2.13.1.

Assets in this category are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

results in the reduction of measurement inconsistency (for accounting mismatch) that would arise as a result of

measuring assets and liabilities and the gains and losses on them on a different basis; or

is managed as a group of financial assets and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a

documented risk management or investment strategy, and this is the basis on which information about the assets is

provided internally to the entity's key management personnel.

Assets are designated on initial recognition as 'at fair value through profit or loss' to the extent that it produces more relevant

information because it:

2.12.2

Financial assets in this category, are classified as loans and receivables and other financial assets, i.e. assets that do not

meet the definition of loan and receivables or assets not classified 'at fair value through profit or loss'. These assets are

recognised initially at fair value on trade date plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition. The

trade date is the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the financial assets.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an

active market.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

• significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

• a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in payments;

• the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

•

> adverse changes in the payment status of debtors in the Group; or

> national economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the Group.

Impairment of other non-financial assets

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an

event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as improved credit rating), the previously recognised impairment

loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account.  The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

2.13.1

At the end of a reporting period the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of

financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred

only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that have occurred after the initial

recognition of the asset (a 'loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of

the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial asset or

group of assets is impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about the following events:

2.13

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are

individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed

financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk

characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for

which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

2.13.2

Where a clawback debtor included in sundry insurance receivables has been impaired and is still outstanding after 3 years,

the receivable balance and the impairment amount are written off.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on insurance and other receivables, the amount of

the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash

flows (excluding future credit losses that have been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest

rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is

recognised in profit or loss. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the

current effective interest rate determined under contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on

the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flow from a group of

financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the

individual financial assets in the Group, including:

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for

impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount

by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s

fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest

levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Share capital

Ordinary and preference shares are classified as equity. 

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments

Cash-settled share-based payments

2.14

The equity-settled share-based payments in the Group include the share incentive shares to certain qualifying employees,

the deferred bonus scheme and other share incentives.

The cash-settled share-based payments in the Group include a component of the deferred bonus scheme to senior

management.

2.16.1

Unvested shares relating to equity-settled share-based payments are held as treasury shares until such time as the

counterparty elects to exercise their share option, at which time the treasury share and the corresponding employee benefit

reserve charge are netted off against each other. In the event that the option is not exercised within the appropriate window,

the respective ordinary shares and related treasury shares are cancelled.

A liability equal to the portion of the services received is recognised at the current fair value determined at each statement of

financial position date. Until the liability is settled, the fair value is re-measured at each reporting date and a date of

settlement with any changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss for the period.

2.16

2.16.2

2.15

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with banks, money at call, notice deposits and cash on hand, but do not

include money market securities held for investment. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are

readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Instruments

included in cash and cash equivalents are those with maturity dates of three months or less.

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees of the Group are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at

the grant date. The fair value of the treasury shares pertaining to the share incentive shares is the value of the options less

the value of the notional loan at date of issue.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis

over the applicable vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a

corresponding increase in the employee benefits reserve. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its

estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimate, if any, is

recognised in profit or loss so that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to

the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Policyholder contracts - Investment and insurance

Investment and insurance contract classification

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or, in some cases, both.

Investment contracts

Valuation

Investment management fees on investment contracts and deferred revenue liability (DRL)

Amounts received and claims incurred on investment contracts

Deferred acquisition costs (DAC) in respect of investment contracts

2.17.1

The Group’s valuation methodologies incorporate all factors that market participants would consider and are based on

observable market data. The fair value of a unit linked financial liability is determined by using the current unit price that

reflects the fair values of the financial assets contained within the Group’s unitised investment funds linked to the financial

liability, multiplied by the number of units attributed to the policyholder at the end of the reporting period.

Investment contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms are financial liabilities that are initially recognised at fair value net of

acquisition cost, and are classified at inception as financial liabilities held 'at amortised cost'.

A deferred revenue liability is recognised in respect of upfront fees, which are directly attributable to a contract, that are

charged when securing the investment management service contract. The deferred revenue liability is released to revenue

when the services are provided as the customer received the benefit simultaneously. Therefore revenue is recognised and

released on a monthly basis over the expected duration of the contract.

The Group issues investment management contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms, and without fixed and guaranteed

terms (unit linked).

Investment contracts without fixed and guaranteed terms are financial liabilities of which the fair value is dependent on the

fair value of the underlying financial assets and are designated at inception as 'at fair value through profit or loss'.

Investment contract liabilities measured at fair value are taken as the maximum of the amount repayable on demand or the

statutory calculated liability.

2.17.2

A deferred acquisition cost asset is recognised for all applicable contracts with the amortisation being calculated per

contract.

An impairment test is conducted annually at the end of the reporting period on the deferred acquisition cost balance on a per-

policy basis, to ensure that the amount will be recovered from future revenue generated by the applicable remaining

investment contracts. An impairment is recognised when the contract is prematurely cancelled and the impairment charge is

recognised in profit or loss.

Commissions paid and other incremental acquisition costs are incurred when new investment contracts are entered into or

existing investment contracts are renewed. These costs, if specifically attributable to an investment contract with an

investment management service element, are deferred and amortised on a straight-line basis over the average expected life

of the contract, as they represent the right to receive future management fees.

Investment management fees on investment contracts without fixed and guaranteed terms are recognised when the

performance obligations of the contracts have been fulfilled.

Fees are charged to the customer on a monthly basis, by making a deduction from invested funds, or by deducting the fee

from the premium prior to the purchase of the investment units.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer financial risk with no significant insurance risk. Financial risk is the

risk of a possible future change in one or more of a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,

foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index or other variable.

2.17

Amounts received under investment contracts, such as premiums and investment returns, are credited to investment

contract liabilities.  Claims incurred are recorded as deductions from investment contract liabilities.

An insurance contract is a contract under which the insurer accepts significant insurance risk from the policyholder by

agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the

policyholder. Such contracts may also transfer financial risk. The Group defines significant insurance risk as the possibility

of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event that are significantly more than the benefits payable if the

insured event did not occur. Any reference to "insurance liabilities" or "policyholders liabilities" also includes policyholder

assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Policyholder contracts - Investment and insurance (continued)

Investment contracts (continued)

Receivables and payables related to investment contracts

Insurance contracts

Valuation

In the valuation of policyholder contracts, provision is made for:

• The best estimate of future experience;

• The compulsory margins prescribed in SAP104;

•

•

• Non-profit insurance contracts (Discounted)

• Market linked contracts

Discretionary margins are held where required to reflect possible variability in expected experience or ensure that profit

or risk margins in the premium rate are not recognised before the economic benefit is likely to flow to Assupol Life.

The policyholder contract assumptions are reviewed annually. Any changes in assumptions and/or other changes to the

liability calculation are effected in profit or loss as they occur.

2.17.3

2.17.2

Reserves for minimum maturity values and other guaranteed benefits arising from minimum contractual investment

returns, as calculated per APN110; and

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the

insurance receivable accordingly and recognises that impairment loss in profit or loss. The Group gathers the objective

evidence that an insurance receivable is impaired using the same process adopted for financial assets at amortised cost.

The impairment loss is also calculated under the same method used for these financial assets. These processes are

described in accounting policy 2.13.

Receivables and payables are recognised when due. These include amounts due to and from agents, brokers and

policyholders.

The liability with regard to insurance business is calculated each year using assumptions that are consistent with the market

value / fair value of the assets on that date. In determining the liability/asset, based on a discounted cash flow approach, the

discount rate is derived from the expected returns of the appropriate portfolio of assets supporting this business.

Defined insurance contracts may be measured under existing local practice in terms of IFRS 4 - Insurance contracts.

Assupol Life have applied the actuarial practice notes relating to the South African long-term insurance industry to determine

the accounting policy with regards to the liabilities in respect of issued insurance contracts at the adoption of IFRS.

The FSV method (as prescribed by SAP104) for valuing insurance contracts makes implicit allowance for the deferral of

acquisition costs in the insurance liability and therefore all acquisition costs on insurance contracts are expensed when

incurred.

Policyholder liabilities/assets are determined on a discounted cash flow method in terms of the Financial Soundness

Valuation Method and Assumptions (FSV), as contained in the Standards of Actuarial Practice (SAP) and Actuarial Practice

Notes (APN) of the Actuarial Society of South Africa (SAP104 and APN110).

Liabilities for individual market linked policies, where benefits are in part dependent on the performance of underlying

investment portfolios, are taken as the aggregate value of the policies’ investment in the investment portfolio at the

valuation date, reduced by the excess of the present value of the expected future risk and expense charges (excluding

any explicit profit charges) over the present value of the expected future risk benefits and expenses on a policy by policy

cash flow basis.

The measurement basis for the insurance contracts are divided into the following three categories, based on the nature of

the contracts.

These contracts offer defined benefits that are payable on death. These policies do not participate in annual bonus

distributions.

The policyholder asset / liability is calculated as the discounted value of the expected future benefit payments, plus the

future administrative expenses that are directly related to the contract, less the discounted value of expected future

premiums.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Policyholder contracts - Investment and insurance (continued)

Insurance contracts (continued)

• Group insurance contracts (Undiscounted)

Outstanding claims provisions

Embedded derivatives

Liability adequacy test

Premium income

Premium income originates from various sources, and is recognised as follows:

• Individual insurance contracts - recurring: when due;

• Individual insurance contracts - single: when received; and

• Group schemes: when received.

Insurance benefits and claims

Reinsurance recoveries are accounted for in the same period as the related claim.

Claims that have been reported, and are not yet paid, are shown as outstanding claims and are stated gross of reinsurance.

The post claim liability consists of two elements namely claims that have been reported i.e. outstanding reported claims,

as well as claims that have not yet been reported i.e. incurred but not reported (IBNR). Outstanding reported claims are

included in 'insurance and other payables'. An IBNR provision is held as part of the insurance contracts liabilities. The

IBNR provisions are either based on a percentage of the premiums payable or Bornhuetter-Ferguson run-off triangles.

The Bornhuetter-Ferguson method of estimating outstanding claims combines an estimated loss ratio method with a

projection method, which refers to methods such as the basic chain ladder method that is based on past claim amounts

and / or numbers.

At each end of a reporting period the adequacy of the insurance liabilities is assessed. If the assessment shows that the

carrying amount of the insurance liabilities (as measured under a prospective gross premium valuation basis), net of any

related intangible present value of acquired in-force business (PVIF) assets, is inadequate in the light of the estimated future

cash flows (based on the best estimate basis underlying the FSV basis, but excluding compulsory margins as prescribed in

SAP104), the deficiency is recognised in profit or loss.

2.17.3

Derivatives embedded in an insurance contract are not separated and measured at fair value if the embedded derivative

itself qualifies for recognition as an insurance contract. As such, the Group does not separately measure any embedded

derivatives as they qualify for recognition as an insurance contract and are measured as insurance contracts. The liability in

respect of the investment guarantees underlying maturity and death benefits on the 'Conventional with-profits' policies and

some of the 'New Series Universal Business' policies are measured in accordance with the actuarial guidance note APN110.

Future asset returns are projected stochastically using a recognised actuarial model, i.e. the XSG risk-neutral model. The

model has been calibrated to current market conditions in South Africa. The costs arising from the guarantees are

calculated in each simulation and the liability is then calculated based on the mean present value of these costs.

Claims on insurance contracts that include death, disability, maturity, and surrender payments, are recognised in profit or

loss when incurred, based on the estimated liability for compensation owed to policyholders. It also includes claims that

arise from death and disability events that have occurred up to the end of the reporting period even if the claims were not

reported to the life insurer (IBNR claims).

Premium income on insurance contracts is shown gross of outward reinsurance. Premiums are shown before deduction of

commission and administration fees.  Premium income received in advance is included in insurance and other payables.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other liabilities

A liability is derecognised when it is legally extinguished.

Financial liabilities excluding policyholder liabilities under investment contracts

Initial classification and recognition

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value.

Subsequent measurement

Policyholder liabilities under investment contracts

Initial classification and recognition

Subsequent measurement

Refer to accounting policy 2.17.2 for a detailed description of the valuation of these contracts.

Employee benefits

Retirement fund

Leave pay accrual

Bonus provision

2.18.1

2.19.1

2.19.3

2.19.2

A provision is raised for the cash bonuses of executive and senior management, based on the Group's incentive scheme.  

These financial liabilities are accounted for 'at fair value through profit or loss' and 'at amortised cost'.

2.19

The accounting policy for share-based payment (refer note 2.16) determines the treatment of the long-term incentive

component of the Group's incentive scheme for management. The expense of the deferred bonus is recognised over the

period of the restriction from the date that the bonus is granted.  

The Group contributes to a defined contribution pension fund for employees. The fund is registered in terms of the Pension

Funds Act, 24 of 1956. Contributions in respect of current service cost are based on a percentage of pensionable earnings

and are accounted for in profit or loss as incurred. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions

have been paid.  The contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due. 

A provision is raised for employee bonuses, based on a percentage of their annual package. Bonuses arise as a result of a

constructive obligation and are payable to employees at the discretion of the Board of Directors, taking cognisance of the

financial results and individual key performance areas for the year under review.

The Group recognises in full employees' rights to annual leave entitlement in respect of past service.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity.

Financial liabilities carried on the Statement of Financial Position include all liabilities except for policyholder liabilities under

insurance contracts, employee benefits, deferred revenue liability, deferred taxation as well as current taxation.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Liabilities classified at 'fair value through profit or loss' are subsequently carried at fair value and changes in fair value are

recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income under 'value adjustments on investment contract liabilities'.

Financial liabilities classified 'at amortised cost' are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate

method.

2.18.2

2.18
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Segment information

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
 

Policyholder liabilities / assets under long-term insurance contracts

-

-

-

-

-

For further information refer note 28 to the financial statements.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the

related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

3.1

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the integral reporting provided to the chief operating decision-

maker in the Group namely the Group Executive Committee. The committee is empowered to make strategic decisions and

is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

The determination of the liabilities / assets under long-term insurance contracts is dependent on estimates made by the

Group. The assumptions and estimates used to arrive at these liabilities / assets are described in note 4 to the financial

statements.

The Group's operations are analysed across three reportable operating segments, namely individual business, group

business and other operations.  This is consistent with the way the Group manages the business.

The percentage of South African population that was vaccinated as well as the fact that a large portion of the Group's

policyholders are first line workers, were considered.

The following methodology was used to determine the COVID-19 reserves:

Consideration was given to the Group's own actual experience compared to the long term assumptions and the

experience published by the South African Medical Research Council.

R62.5 million of the reserve that was included in policyholder liabilities at the end of the 2021 financial year was

released during the financial year as no further claims pertaining to past or the current waves were expected.

A new reserve was established for excess deaths for Assupol's individual business and group business channels. The

balance of this reserve at the end of the financial year was R175.5 million (R126.4 million after tax).

Segment information is prepared in conformity with the measure that is reported to the Group Executive Committee. The

values are reconciled to the consolidated annual financial statements. The measures reported by the Group is in

accordance with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the consolidated annual financial statements.

2.20

The segment revenue and expenses comprise of all revenue and expenses which are directly attributable to the segment, or

can be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis. Only those segment assets and liabilities that are directly

attributable to the segment or can be reasonably allocated, are disclosed in the segment report.

3.2

A scenario was established to quantify the best estimate of the most likely financial outcome based on all relevant and

reliable external data sources, whilst recognising that the range of outcomes is large.

The assets under long-term insurance contracts decreased by R63.5 million resulting in a net year-end asset balance of

R2 633.4 million (net of reinsurance).

Impairment tests are performed on all cash generating units ('CGU') to which goodwill is allocated. A cash generating unit is

the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows generated by other

groups of assets. Impairment losses recognised against goodwill may not be reversed. In assessing a possible impairment,

judgements and estimates are made of the future cash flows and the appropriate discount rates in determining the value of

the cash generating unit.  Refer note 4.1 and 19 to the financial statements for assumptions used and further information.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
 

Current and deferred taxation

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Leases

It was assumed that surrenders for GRSP and GISP products will only occur in the last two years of the term of the

product, with a 20% assumption for each of the last two years. Management will monitor this assumption annually as

there is currently no sufficient experience available to inform another view. If the assumption was 10%, the deferred

taxation asset would increase to R152.8 million.

For endowments linked to a structured note, partial surrenders to occur at end of year 1 and 3, based on 50% of the

original nominal value, plus accrued interest.

In terms of the taxation methodology applied in the IPF, Assupol Life has accumulated (“I-E”) losses in excess of R1.22

billion (2021: R1.37 billion) as a result of the deductible expenses (“E”) (being mostly commission expenses for risk policies)

far exceeding the taxable income (“I”) (being mostly investment income from the investment policies). With new business

written in the IPF, constituting mostly investment policies, the fund has started generating excess “I” over “E” resulting in the

utilisation of the assessed loss.

Assupol Life has four separate taxation funds namely the individual policyholders’ fund (IPF) (taxed at 30% in both years),

the untaxed policyholders’ fund (UPF) (not taxed), risk policy fund (RPF) (taxed at 28% in both years) and the corporate fund

(taxed at 28% in both years). Assupol Life has not issued any insurance contracts to corporate entities, hence does not

maintain a separate corporate policyholder fund. 

The Group is subject to taxation in South Africa. There may be transactions and calculations for which the ultimate taxation

determination has an element of uncertainty during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities based

on objective estimates of the amount of taxation that may be due.  Where the final taxation determination is different from the 

amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will impact the income taxation and deferred taxation provisions in the

period in which such determination was made. The corporate taxation rate in South Africa at the end of the financial year

was 28% (2021: 28%). 

Deferred taxation assets are assessed for probable recoverability based on applicable estimated future business

performance and related taxable projected income.

The Group has applied IFRS 16 to all qualifying leases. At date of recognition, the company recognises the right-of-use

asset and lease liability. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprise the initial amount of lease liability

adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred. The lease

liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments at date of recognition.

Management has performed projections that indicate that the recovery of the assessed loss in the IPF remains probable due

to the volumes of guaranteed-return single-premium policies (GRSP) , guaranteed-income single-premium plan (GISP) and

linked policies being written. As a result a deferred taxation asset of R143.2 million (2021: R110.7 million) was recognised in

terms of IAS 12: Income taxes. A component of this amount relates to the existing savings book. These projections were

based on the following assumptions:

Investment returns remain uncertain, with the single-premium business being particularly sensitive to changes in the

interest rates;

The Group has lease agreements for various properties and equipment. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis

and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants but leased

assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes. Extension and termination options are included in a number of

property leases. These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of

extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective lessor. These options

are not included in the calculation of the right-of-use assets or lease liability as the majority of these contracts are not

extended beyond the lease term and termination cost cannot be determined on a reliable basis.

There is uncertainty around future changes to taxation legislation;

3.3

It was announced that the corporate income tax rate will change from 28% to 27% for years of assessments commencing on

or after 1 April 2022. The Group has applied the adjusted rate to the calculation of the deferred taxation. This has reduced

the tax expense in profit and loss by R31.1 million.

A 5-year projection term was used as it coincides with the Group's business planning cycle. Where GRSP or GISP

products were sold with terms in excess of 5 years, this was also incorporated;

The investment returns for GRSP and GISP products were modelled on the rates stipulated in the contracts, applying

section 24J.

A level of conservatism was applied to the new business assumption within the projections, given the sensitivity of new

business to interest rates levels, affecting the timing and quantum of sales relating to single-premium business;

For the endowments linked to a structured note, the interest component was modelled based on the interest rate per the

notes, applying section 24J.

3.4
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
 

3.4 Leases (continued)

4. ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES RELATING TO POLICYHOLDER (ASSETS) / LIABILITIES

Assumptions for discounted liabilities

The results of the experience investigations are briefly described below:

Demographic: Mortality

Demographic: Withdrawal

Operational: Expenses

•

•

• Once-off expenses are identified and excluded from the analysis.

Economic: Investment returns

• The current zero coupon yield curve (assuming appropriate duration); less

• A compulsory margin (prescribed as being 0.25%).

The following long-term assumptions were applied for each asset class (net of any credit default allowance):

Assupol Life

2022 2021

Debt securities and other loans 9.30% 7.40%

Deposits and money market securities 7.30% 5.40%

Equity securities 12.80% 10.90%

Policyholder loans 14.80% 12.90%

Loans to personnel 9.30% 7.40%

Foreign investments 8.30% 6.40%

Net current assets 0.00% 0.00%

4.1

The investment return assumption for all classes of business was determined based on:

A detailed withdrawal investigation was carried out for the year ending 30 June 2022 based on homogeneous groupings of

business. Based on this investigation (and those carried out for the previous year), the withdrawal assumptions for the main

classes of business were set to reflect the recent and expected future experience. The impact of the changes made is

disclosed in note 4.4.

The allocation of total expenses between initial and renewal is based on management's best estimate for both group

and individual business.  The analysis compares historic expenses (last year's assumptions plus inflation) and budgets.

The current assumed level of future expense inflation is 6.8% (2021: 5.21%) per annum for Assupol Life. This level of

inflation is supported by Assupol Life's actual expense experience, the inflation implied by the fixed and index linked

yield curves, the South African Reserve Bank’s long-term inflation target of between 3% and 6%, and the assumption

that life companies typically suffer expense increases slightly above general inflation.

The key assumptions used in the calculation of the insurance liabilities are based on recent experience investigations of

Assupol Life's business. Every year each assumption is reviewed based on the results of the most recent experience

investigations. The intention is to arrive at a best estimate of Assupol Life's experience. Once the best estimate is

determined, compulsory margins (per the Actuarial Society of South Africa's Standard of Actuarial Practice SAP104) are

incorporated as described above. Where data is not credible, more prudent assumptions are used based on industry data

where available.  However, for the bulk of Assupol Life's business, internal data was used.  

The discount rate applied relating to the head office building have been determined at the rate implicit to the lease of 7.03%

up to end of April 2022. The existing lease conditions were renegotiated with effect from May 2022 with the lease period

being extended for another 5 years and the monthly rental amount being reduced. This has resulted in the remeasurement

of the lease liability.  The finance charges has been based on the incremental borrowing rate of 11.64%.

The valuation of insurance assets / liabilities is a function of methodology and assumptions. The methodology is described in the

accounting policies. The assumptions used are best estimate assumptions, with the addition of explicit compulsory margins as

prescribed by SAP104 of the Actuarial Society of South Africa, liabilities for minimum contractual investment returns as

prescribed by APN110, as well as additional allowed discretionary margins.

A detailed mortality investigation was undertaken for homogeneous groupings of business for the year ending 30 June 2022

based on the in-force data file, movements and claims during the year. These results were used to set the mortality

assumptions relative to the latest published local assured lives.  The impact of the changes made is disclosed in note 4.4.

The incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities relating to property leases for branch offices ranges between

8.10% and 9.27%. The incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities relating to equipment leases ranges

between 6.15% and 11.55%.
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4. ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES RELATING TO POLICYHOLDER (ASSETS) / LIABILITIES (continued)

Assumptions for discounted liabilities (continued)

The expected long-term returns assumptions used in the valuation are:

Assupol Life

2022 2021

Debt securities and other loans 9.30% 7.40%

Non unit linked business (excluding with-profits business) 9.30% 7.40%

With-profits business 9.30% 7.40%

Unit linked business 9.30% 7.40%

Economic: Taxation

Assumption 2022 margin adjustment 2021 margin adjustment

Investment return 0.25% increase/decrease * 0.25% increase/decrease *

Mortality 7.5% increase 7.5% increase

Expenses 10.0% increase 10.0% increase

Expense inflation 10.0% increase 10.0% increase

Lapses (where relevant) 25.0% increase/decrease * 25.0% increase/decrease *

Surrenders (where relevant) 10.0% increase/decrease * 10.0% increase/decrease *

* Depending on which change increases the liability.

Assumptions for undiscounted liabilities

Assumptions for investment contracts

The account balance as a minimum is held in all instances and this is fully matched by the underlying assets.

The above-mentioned assumptions have been taken into account in the valuation together with inclusion of compulsory

margins as prescribed by SAP104.  The compulsory margins used during the year under review are as follows:

4.3

The Bornhuetter-Ferguson method of estimating outstanding claims combines an estimated loss ratio method with a

projection method. Here, 'projection method' refers to methods such as the basic chain ladder method which are based on

past claim amounts and/or numbers.

The Bornhuetter-Ferguson method therefore improves on the sole use of a loss ratio method by taking account of the

information provided by the latest development pattern of the claims, whilst the addition of the loss ratio to a projection

method serves to add some stability against distortions in the development pattern.

Future taxation and taxation relief are allowed for at the rates and on the bases applicable to section 29A of the Income Tax

Act, 58 of 1962, at the end of the reporting period. Assupol Life's current taxation position is taken into account, and taxation

rates, consistent with that position and the likely future changes in that position, are allowed for. In particular, the Individual

Policyholder Fund is in a taxation loss position and is expected to stay in that position for the foreseeable future.

4.2

IBNR provisions are calculated for the annually renewable group business and for the individual risk business. These are

either based on a percentage of the premiums payable or Bornhuetter-Ferguson run-off triangles. These have been

established at a level which is appropriate based on historic trends.

4.1
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4. ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES RELATING TO POLICYHOLDER (ASSETS) / LIABILITIES (continued)

Effect of changes in assumptions

•

The following changes were made to the actuarial valuation basis when compared to last year’s basis:

•

•

•

•

•

• The real return gap increased from 2.19% to 2.50%, resulting in expense inflation to decrease from 7.11% to 6.8%.

• Individual IBNR's were explicitly included in the best-estimate reserves.

•

•

CONSOLIDATED

2022 2021

R'000 R'000

Modelling changes and data refinements on opening liabilities 43 633         (1 165)         

Change in APN110 reserve 389              243              

Change in mortality assumptions: COVID-19 reserve (81 361)       (164 491)     

Change in mortality assumptions (6 766)         (27 811)       

Change in withdrawal rate and not-taken-up assumptions (135 981)     (14 923)       

Change in investment return assumptions and Inflation assumptions (233 653)     (96 440)       

Change in real return gap 102 550       59 025         

Individual IBNR and operational assumptions (37 842)       -               

Voluntary premium and benefit increases (2 353)         (5)                 

Group business -               (16 397)       

Change in claw-back scale -               (12 548)       

Change in renewal expense assumptions 111 170       (78 965)       

Total change in basis (240 214)     (353 477)     

Modelling and data changes included changes to the Guaranteed Investment Single Premium product, the expansion of

the duration of lapse tables, and updating of calendar mortality loadings. Furthermore, the previous conservative

approximation selected in the valuation model of Progress Legacy rating classes was refined where the data extract

was expanded to allow for different rating classes per risk. The refinement resulted in a decrease in reserves of R59.9

million and has no effect on future periods.

The investment return assumption on the unit reserves increased from 7.8% to 8.6% p.a., the investment return

assumption on the non-unit reserves increased from 7.4% to 9.3% p.a. and the expense inflation assumption increased

from 5.4% to 7.11%.

The take-up assumptions for voluntary premium and benefit increases have increased from 75% to 80% for Direct

Marketing.

The withdrawal and not-taken-up assumptions were updated in accordance to the most recent withdrawal experience

investigation.

Mortality loadings were added to the reinsurance risk rates to align experience with the Hannover Re treaty addendum.

Modelling changes and data refinements were made to the opening reserves rather than the closing reserves to improve the

comparability of the expected and actual cash flows in the analysis of surplus (AOS). The main adjustments were made in

respect of the following:

The unused portion of the COVID-19 reserve that was set up in the previous financial year was released. A reserve for

excess deaths was created for the individual and group business. It was based on the estimated deviation from the

long term experience. 

The following table quantifies the impact of changes on the net profit after taxation, i.e. increase / (decrease) in profit, made

in the assumptions from the previous periods.

The stochastic reserve was updated in line with market experience.

4.4

The renewal expense assumption was decreased for individual business and kept unchanged for Cornerstone

business.
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4. ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES RELATING TO POLICYHOLDER (ASSETS) / LIABILITIES (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Total (asset) / 

liability Change % change

Total (asset) / 

liability Change % change

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Main basis (2 633 385)  (2 696 877)   

Renewal expenses +10% (2 130 531)  502 854       19% (2 225 834)   471 043       17%

Inflation +1% (2 150 722)  482 663       18% (2 239 087)   457 790       17%

Investment return -1% (2 326 505)  306 880       12% (2 406 984)   289 893       11%

Withdrawals +10% (2 646 349)  (12 964)       0% (2 696 973)   (96)               0%

Risk experience +10% (1 984 119)  649 266       25% (2 046 652)   650 225       24%

30 June 2022

Insurance 

contracts Change

Reinsurance 

assets Change

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Main basis (2 567 083)   (66 302)       

Renewal expenses +10% (2 064 229)   502 854        (66 302)       -               

Inflation +1% (2 084 420)   482 663        (66 302)       -               

Investment return -1% (2 258 335)   308 748        (68 170)       (1 868)         

Withdrawals +10% (2 580 569)   (13 486)        (65 780)       522              

Risk experience +10% (1 733 107)   833 976        (251 012)     (184 710)     

30 June 2021

Insurance 

contracts Change

Reinsurance 

assets Change

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Main basis (2 596 284)   (100 593)     

Renewal expenses +10% (2 125 241)   471 043        (100 593)     -               

Inflation +1% (2 138 495)   457 789        (100 592)     -               

Investment return -1% (2 304 648)   291 636        (102 336)     (1 743)         

Withdrawals +10% (2 596 735)   (451)             (100 238)     354              

Risk experience +10% (1 761 603)   834 681        (285 049)     (184 457)     

4.5

2021

The sensitivities for the total liabilities are separately disclosed for the insurance contracts and reinsurance assets below.

The above figures combine discounted and undiscounted liabilities. The latter is not sensitive to the assumptions as they are

valued retrospectively. 

The sensitivity of the insurance liabilities to the main assumptions was tested by calculating the effect of certain assumptions

not being met. In each case below, one assumption changes whilst all the other assumptions remain constant. The size of

the sensitivities was chosen to illustrate the impacts for changes in key variables that would have a significant impact on the

insurance liabilities, as well as to facilitate comparison with the sensitivities disclosed by other major insurers.

2022



ASSUPOL HOLDINGS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  for the year ended 30 June 2022 Page 47

5. RISK MANAGEMENT
 

Governance and Operational Standards for Insurers

• The composition and governance of the Board of Directors;

• The appointment of the heads of the control functions;

•

• The key risk management policies, namely:

• Fit and Proper policy

• Remuneration policy

•

• Underwriting Risk Management policy

• Reinsurance policy

• Concentration Risk Management policy (excluding investment concentration risk)

• Operational Risk Management policy

• Risk Management policy

• Insurance Fraud Risk Management policy

• ORSA policy

• Outsourcing policy

• Business Continuity Management policy

• Capital Management and Dividend policy; and

• Various Information Technology policies.

Responsibility for risk management

The compilation of the committees is described below:

•

Investment policy (also incorporating asset-liability management, liquidity risk management and concentration risk

as it relates to investment management)

The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in its evaluation of the adequacy, effectiveness and efficiency of the

internal control systems, accounting practices, information systems, auditing and actuarial valuation processes applied

by the long-term insurer in the day-to-day management of the Group. It reviews the accounting policies and financial

statements of the Group. It also oversees the internal audit and external audit processes, and facilitates and promotes

communication between the external auditor, internal auditor, Head of Actuarial Control Function and executive

management. The committee is chaired by an independent non-executive director, comprises three independent non-

executive directors and meets on a quarterly basis.

5.1

5.2

The Assupol Group has adopted a risk management framework that is based on the ISO31000 standard. The risk management

framework, together with associated policies required in terms of the Governance and Operational Standards for Insurers (GOIs)

and compliance with the Solvency Assessment and Management (SAM) framework of the Prudential Authority of South Africa,

embody the formal risk management efforts of the Group. Management is continually reviewing and improving on the formal risk

management efforts in order to further enhance the sustainability of the Group's business.

As a custodian of policyholder funds, a key risk for the Group is that the proceeds from its assets will not be sufficient to fund the

obligations arising from its insurance and investment contracts. The risk arises from the presence of financial or insurance risk in

the contracts issued by the Group.

The Group has a number of committees which deals with the various aspects relating to policies for accepting risks,

including selection and approval of risks to be insured, use of limits and avoiding undue concentrations of risk, underwriting

strategies to ensure the appropriate risk classification and premium levels.

The Board dissolved the Investment Committee following the approval by a majority of shareholders at the annual general

meeting in November 2021 to adjust the Memorandum of Incorporation accordingly. The functions of this committee were

incorporated into the Risk Committee.

The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility for establishing and communicating appropriate risk and control

policies and ensuring that adequate risk management processes are in place.  

The establishment of the control functions namely risk management, compliance, internal audit and actuarial; and

The Board implemented the requirements of the standards of which the salient features are:
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5 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
 

Responsibility for risk management (continued)

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

The Risk Committee is tasked with ensuring that a proper risk management framework and appropriate reporting

channels are implemented for the entire Assupol Group. It furthermore oversees the asset management process of the

Assupol Group according to guidelines and objectives set by the Investment Policy document and in conjunction with

the Asset Liability Matching analysis as compiled by the statutory actuary. The committee is chaired by an independent

non-executive director, comprises two non-executive directors and one executive director. The committee meets on a

quarterly basis.

The Assupol Life Executive Committee performs all executive functions delegated to it by the Board of Directors of

Assupol Life and oversees the proper administration and reporting of business performance and overall sales and

industry risks.  The committee is chaired by the Group Chief Executive Officer and meets on a monthly basis.

The mandate of the Nomination Committee includes considering and recommending to the Board nominees to serve on

the Board, considering and recommending to the Board the removal of any non-executive director, and considering and

recommending to the Board new nominees to fill vacancies as and when they arise. The committee is chaired by a non-

executive director.  It comprises four non-executive directors and meets at least once a year.

Risk management is implemented at an operational level through a number of committees that meet on an ad-hoc

basis, including amongst others the Assupol Life Management Committee, Credit Control Committee, Procurement

Committee, Group Actuarial Committee, Risk Steering Committee, Taxation Committee, Claims Risk Forum, Expense

Management Forum, Sales Forum, IFRS17 Steering Committee, Information Technology Forum, and Operational

Forum.

The Group Executive Committee (Exco) monitors the operations of all companies in the Assupol Group and the

implementation of the strategic vision of the Board of Directors. The committee comprises of the executive directors

and the prescribed officers of Assupol Holdings and meets on a monthly basis. The committee is supported by the

Assupol Life Executive Committee.

5.2

The Actuarial Committee supports the Board of Directors with its obligations under Solvency Assessment and

Management (SAM), and its reporting responsibilities under IFRS. The committee also evaluates, considers and where

necessary makes recommendations to the Board and management regarding actuarial assumptions and projections.

The committee consists of two executive and two non-executive directors and is chaired by an independent non-

executive director.  The committee meets at least quarterly.

The Remuneration Committee is tasked to consider and determine the remuneration policy of all employees of the

Assupol Group. The Group Remuneration Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive director. The

committee comprises three non-executive directors and meets on a quarterly basis.

The Social and Ethics Committee was established to address the statutory duties as prescribed in regulation 43(5) of

the Companies Act, 71 of 2008. The committee is chaired by an independent non-executive director. It comprises one

non-executive director and one executive directors.  The committee meets on a quarterly basis.
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5 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Insurance risk

2022 2021

Contracts offered by the Group Contract type % of premium % of premium

Individual insurance business Insurance 84.1% 83.5%

Group risk business Insurance 15.9% 16.5%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

• Monthly monitoring of solvency position;

•

• Quarterly analysis of surplus monitoring.

•

• A biennial asset liability modelling exercise as described in note 5.4.2.c; and

• Premium rates certification as described in note 5.3.1.

Mortality and morbidity risk

•

•

•

•

•

Factors affecting mortality and morbidity risks:

•

> pandemics such as COVID-19 or epidemics such as AIDS or extensive drug-resistant tuberculosis;

> widespread changes in lifestyle (smoking, exercise, eating, sexual practices);

>

>

• Adverse economic conditions can potentially affect the quantity of morbidity claims where benefits are determined in

terms of the ability to perform an occupation.

The most significant factors that could substantially increase the frequency of claims, resulting in more or earlier claims

(mortality and morbidity risk), are:

the income bracket (the lower-income market is more susceptible to extreme weather conditions, and has less

access to quality medical care); and

Underwriting processes are in place to manage exposure to death and disability risks. The most significant measures are:

Premium rates are required to be certified by the Head of Actuarial Control Function as being financially sound.

Annual experience investigations are conducted, and are supplemented by quarterly reviews, to set premium rates.

Reinsurance arrangements are negotiated in order to limit the risk on any individual contract.

All new premium rates are approved and authorised by the Head of Actuarial Control Function prior to being issued.

New products are also reviewed and approved by the Actuarial and the Risk Committees.

The Sales Committee, comprising the Group Executive: Sales and the regional managers in the Group, meets on a quarterly

basis to discuss and monitor market, sales and product related matters. Geographical and industry statistics of

policyholders are analysed and decisions are taken accordingly to ensure pro-active interventions.

The actuarial valuations department performs the following tasks for Assupol Life of which the outcome is reported at the

relevant board committees and management committees.

5.3.1

The Actuarial Committee supports the Head of Actuarial Control Function in his responsibility for the oversight of insurance

risk.

Insurance risk is the risk that benefit payments and related expenses exceed those allowed for within Assupol Life's

insurance liabilities. Insurance events are random and the actual number and amount of claims and benefits will vary from

year to year. The timing is specifically influenced by future mortality, morbidity, and withdrawal rates about which

assumptions are made in order to place a value on the liabilities. Deviations from assumptions will result in actual cash

flows different from those projected in liability calculations.  As such, each assumption represents a source of uncertainty.

the sector of employment (such as SAPS members that are exposed to the violent element of society).

Quarterly experience monitoring (such as expense, mortality, withdrawal and economic experience against 

assumptions); and

Quarterly parallel run confirming the statutory and financial reporting valuations produced by the in-house valuation

division;

The following table analyses the contracts offered by the Group and provides an indication of where the concentration of the

risk lies.

The larger the portfolio of uncorrelated insurance risks, the smaller the relative variability about the expected outcome will

be. A larger population of insured risks leads to more diversified insurance risks, and in turn, reduces the deviations from

the base risk assumptions.

5.3

The Head of Actuarial Control Function is tasked with the following (in addition to the required annual statutory

responsibilities):
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mortality and morbidity risk (continued)

Individual insurance business

•

• How risks are managed:

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

The table below shows the concentration of individual insurance contract benefits by sum assured at risk.

Consolidated Sum assured at risk Before reinsurance After reinsurance *

R'000 % R'000 %

30 June 2022

20 000 34 602 017      26.53% 34 183 723    43.35%

50 000 25 871 312      19.83% 26 849 067    34.05%

100 000 5 775 190        4.43% 8 048 885      10.21%

200 000 8 115 763        6.22% 6 338 200      8.04%

500 000 17 014 391      13.04% 3 433 369      4.35%

39 069 828      29.95% -                 0.00%

Total 100.00% 78 853 244    100.00%

30 June 2021

20 000 34 350 376      29.63% 33 970 166    46.46%

50 000 23 520 918      20.29% 24 741 117    33.84%

100 000 5 375 637        4.64% 7 092 683      9.70%

200 000 7 924 379        6.84% 5 010 412      6.86%

500 000 14 339 462      12.37% 2 295 157      3.14%

30 411 967      26.23% -                 0.00%

Total 115 922 739    100.00% 73 109 535    100.00%

Frequent experience investigations are carried out to monitor the experience against actuarial assumptions.

Recommendations on corrective actions are discussed at the Actuarial Committee.

0   - 

0   - 

These are contracts providing benefits on death, disability, critical illness and accident that are sold directly to

individuals.

200 000   - 

Premium rates are differentiated on the basis of age, gender, socio-economic rating, smoker status level, and the

results of underwriting investigations. This is done to reduce the cross-subsidisation of risks and the possibility of

anti-selection.  Experience investigations have shown these are reliable indicators of the risk exposure.

Applications for risk cover are subject to underwriting rules. Where risk cover is above certain limits, it is reviewed

by experienced underwriters and evaluated against established standards.

Risk premiums on most conventional and market-related contracts may be adjusted within the terms and conditions

of the contracts.

> 500 000     

100 000   - 

Compulsory testing for HIV is carried out in all cases where the applications for risk cover exceed limits specified

for specific products. Where HIV tests are not required, this is fully reflected in the pricing and experience is closely

monitored.

130 448 501     

Underwriting is done to identify abnormal risks and, if necessary, take appropriate actions such as additional

premium loadings, exclusions or alteration of benefit terms.

20 000   - 

R

The nature of risks varies depending on the class of business. The material classes of business most affected by these risks

are discussed below:

Reinsurance arrangements are used for specific products where the single risk for a policy is high or where

business does not have sufficient experience as yet. The arrangements for those products are to limit the risk of

any single policy. A portion of every sum assured is reinsured up to the retention level. Sums assured above the

retention level are reinsured on a renewable risk premium basis for Assupol Life. Facultative arrangements are

used for sub-standard lives and large sums assured. No catastrophe cover has been purchased, as the quota

share reinsurance is deemed sufficient currently.  Reinsurance optimisation reviews are also performed.

200 000   - 

50 000   - 

5.3.1

> 500 000     

* The sum assured at risk for each individual policy reduces when the policy is reinsured. The analysis of the "Before reinsurance" sum

insured at risk and the "After reinsurance" sum insured at risk have been individually assessed as the sum insured at risk is reduced when

the policy is reinsured, this will result in a movement between categories from a higher "Before reinsurance" category to a lower "After

reinsurance" category.

The mortality assumptions were reviewed in light of the revised reinsurer risk rates provided. A reserve was

created in the modelling to account for projected excess deaths arising from a pandemic.

20 000   - 

50 000   - 

100 000   - 
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mortality and morbidity risk (continued)

Group scheme and grouped individual insurance business

•

• Factors specifically affecting this class:

>

> Underwriting processes may be streamlined, with cover supplied up to certain limits without underwriting.

• How risks are managed:

>

>

> Rate reviews take into account known trends such as experience due to AIDS.

> Regular profitability assessments are performed by management.

Consolidated

Scheme size (based on number of lives covered) Number % Number %

0 - 1 000 20                 34.48% 28                42.42%

1 000 - 5 000 16                 27.59% 15                22.73%

> 5 000   22                 37.93% 23                34.85%

Total 58                 100.00% 66                100.00%

Business retention risk

•

• Factors affecting these risks:

> Economic conditions and/or consumer trends can strongly influence business retention rates.

>

>

>

>

• How risks are managed:

>

>

>

>

>

>

Where withdrawal benefits are payable on termination, these can be adjusted to recover certain expenses.

However, market and legislative forces restrict the extent to which this may be done.

Policyholders generally have a right to pay reduced or no future premiums, or to terminate the contract completely

before expiry of the contract term.

Rates are reviewed monthly, based on scheme experience, and can be amended with a one-month notice period.

The various premium collection methods are being evaluated for effectiveness. New premium collection methods

are investigated to diversify premium recoveries. Preference is given to reliable, regulated and secure premium

deduction facilities.

2021

5.3.1

The business retention rates of all intermediaries are monitored monthly on an individual basis, and corrective

action can be suggested and implemented, e.g. the preference of new business sources from deduction methods

with improved premium recovery rates.

Commission clawback terms included in contracts with intermediaries enable the Group to mitigate some of the risk

of early termination.

A lack of affordability testing (economic power and personal financial planning skill of the policyholders) by the

intermediaries, especially within the lower-income market, can adversely affect business retention levels.

The table below shows the concentration of group schemes by scheme size. 

2022

5.3.2

These are contracts that provide life and/or accidental death cover to members of a group of which all members have a

specific commonality (e.g. clients or employees of a specific company).

Contracts are similar to individual insurance contracts but there is a greater risk of correlation between claims on

group schemes because the assured lives live in the same geographical location or work in the same industry.

Group rates are calculated (where reliably available) based on the rating class of the group, the historical

experience of the group and, if the group is only located in a single province, then the province is evaluated as well.

The rates therefore on average reflect the actual mortality experience, hence reducing mortality risk. There is

residual mortality risk resulting from delays in identifying worsening experience and adjusting charges as well as

marketing pressures.

Expenses incurred in the acquisition of contracts are expected to be recouped over the term of the policy. These

may not be recovered where the premiums are reduced or the contract terminated early.

Frequent withdrawal investigations are carried out to monitor the experience against actuarial assumptions.

Recommendations and corrective actions are discussed at the Actuarial Committee.

The liability held for some contracts may be less than the termination benefit payable. The net group surplus will

reduce if these contracts terminate early.

The Credit Control Committee awards new intermediary contracts only to brokers that have the required

experience, qualifications and industry accreditation.

Terminations can have the effect of increasing insurance risk - e.g. policyholders whose health has deteriorated are

less likely on average to terminate a contract providing death benefits.
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management

Financial risk

•

•

•

•

Consolidated 2022 2021

R'000 R'000

Market-related business (Investment contracts (note 29))

Individual market-related business 4 121 547    3 920 585    

Other business (Insurance contracts (note 28)) (2 633 385)  (2 696 877)  

Conventional individual risk business 32 282         40 203         

Other individual risk business (2 797 688)  (2 876 207)  

Group risk business 130 629       137 197       

Liability for embedded derivatives 1 392           1 930           

Total net policyholder liabilities 1 488 162    1 223 708    

The main financial risks to which the Group is exposed are described below under various contract categories. Each

category represents distinct financial risks. Some categories may include both insurance and investment contracts.

The table below analyses the net total policyholder liabilities between market-related and other business at the end of the

reporting period.

An asset liability modelling exercise is performed every second year. At the quarterly meetings of the Risk Committee

the actual asset allocations are monitored against strategic asset allocations for each portfolio. 

The excess assets are exposed to market fluctuations, which may reduce the value of assets supporting the capital

position. This is mitigated by having clearly defined sub-portfolios within the shareholder portfolio, with an appropriate

asset allocation strategy for each portfolio, so that the level of market risk is appropriate relative to the aim of the sub-

portfolio.

The life company within the Group matches its assets and liabilities as accurately as is practically and optimally

possible. GRSP and GISP liabilities are matched at inception with an asset with the same term and return at least

equal to the guaranteed return offered to the client. The Risk Committee reviews the asset management arrangements

of the Group and monitors investment performance in terms of mandates and set benchmarks.

Financial risk is the risk that an entity will not have adequate cash flows to meet financial obligations. The Assupol Group

and the company are exposed to financial risk through its financial assets, financial liabilities, reinsurance assets and

insurance liabilities. The key financial risk is that of the proceeds from the Group’s financial assets being insufficient to fund

the obligations arising from its insurance and investment contract liabilities.  The key mitigating actions include:

5.4.1

5.4
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk (continued)

30 June 2022

R'000 R'000 R'000

Market-related business (Investment contracts (note 29))

Individual market-related business 4 121 547    -               4 121 547    

Other business (Insurance contracts (note 28)) (2 567 083)   (66 302)       (2 633 385)  

Conventional individual risk business 32 282          -               32 282         

Other individual risk business (2 731 386)   (66 302)       (2 797 688)  

Group risk business 130 629        -               130 629       

Liability for embedded derivatives 1 392            -               1 392           

Total net policyholder liabilities 1 554 464    (66 302)       1 488 162    

30 June 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000

Market-related business (Investment contracts (note 29))

Individual market-related business 3 920 585    -               3 920 585    

Other business (Insurance contracts (note 28)) (2 596 285)   (100 592)     (2 696 877)  

Conventional individual risk business 40 203          -               40 203         

Other individual risk business (2 775 615)   (100 592)     (2 876 207)  

Group risk business 137 197        -               137 197       

Liability for embedded derivatives 1 930            -               1 930           

Total net policyholder liabilities 1 324 300    (100 592)     1 223 708    

Market-related business

•

•

•

•

Conventional business

• Bonuses are declared taking into account a number of factors, including actual investment returns, previous bonus

rates declared and policyholders’ reasonable expectations. Bonuses are generally designated as reversionary

bonuses, which can never be removed or reduced, or terminal bonuses, which can be removed or reduced.

The Group earns management fees as a percentage of the fair value of the asset portfolio. These fees are volatile to

the extent that these assets are subject to interest rate and market price risk, but are always positive.

The Assupol Group holds the assets on which unit prices are based in accordance with policy terms and conditions.

The Group is not exposed to significant market risk on these funds, as the liability moves in line with the underlying

assets.

The unit-linked investment portfolios are rebalanced on a monthly basis.

Total

An analysis between the policyholder contracts and reinsurance assets of the total net policyholder liabilities as disclosed in

the table above is provided below.

Reinsurance 

assets

5.4.1

Total

Reinsurance 

assets

Insurance / 

investment 

contract

Insurance / 

investment 

contract
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Investment guarantees

•

•

•

•

Investments in structured and other entities

Structured entities

R'000 R'm

30 June 2022

Money Market Instruments

Money Market Long 7 1 180 239    16.05% 98 312          1.20% No

Debt instruments

Debt Long 3 1 823 565    24.80% 13 100          13.92% No

Equity instruments

Equity Long 4 349 751       4.76% 189 982        0.18% No

30 June 2021

Money Market Instruments

Money Market Long 7 916 246       13.66% 102 199        0.90% No

Debt instruments

Debt Long 3 1 732 333    25.83% 8 500            20.38% No

Equity instruments

Equity Long 4 369 894       5.51% 221 836        0.17% No

Number 

of 

instruments

Control or 

significant 

influence

Market value as 

% of Assupol's 

investment 

portfolio

5.4.1.a

5.4.1.b

Based on the assessment of control or significant influence on the funds in which Assupol Life has an interest in, none of

these schemes have met the definition of either a subsidiary, associate, or joint venture and therefore these funds were not

consolidated in the Group's results.

The Group has assessed its interests in collective investment schemes and other entities. Judgement is required in the

assessment of whether the Group has control or significant influence in terms of the variability of returns from the Group's

investment in the funds. 

* All inclusive price

** This is not significant influence as the Group exercises no influence over key management decisions which include the setting of budgets or the

appointment of key personnel.

The instruments held in structured entities included in the table below were selected by the Risk Committee and satisfy the

requirements from an Asset Liability Matching perspective. These instruments are included in financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss in the statement of financial position. For further information refer to note 21.

**

**

Clients of Assupol Life can choose into which type of investment fund their premiums should be deposited. One of

these investment funds is the 'guaranteed fund' where the capital invested (but not the growth on the fund) is

guaranteed to the client. These guarantees are spread amongst the various products that offer this investment fund.

The Risk Committee is charged with monitoring the 'guaranteed fund'.

Assupol Life also offers single premium investment products. These products have a term of a maximum of 9 years,

offering either a guaranteed maturity value or a guaranteed monthly income. In terms of these contracts, investment

contract holders are not entitled to receive more than the guaranteed value as determined at inception. The risk is

managed by investing in assets that will provide the guaranteed cash flows of the policy.

The table below provides a summary of the relevant instruments held by Assupol Life, the strategy for obtaining these

instruments, as well as the reason for not consolidating.

Liabilities arising from these guarantees are valued in accordance with valuation techniques described in APN110.

These liabilities are sensitive to movements in interest rates and equity prices and their volatilities. The exposure is

hedged through the implementation of structured products, employing derivatives to ensure that the capital is protected,

while also allowing for some participation in positive market returns. These derivatives are concluded with highly rated

banks. The derivatives expose the Group to credit risk (For further information refer note 5.4.2.b). The exposure is not

deemed to be material in the context of Assupol Life's results.

Total market 

value of 

instruments

Instrument type and 

strategy

Valuation of the liabilities of these single premium investment products is based on the discounted guaranteed cash

flows, as determined at the inception of the contract, using the valuation interest rate.

Investment value 

as % of issuer 

market 

capitalisation

Market 

capitalisation of 

all issuers *
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Investments in structured and other entities (continued)

Other entities

Financial risk factors

An analysis of the components affected by financial risk factors is depicted below:

2022 2021

R'000 R'000

At fair value through profit or loss

Equity securities x   2 031 500       1 564 654       

Debt securities x   x x 2 390 943       2 222 110       

Deposits and money market securities x x 1 374 258       1 051 868       

At amortised cost

Deposits and money market securities x   x x 1 557 610       1 869 308       

Insurance and other receivables x   x 208 180          204 421          

Cash and cash equivalents x 439 128          384 400          

Policyholder assets: Insurance contracts x *    - ** x 2 567 083       2 596 284       

Policyholder assets: Reinsurance assets x * x 66 302            100 593          

Policyholder liabilities x * x 4 121 547       3 920 585       

Other liabilities x 446 328          412 046          

Insurance and other payables x 614 246          501 752          

Liquidity riskMarket risk

 Credit

 risk 

Concentration risk is the risk of loss associated with inadequately diversified asset portfolios. To manage this risk, the

prudential regulations with reference to issuer limits, as stipulated in Regulation 28 of the Pension Fund Act, 24 of 1956, was

adopted as part of all the segregated mandates. In addition, the portfolios in total also need to be compliant with Regulation

28. The compliance with Regulation 28 is monitored on a regular basis by management. Breaches are reported as they

occur and the required action is taken. The Risk Committee monitors the compliance on a quarterly basis. As a result the

Group's exposure to any single group of companies or entity does not exceed 16.3% (2021: 15.3%) of total assets.

The Group has assessed it's control over the three trusts that were created during the demutualisation of Assupol Life.

It was concluded that the Group has no control or significant influence over the Assupol Members' Trust. The Assupol

Members' Trust is a bewind trust where the independent trustees manage the funds of the beneficiaries for their benefit in

terms of the demutualisation scheme (i.e. qualifying policyholders of Assupol Life prior to demutualisation). The trustees are

approved by the Financial Sector Conduct Authority of South Africa and the Group has no exposure or rights to variable

returns from the Trust.  

In respect of the Assupol Share Incentive Trust the Group has control over the shares held by the Share Incentive Trust and

the Trust was consolidated into the financial results of the Group.  For more information refer note 26.

* The assumptions used to determine the value of the policyholder assets and liabilities are affected by the historical market experience. For a market risk

sensitivity analysis of these assumptions, refer note 5.4.2.a (v) .

** No residual credit risk exists after applying best estimate lapse and withdrawal assumptions.

It was also concluded that the Group has no control or significant influence over the Assupol Community Trust. As a result

of the demutualisation scheme and the 'public benefit organisation' status of the Trust, restrictions were placed on the Trust

by the Financial Sector Conduct Authority of South Africa and the South African Revenue Services in aspects such as

changes to the trust deed, appointment of trustees and distributions of trust funds. The Group has no exposure or right to

variable returns from the Trust.

5.4.2

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, that can affect the

values of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities, as well as the Group’s insurance contract assets and liabilities. A focus

point of the Group’s overall risk management programme is on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. If deemed necessary, the Group uses derivative

financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures. There are currently no derivative contracts entered into for hedging

purposes.

5.4.1.b
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

2022 2021

R'000 R'000

Global unit trusts 349 752       369 895       

Foreign currency amount (US$) 21 474         25 915         

Insurance policy - Global bonds 61 022         50 402         

Foreign currency amount (US$) 3 747           3 531           

Closing exchange rate at year-end 16.2871       14.2734       

Average exchange rate during the year 15.3667       15.3941       

(ii) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in the market place. 

(iii) Interest rate risk: Cash flow and fair value

The Assupol Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Group and classified on the

consolidated Statement of Financial Position at 'fair value through profit or loss'. The Group is not directly exposed to

commodity price risk. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Group diversifies its

portfolio.  Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Group.

The Group has unit trusts which have offshore components that are all denominated in US dollars, and are listed as 'global

unit trusts' in note 21. These investments were made for the purpose of obtaining a favourable international exposure to

foreign currency and to diversify investment exposure to international markets. The assets are held in the linked

policyholder funds in order to obtain the relevant exposure for policyholders; thus no foreign currency exposure to

shareholders.  The currency exposure at year-end is as follows:

Market risk is the risk of adverse financial impact due to changes in fair values or future cash flows of financial instruments

from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices and interest rates.

Overall, foreign exchange risk is considered to be within acceptable risk levels and managed effectively, as it represents

only 3.3% (2021: 3.7%) of total financial assets.

Equity securities are reflected at fair values, which are susceptible to market fluctuations. The stock selection and

investment analysis process is supported by the proper execution of an investment management process, which is

monitored by Risk Committee.

Investments that will be directly impacted by changes in market interest rates are analysed below. Accounts receivable

where settlement is expected within 90 days and interest-free loans are not included in the analysis since the effect of

interest rate risk on these balances is not considered material, given the short-term duration of the underlying cash flows. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in interest rates, which

may result in a mismatch between assets and liabilities.

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the Rand value of a financial instrument, as in the case of investment assets, will

fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

5.4.2.a

Changes in market interest rates have a direct effect on the contractually determined cash flows associated with floating rate

financial assets and financial liabilities, and on the fair value of other investments. Fair values of fixed interest rate

investments included in the Group’s investment portfolios are subject to changes in prevailing market interest rates. For

more information on the maturity profiles of the financial assets, refer note 21 to the financial statements.
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

5.4.2.a Market risk (continued)

Consolidated

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 %

30 June 2022

At fair value through profit or loss

Debt securities

Government bonds 506 355       -                506 355        -               2.89%

Insurance policy - Global bonds * 61 022         -                61 022          -                     N/a

Deposits and money market securities 1 374 258    11 346          182 672        1 180 240    5.87%

Unit trusts 1 823 566    -                -                1 823 566    7.49%

At amortised cost

Deposits and money market securities ** 1 557 610    -                1 557 610    -               

Receivables (interest-bearing) 166 550       165 899        651               -               12.97%

Receivables (provision for impairment)

Premiums receivable (116 521)     -                -                -               0.00%

Sundry insurance receivables (7 752)         -                -                -               0.00%

Receivables (non interest-bearing) 165 903       -                -                -               0.00%

Cash and cash equivalents 439 128       439 128        -                -               4.27%

Policyholder liability - Investment contracts (1 596 889)  -                (1 596 889)   -               

Subordinated debt (250 070)     (863)             (249 207)      -               

Total 4 123 160    615 510        462 214        3 003 806    

30 June 2021

At fair value through profit or loss

Debt securities

Government bonds 439 374       -                439 374        -               2.47%

Insurance policy - Global bonds * 50 402         -                50 402          -                     N/a

Deposits and money market securities 1 051 868    6 336            129 286        916 246       3.54%

Unit trusts 1 732 334    -                -                1 732 334    7.49%

At amortised cost

Deposits and money market securities ** 1 869 308    -                1 869 308    -               

Receivables (interest-bearing) 163 390       156 344        7 046            -               12.64%

Receivables (provision for impairment)

Premiums receivable (96 265)       -                -                -               0.00%

Sundry insurance receivables (87 330)       -                -                -               0.00%

Receivables (non interest-bearing) 224 626       -                -                -               0.00%

Cash and cash equivalents 384 400       384 400        -                -               2.93%

Policyholder liability - Investment contracts (1 925 292)  -                (1 925 292)   -               

Subordinated debt (250 070)     (863)             (249 207)      -               

Total 3 556 745    546 217        320 917        2 648 580    

Exposed to:

* Global bond exposure is obtained through the insurance policy and not by holding the underlying instruments. The insurance policy can be

terminated with 30 days’ notice.

 Both cash flow 

interest rate and 

fair value risk 

2.71% to 

9.96%

2.71% to 

9.72%

8.01% to 

10.29%

6.91% to 

10.29%

The Group issues guaranteed single premium investment products. These products have of a maximum of 9 years, offering

either a guaranteed maturity value or a guaranteed monthly income. In terms of these contracts investment contract holders

are not entitled to receive more than the guaranteed value determined at inception. Surrender charges apply should a

policyholder terminate the contract before the maturity date. The risk is managed by investing in assets that provide the

guaranteed cash flows of the policy.  

** Deposits and money markets securities carried at amortised cost are valued individually on a contract basis and not a portfolio basis.

 Effective 

interest rate at 

year-end 

2.71% to 

9.96%

 Carrying value 

2.71% to 

9.72%

 Cash flow

interest rate

risk 

 Fair value

interest rate

risk 
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

5.4.2.a Market risk (continued)

(iv) Hedging

(v) Market risk sensitivity analysis

Consolidated

2022 2021 2022 2021

Assumption description % R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Non-market long-term assumptions

Mortality and morbidity +10% 648 389           649 423           (466 840)        (467 585)        

-10% (667 486)         (670 844)         480 590         483 008         

Withdrawals +10% (15 273)           (2 815)             10 997           2 027             

-10% 36 768             26 394             (26 473)          (19 004)          

Renewal expense per policy +10% 511 038           479 303           (367 947)        (345 098)        

-10% (510 198)         (478 377)         367 343         344 431         

Economic assumptions

Interest rate +1% (227 220)         (208 151)         163 598         149 869         

-1% 311 757           295 410           (224 465)        (212 695)        

Inflation +1% 488 058           463 410           (351 201)        (333 174)        

-1% (412 915)         (391 226)         297 097         281 201         

Equity prices +10% 106 498           109 899           (76 678)          (79 127)          

-10% (106 470)         (109 871)         (106 470)        (109 871)        

Impact on ordinary shareholders' 

equity and attributable profit after 

taxation

Positive numbers in the table below represent an increase to policyholders' liabilities and profit after taxation respectively,

and correspondingly, negative numbers indicate a decrease. The size of the changes was chosen to facilitate comparison

with the sensitivities disclosed by other major insurers. In each case below, one assumption changes whilst all the other

assumptions remain constant. As the economic assumptions relate to both policyholder liabilities under insurance and

investment contracts, there is no added benefit in splitting the disclosures.

Impact to total

policyholders' assets / liabilities
Change 

in 

variable

There are currently no derivative contracts entered into by the Group for hedging purposes.

The non-market long-term assumptions address possible changes as a result of insurance risks identified and described in

notes 4.1 and 5.3. The economic assumptions address possible changes as a result of market risks identified and

described in note 5.4.2.a.

The table below summarises the impact of each possible change to the risk variables outlined in the risk management

section of this report to the Group's profit or loss (after corporate taxation) and to the total policyholder liabilities. The

changes are affecting the financial assets and liabilities, as well as insurance assets and liabilities. This is a management

estimate (based on market information available, understanding of the business and the consequent impact of possible

changes) and not an earnings forecast.
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(v) Market risk sensitivity analysis (continued)

30 June 2022

Insurance 

contracts

Reinsurance 

assets

Insurance 

contracts

Reinsurance 

assets

Assumption description % R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Non-market long-term assumptions

Mortality and morbidity +10% 833 098           (184 709)         (599 830)        132 990         

-10% (856 159)         188 672           616 434         (135 844)        

Withdrawals +10% (15 795)           522                  11 372           (376)               

-10% 37 403             (635)                (26 930)          457                

Renewal expense per policy +10% 511 038           -                  (367 947)        -                 

-10% (510 198)         -                  367 343         -                 

Economic assumptions

Interest rate +1% (228 760)         1 540               164 707         (1 109)            

-1% 313 624           (1 867)             (225 810)        1 344             

Inflation +1% 488 058           -                  (351 402)        -                 

-1% (412 915)         -                  297 299         -                 

Equity prices +10% 106 495           2                      (76 677)          (2)                   

-10% (106 467)         (3)                    76 656           (183 126)        

30 June 2021

Insurance 

contracts

Reinsurance 

assets

Insurance 

contracts

Reinsurance 

assets

Assumption description % R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Non-market long-term assumptions

Mortality and morbidity +10% 833 880           (184 458)         (600 394)        132 809         

-10% (859 932)         189 088           619 151         (136 144)        

Withdrawals +10% (3 169)             354                  2 281             (255)               

-10% 26 894             (499)                (19 363)          360                

Renewal expense per policy +10% 479 303           -                  (345 098)        -                 

-10% (478 377)         -                  344 431         -                 

Economic assumptions

Interest rate +1% (209 505)         1 354               150 844         (975)               

-1% 297 153           (1 743)             (213 950)        1 255             

Inflation +1% 463 410           -                  (333 655)        -                 

-1% (391 226)         -                  281 682         -                 

Equity prices +10% 109 895           4                      (79 124)          (3)                   

-10% (109 866)         (5)                    79 104           (188 975)        

Impact to

policyholders' assets / liabilitiesChange 

in 

variable

Change 

in 

variable

Impact to

policyholders' assets / liabilities

Impact on ordinary shareholders' 

equity and attributable profit after 

taxation

Impact on ordinary shareholders' 

equity and attributable profit after 

taxation

Possible changes on the policyholders' assets / liabilities are separately disclosed for insurance contracts and reinsurance

assets below.
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk

Balances where the Group has exposure to credit risk include all financial assets (excluding equity securities).

(i) Credit risk on investments

These mandates are given taking the following requirements into consideration:

• Limits in each asset class

>

• Percentage limits in a single holding

>

• Quality of holdings

>

>

>

• Collective investment instruments

>

Investments in money market instruments must have a short-term rating of at least F1 and a long-term rating of at

least A, as rated by an accredited rating agency.

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will fail to discharge an obligation on an asset held and cause the Group to incur a

financial loss.

Investment managers are only allowed to invest in listed shares, including listed property shares, that fall within

their investment mandates. Where an investment becomes unlisted whilst included in the mandate, the manager

may retain the shares only if it cannot be sold. 

The Risk Committee is charged with managing credit risk relating to investments. An investment policy has been compiled

to describe the investment process and mandates given to the investment managers.  

Investment managers mandates are issued in accordance with limitations set by the Insurance Act, 2017. The

combined portfolios are managed in line with regulation 28 of the Pension Fund Act, 1956.

5.4.2.b

Amounts receivable in terms of long-term insurance business are limited to and secured by the underlying value of the

unpaid policy benefits in terms of the policy contract.

The percentage of assets invested in an asset class is fixed and will be determined by the Risk Committee and the

investment mandate agreed upon.

The Group is exposed to credit risk in any reinsurance assets held. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim, the Group remains

liable for the payment to the policyholder. Reinsurance is placed with reputable international companies. The credit rating

of the reinsurer is assessed by Assupol Life on an annual basis and on a change in the status of the reinsurer. The credit

rating of the current reinsurers is ranging between AA+ and AA- as per the external rating agency, S&P.

Investment managers are only allowed to invest in A(zaf) to AAA(zaf) rated local listed bonds. For non South

African assets the rating must be investment grade (AAA to BBB-). Credit risk is reduced by only investing in the

bonds that are rated at these levels by an accredited rating agency operating in South Africa, or the equivalent

ratings of any accredited international rating agency. 

Fair values of investments may be affected by the creditworthiness of the issuer of securities.  The investment policy formally 

defines that the exposure to any institution in which the Group has placed deposits, or to which it has credit risk exposure, is

limited to the provisions of the Insurance Act, 18 of 2017. Provisions of the Act have the effect of limiting exposure to

individual issuers due to the inadmissibility of assets for regulatory purposes if specified limits are breached. The investment

mandates include provisions to limit the exposure to a single issuer. Bonds and cash exposure are diversified through this

process.

Collective investments can include any investment through a life license or investment through a unit trust.

Investments of this type must only be through a vehicle that is registered with the financial services regulator in

South Africa and are subject in all respects to the requirements of the Unit Trust Control Act, 54 of 1981, the

Insurance Act, 18 of 2017, or the Collective Investment Schemes Control Act, 45 of 2002.
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The exposure to credit risk from the financial assets at the end of the reporting period was:

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

At fair value through profit or loss

Debt securities

Government bonds 506 355        439 374        -               -               

Insurance policy - Global bonds 61 022          50 402          -               -               

Unit trust 1 823 566    1 732 334    -               -               

Deposits and money market securities 1 374 258    1 051 868    -               -               

At amortised cost

Deposits and money market securities 1 557 610    1 869 308    -               -               

Insurance receivables

Premium receivables - Insurance contracts 49 378          60 079          -               -               

Premium receivables - Other -                -                -               -               

Sundry insurance receivables 10 056          9 501            

Reinsurance recoveries 134 094        109 902        -               -               

Other receivables:

Other sundry receivables 14 001          17 893          3 300           1 824           

Loans to personnel and other loans 651               7 046            -               -               

Cash and cash equivalents 439 128        384 400        35 068         39 064         

Total 5 970 119    5 732 107    38 368         40 888         

Analysis per credit ratings

Local debt securities (National long-term rating) 2 329 921    2 171 709    -               -               

AAA 506 356        439 375        -               -               

AA+, AA, AA- 1 823 565    1 732 334    -               -               

2 931 868    2 921 176    -               -               

AAA 1 916 797    2 159 421    -               -               

AA+, AA, AA- 1 015 071    758 448        -               -               

A+, A, A- -                3 307            -               -               

Cash and cash equivalents (National long-term rating) 439 128        384 400        35 068         39 064         

AAA 439 524        384 502        -               -               

AA+, AA, AA- (396)             (102)             20 364         39 055         

A+, A, A- -                -                14 704         9                  

Unrated 208 180        204 421        3 300           1 824           

Insurance receivables 193 528        179 482        -               -               

Other receivables 14 652          24 939          3 300           1 824           

61 022          50 401          -               -               

AAA 32 719          25 233          -               -               

AA+, AA, AA- 8 991            8 429            -               -               

A+, A, A- 10 502          8 990            -               -               

BBB+, BBB, BBB- 8 810            7 749            -               -               

Total 5 970 119    5 732 107    38 368         40 888         

5.4.2.b

Global debt securities (Long term issuer default rating -Local 

currency)

Deposits and money market securities (National long-

term rating)
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit rating used:

Rating definition:

AAA Highest quality: An extremely strong capacity to meet its financial obligations.

AA+, AA, AA- Very high quality: A very strong capacity to meet its financial obligations.

A+, A, A-

BBB+, BBB, BBB-

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Policyholder receivables Gross 165 899        156 344        -               -               

Impairment provision (116 521)      (96 265)        -               -               

Net 49 378          60 079          -               -               

The table below provides information regarding the aging of assets which expose the Group to credit risk.

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Debt securities 2 390 943    2 222 110    -               -               

Neither past due, nor impaired 2 390 943    2 222 110    -               -               

Deposits and money market securities 2 931 868    2 921 176    -               -               

Neither past due, nor impaired 2 931 868    2 921 176    -               -               

Insurance receivables 193 528        179 482        -               -               

Neither past due, nor impaired 180 770        163 759        -               -               

Past due

0 to 2 months 43 191          29 986          -               -               

3 to 5 months 18 384          15 829          -               -               

More than 5 months 74 902          153 503        -               -               

Impairment provisions (123 719)      (183 595)      -               -               

Other receivables 14 652          24 939          3 300           1 824           

Neither past due, nor impaired 14 611          22 201          3 300           1 824           

Past due

0 to 2 months 10                 1 953            -               -               

More than 5 months 31                 785               -               -               

Cash and cash equivalents 439 128        384 400        35 068         39 064         

Neither past due, nor impaired 439 128        384 400        35 068         39 064         

Total 5 970 119    5 732 107    38 368         40 888         

5.4.2.b

The rating used for local assets is the National Long-Term rating issued by rating agencies. This rating gives a relative

credit quality for the issuer and/or entity in relation to the government of the Republic of South Africa. The rating used for

global assets is the Long-Term Issuer Default rating (Local currency) issued by rating agencies. If there is no rating

available from a rating agency an internal model is used. The internal rating scale is based on internal definitions and

influenced by definitions published by mainly the external rating agency Moody’s. Other external rating agencies such S&P

and GCR are considered where necessary.

Good quality: The expectations of default risk are currently low. The capacity for payment of

financial commitments is considered adequate but adverse business or economic conditions are

more likely to impair this capacity.

High quality: A strong capacity to meet its financial obligations but is somewhat more susceptible

to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and economic conditions.

The analysis of overall credit risk exposure indicates that the Group has policyholder receivables that are impaired at the

end of the reporting period.  The assets, that include outstanding premium debtors, are analysed below:
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

(ii) Collateral coverage

Liquidity risk

•

•

•

(i) Liquidity risks arising out of obligations to policyholders

Consolidated 2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Unit liabilities

Within 1 year 61 972          72 026          169 694       165 870       

2 to 5 years 89 175          103 121        420 383       456 617       

6 to 10 years 39 823          49 548          458 188       448 023       

11 to 20 years 28 603          31 780          613 056       612 166       

Over 20 years 71 213          31 809          183 769       193 061       

Total unit liabilities 290 786        288 284        1 845 090    1 875 737    

Non-unit liabilities

Within 1 year 92 621          90 633          260 992       695 929       

2 to 5 years 168 478        141 822        982 388       1 093 200    

6 to 10 years (513 891)      (503 077)      341 368       113 866       

11 to 20 years (1 348 399)   (1 418 165)   -               -               

Over 20 years (5 875 389)   (6 263 067)   971              4 641           

Total (7 476 580)   (7 951 855)   1 585 719    1 907 635    

Effect of discounting cash flows 1 952 717    1 970 125    (31 669)       (35 163)       

Effect of compulsory margins 2 415 692    2 683 754    43 818         52 821         

Undiscounted liabilities (including IBNR reserves) 184 000        312 815        678 589       119 555       

Total non-unit liabilities (2 924 171)   (2 985 161)   2 276 457    2 044 848    

TOTAL

Within 1 year 154 593        162 659        430 686       861 799       

2 to 5 years 257 653        244 943        1 402 771    1 549 817    

6 to 10 years (474 068)      (453 529)      799 556       561 889       

11 to 20 years (1 319 796)   (1 386 385)   613 056       612 166       

Over 20 years (5 804 176)   (6 231 258)   184 740       197 702       

Effect of discounting cash flows 1 952 717    1 970 125    (31 669)       (35 163)       

Effect of compulsory margins 2 415 692    2 683 754    43 818         52 821         

Undiscounted liabilities (including IBNR reserves) 184 000        312 815        678 589       119 555       

Total policyholder liabilities (2 633 385)   (2 696 877)   4 121 547    3 920 585    

The liquidity risk is associated with obligations to policyholders is managed by considering the timing of undiscounted cash

inflows / outflows as depicted below. In the table below the net cash inflows and outflows are shown as positive and

negative amounts respectively.

None of the entities in the Group has any collateral coverage on their financial assets.

5.4.2.b

5.4.2.c

Appropriate assets back the Group’s liabilities. The Group has significant liquid resources and continues to experience

positive net cash flows.

INSURANCE CONTRACTS INVESTMENT CONTRACTS

Liquidity risk is the risk that cash may not be available to pay obligations when due. Refer to the maturity profiles included in

the note to policyholder liabilities (note 28).

The Head of Actuarial Control Function reviews an asset liability modelling exercise to ensure that the asset mix of

Assupol Life is appropriate. This involves looking at the asset / liability profile and the appropriateness of the assets vis-

à-vis the liabilities, bearing in mind issues of volatility, liquidity and the expected future cash flows of the business.

Unitised funds are invested in accordance with the mandate of the individual portfolios. The results of this model are

incorporated in the ongoing investment strategy of Assupol Life to ensure that policyholder expectations and liquidity

requirements are met.

Liquidity requirements and cash resources are monitored by the Risk Committee.
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Equity securities 1 064 290     1 101 440     -               -               

Debt securities 360 358        355 019        -               -               

Deposits and money market securities 711 228        707 562        -               -               

Total 2 135 876    2 164 021    -               -               

Consolidated 2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Policyholder assets (5 091 742)   (4 591 577)   4 121 547    -               

Policyholder liabilities 2 524 659    1 995 292    -               3 920 585    

Reinsurance assets (66 302)        (100 592)      -               -               

Total net policyholder (assets) / liabilities (2 633 385)   (2 696 877)   4 121 547    3 920 585    

Consolidated 2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Insurance contracts

Linked and conventional business 282 889        324 342        226 049       265 047       

Other business (2 849 972)   (3 021 219)   -               -               

Reinsurance assets (66 302)        (100 592)      -               -               

Investment contracts 4 121 547    3 920 585    3 178 664    3 542 160    

Total policyholder liabilities 1 488 162    1 123 116    3 404 713    3 807 206    

5.4.2.c

The unit liabilities above are calculated based on the value of the assets below as these assets are invested in accordance

with the mandate chosen by the policyholder:

INVESTMENT CONTRACTS

The expected liquidity requirement for undiscounted expected cash flows for unit liabilities for the next year is R232 million.

The Group has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to cover this risk.

CARRYING VALUE SURRENDER VALUE

The table below shows the carrying value of policyholder liabilities and the cash surrender value that relate to the respective

policies.

The expected liquidity requirement for undiscounted expected cash flows for non-unit liabilities for the next year is an outflow

of R354 million and therefore no provision is needed for liquidity purposes due to sufficient cash equivalents.

INSURANCE CONTRACTS

The table below indicates the composition of the insurance and investment policyholder contracts as well as the related

reinsurance based on the underlying portfolios.
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(ii) Liquidity risks arising out of obligations on financial liabilities (excluding policyholder liabilities)

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Lease liabilities 335 971        195 746        -               -               

Contractual undiscounted cash flows

Within 1 year 36 286          38 689          -               -               

2 to 5 years 149 630        157 057        -               -               

More than 5 years 150 055        -                -               -               

Subordinated debt 278 824        304 219        -               -               

Contractual undiscounted cash flows

Within 1 year 150 315        25 401          -               -               

2 to 5 years 128 509        278 818        -               -               

Insurance and other payables 614 246        501 752        22 638         12 095         

Contractual undiscounted cash flows

Within 1 year 455 447        336 484        -               -               

Open ended 158 799        165 268        22 638         12 095         

Total 1 229 041    1 001 717    22 638         12 095         

The table below analyses the settlement value for financial liabilities (excluding policyholder liabilities) differentiating

between relevant maturity groupings, based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual

maturity date.
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Capital risk management

Capital management policies and objectives

The Group's capital management philosophy is to:

• Optimise the return on capital within the overarching risk tolerance ranges including all regulatory requirements;

• Ensure a sustainable business and providing shareholders with appropriate returns at an acceptable risk;

• Ensure that the strategy of the Group can be executed successfully; and

•

Solvency Capital Requirement

Assupol Life

2022 2021

Available solvency capital (R'm) 7 424           7 011           

Solvency Capital Requirement (R'm) 4 162           4 010           

Surplus above solvency requirement (R'm) 3 261           3 001           

Capital ratio at year end (times covered) 1.78             1.75             

Subordinated debt structure

The maturity profile of the subordinated debt is shown below:

Draw 1 Feb 2019 4 years Floating 8.01% 863              End of term

Draw 2 May 2019 4 years Fixed 10.29% 62 500         End of term

Draw 3 Jun 2019 4 years Fixed 10.25% 62 500         End of term

Draw 4 Sep 2019 4 years Fixed 9.98% 62 500         End of term

Draw 5 Dec 2019 4 years Fixed 10.17% 61 638         End of term

The agreement does allow for early redemption, subject to penalties. However, these dates are not defined.

5.4.3.b

5.4.3.c

The capital management plan also ensures alignment of capital to risks and ensures that the reward is commensurate the

risk taken.

Capital 

repayment

A facility fee of 0.3% plus VAT was paid at the start of the contract on the total facility amount. A commitment fee of 0.7%

was charged on the undrawn amount during the 12-month period ended January 2020.

Interest Interest rate
Amount drawn

R'000

In terms of the Group's subordinated debt structure, Group has access to a draw down facility of R250 million. By the end of

the previous financial year, the full facility was utilised; mainly for the funding of new business.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied with all externally and internally imposed capital

requirements throughout the period.

The dividend policy is based on the cash generation of the business, taking into account an appropriate growth and/or

coverage ratio.

Assupol is required to maintain at all times its business in a financially sound condition by holding eligible own funds equal to

its SCR. The SCR measurement is intended to provide a 99.5% confidence level that Assupol Life will be able to meet its

existing liabilities.

5.4.3.a

Date drawn Tenor

5.4.3

The risk-based financial soundness framework, Solvency Assessment and Management (SAM), commenced when the

Insurance Act, 18 of 2017, became effective. The act determines the calculation of the Solvency Capital Requirement

(SCR).
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value estimation

Consolidated (R'000)

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Local listed shares 1 000 065        -                    -                    1 000 065        1 000 065        

Equity linked notes 681 683           -                    -                    681 683           681 683           

Unit trusts

Global 349 752           -                    -                    349 752           349 752           

Debt securities

Government bonds 506 355           -                    -                    506 355           506 355           

Insurance policy 61 022             -                    -                    61 022             61 022             

Unit trust 1 823 566        -                    -                    1 823 566        1 823 566        

Deposits and money market securities 1 374 258        1 557 610          -                    2 931 868        2 904 542        

Insurance receivables -                   193 528            -                    193 528           * 193 528           

Other receivables -                   14 652              -                    14 652             * 14 652             

Cash and cash equivalents -                   439 128            -                    439 128           * 439 128           

Investment contract liabilities 2 524 658        -                    1 596 889          4 121 547        4 094 221        

Other liabilities -                   -                    446 328            446 328           452 085           

Accounts payable -                   -                    61 788              61 788             * 61 788             

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Local listed shares 995 210           -                    -                    995 210           995 210           

Equity linked notes 199 549           -                    -                    199 549           199 549           

Unit trusts

Global 369 895           -                    -                    369 895           369 895           

Debt securities

Government bonds 439 374           -                    -                    439 374           439 374           

Insurance policy 50 402             -                    -                    50 402             50 402             

Unit trust 1 732 334        -                    -                    1 732 334        1 732 334        

Deposits and money market securities 1 051 868        1 869 308          -                    2 921 176        3 005 538        

Insurance receivables -                   179 482            -                    179 482           * 179 482           

Other receivables -                   24 939              -                    24 939             * 24 939             

Cash and cash equivalents -                   384 400            -                    384 400           * 384 400           

Investment contract liabilities 1 995 293        -                    1 925 292          3 920 585        3 836 222        

Other liabilities -                   -                    412 046            412 046           429 127           

Accounts payable -                   -                    69 180              69 180             * 69 180             

*

5.4.4

Financial assets 

and liabilities at 

FVTPL

Financial 

liabilities at 

amortised cost

Where the payment terms are less than 90 days the carrying value approximates fair value. 

Financial 

assets at 

amortised cost

Total 

carrying 

amount

Fair

value

The tables below analyse each class of financial instrument and insurance contracts, per category, as well as provide the

fair values, where applicable for both the Group and the company.
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value estimation (continued)

Company (R'000)

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Other receivables -                   3 300                -                    3 300               * 3 300               

Cash and cash equivalents -                   35 068              -                    35 068             * 35 068             

Other payables -                   -                    22 638              22 638             * 22 638             

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Other receivables -                   1 824                -                    1 824               * 1 824               

Cash and cash equivalents -                   39 064              -                    39 064             * 39 064             

Other payables -                   -                    12 095              12 095             * 12 095             

*

Fair value hierarchy

The measurement at fair value, grouped into levels 1 to 3, is based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

•

•

• Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

For level 1:

•

For level 2:

•

•

> Risk free rate: 4.75% to 6.90%

•

> Dividend yield: 1.23% to 2.92%;

> Risk free rate: 5.05% to 6.90%

> Equity index level strike: 58 050 to 75 550 (index level 60 109 at year-end);

> Equity volatility: 19.15% to 24.48%;

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivatives) is determined in accordance with

generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market

transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments.

The table below shows the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are recognised and subsequently measured at fair

value analysed by valuation technique on a recurring basis. The Group does not have any held-for-sale financial asset or

liabilities subject to non-recurring fair value measurement. The classification of instruments is based on the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

5.4.4

Fair

value

Financial 

liabilities at 

amortised cost

Where the payment terms are less than 90 days the carrying value approximates fair value. 

5.4.5

The valuation techniques and assumptions applied for purposes of measuring fair value of financial assets and liabilities are

determined as follows:

The fair value of derivatives is calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available, discounted cash

flow analysis is performed using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for non-optional

derivatives, and option pricing models for optional derivatives.  The specific inputs used are:

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid

markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices.

The fair values of accounts receivable, cash equivalents and accounts payable approximate their carrying values due to

their short-term nature and are as a result not measured at fair value nor analysed by valuation technique. Refer notes 22,

23 and 34 for further information on these assets and liabilities.

Financial 

assets and 

liabilities at 

FVTPL

Total 

carrying 

amount

Financial 

assets at 

amortised cost

Observable inputs generally used to measure the fair value of securities classified as level 2 include benchmark yields,

reported secondary trades, broker-dealer quotes, issuer spreads, benchmark securities, bids, offers and reference data.

The specific inputs used are:

Level 1: Valued with reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. The

judgement as to whether a market is active may include, for example, consideration of factors such as the magnitude

and frequency of trading activity, the availability of prices and the size of bid/offer spreads. In inactive markets,

additional work is required during the valuation process to obtain assurance that the transaction price provides evidence

of the fair value or to determine the adjustments to transaction prices that are necessary.                                 
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

5.4.5 Fair value hierarchy (continued)

•

For level 3:

•

R'000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 TOTAL

Consolidated 2022

Local listed shares 1 000 065          -                    -                   1 000 065        

Derivatives

Equity options -                    681 683            -                   681 683           

Unit trusts

Global 349 752            -                    -                   349 752           

Debt securities

Government bonds 506 355            -                    -                   506 355           

Insurance policy - Global bonds 61 022              -                    -                   61 022             

Unit trusts -                    1 823 566          -                   1 823 566        

Deposits and money market securities* 1 191 587          1 712 955          -                   2 904 542        

Total financial assets 3 108 781          4 218 204          -                   7 326 985        

Net investment contract liabilities* -                    4 094 221          -                   4 094 221        

Other liabilities - Subordinated debt 255 827            -                    -                   255 827           

Total financial liabilities 255 827            4 094 221          -                   4 350 048        

Consolidated 2021

Local listed shares 995 210            -                    -                   995 210           

Derivatives

Equity options -                    199 549            -                   199 549           

Unit trusts

Global 369 895            -                    -                   369 895           

Debt securities

Government bonds 439 374            -                    -                   439 374           

Insurance policy - Global bonds 50 402              -                    -                   50 402             

Unit trusts -                    1 732 334          -                   1 732 334        

Deposits and money market securities* 922 583            2 082 955          -                   3 005 538        

Total financial assets 2 777 464          4 014 838          -                   6 792 302        

Net investment contract liabilities* -                    3 836 222          -                   3 836 222        

Other liabilities - Subordinated debt 267 151            -                    -                   267 151           

Total financial liabilities 267 151            3 836 222          -                   4 103 373        

There were no transfers between the various levels during the current and previous financial years.

The table discloses fair value information for financial instruments measured at fair value except where otherwise indicated.

When classifying fair value measures within level 3 of the valuation hierarchy the determining factors are generally

based on the significance of the unobservable factors when compared to the overall fair value measurement. The

Group applies various due diligence procedures, as considered appropriate, to validate the underlying information used

in the valuations.

The fair value of financial guarantee contracts is determined using option pricing models where the main assumptions

are the probability of default by the specified counterparty extrapolated from the market-based credit information and the

amount of loss, given the default.

* Includes financial instruments designated as 'at amortised cost' as the fair values have been estimated in accordance with note 5.4.4. Refer note 21 for

carrying amounts.
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Other risks

Intermediary debt exposure

Compliance and regulatory risk

Expense risk

Operational risk

The financial services industry has undergone several regulatory changes during the past few years. More changes are

expected and this could have a significant impact on the range and affordability of products that the Group is able to offer to

our lower-income clients. The management of the market conduct risk associated with Assupol Life’s advisors and brokers

is one of the more demanding regulatory requirements.

The Compliance department evaluates and monitors all compliance issues in order to minimise the risk of financial loss or

reputational loss as a result of non-compliance. This department provides services to the entire Group. The Risk

Committee monitors compliance-related matters on a quarterly basis.

5.5.3

5.5.1

It is industry practice to pay intermediaries in advance for business submitted to the insurer after receipt of the first premium.

As a result, there is an unvested portion of commission payments which is repayable to the insurer should the individual

policies lapse or be cancelled. The cumulative effect of poor quality and low quantities of business could result in the

intermediary owing money to the insurer, as the clawbacks exceed the commission earnings. These levels are monitored on

a monthly basis by the Credit Control Committee and corrective action can be taken should the need arise. There is a risk of

non-recovery of amounts owing to the insurer.  For further information, refer note 22 to the financial statements.

5.5.4

Operational risk is the risk of loss due to inadequate internal processes, people or systems, or occurrence of external

events. The risk is actively managed through the Assupol Life Management Committee and various other operational

committees while the Assupol Life Executive Committee oversees the proper administration and reporting of these risks.

The Solvency Capital Requirement as described in 5.4.3.b includes a provision for the operational risk as per the

requirements of the Financial Soundness Standards for Insurers (FSI 4.4).

The risk is that the actual operating expenses of the company exceeds those reserved for in the valuation of policyholder

liability (as recommended by the Head of Actuarial Control Function). The level of expenses and policy volumes in

comparison to the expense levels allowed in the valuation of liabilities, is reported at the quarterly group actuarial meeting

that is attended by the Group Executive Committee. Expenses are analysed and monitored on a quarterly basis by the

Expense Management Forum and also discussed at the Assupol Life Executive Committee and the Assupol Life

Management Committee on a monthly basis. The expense budget is controlled through guidelines as set down by the

Assupol Group's Financial Administration Policy.

5.5.2

5.5
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

6.1 Segment earnings

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Net insurance premium revenue 722 061        -                -               4 536 035    

-                -                -               3 895           

Fee income -                -                -               96 913         

3 573            282 461        (186 230)     333 148       

Other income -                844               1 601           2 445           

Income 725 633        283 304        (184 628)     4 972 436    

Net insurance benefits and claims (369 808)      -                -               (1 825 975)  

Commission expenses (302 821)      -                -               (859 099)     

Operating and administrative expenses (83 960)        (82 033)        1 271           (1 281 605)  

Investment management expenses (78)                (4 689)          -               (15 080)       

Change in insurance contract provisions 6 568            -                -               (63 491)       

Fair value adjustments on

investment contracts liabilities -                -                -               (116 412)     

Expenses (750 099)      (86 722)        1 271           (4 161 662)  

Result of operating activities (24 465)        196 583        (183 357)     810 774       

Finance charges (421)             (1 915)          -               (38 746)       

Profit / (loss) before taxation (24 886)        194 668        (183 357)     772 028       

Income taxation expense 7 947            (759)             (1)                 (157 413)     

Profit / (loss) for the year (16 940)        193 909        (183 358)     614 615       

(16 940)        193 909        (183 358)     614 615       

785 603        

(1 116 883)    

R'000

-                

- Intersegmental: It includes those accounting reclassifications and entries that are required to produce IFRS compliant

consolidated results.

- Individual business: This operating segment pertains to Assupol Life's distribution channels for individual business. It also

includes single premium products as well as the Cornerstone distribution channel. 

- Group business:  This segment includes Assupol Life's group schemes.

The Group's operating segments are based on the legal entities within the Group with Assupol Life being analysed further

between its individual business, group business and other operations. The Group Executive Committee makes decisions about

resource allocation on the performance of these operations and financial information is provided on that basis.

(10 313)         

(164 600)       

(116 412)       

(70 059)         

822 014        

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for 

the year

3 813 974     

Individual 

business

Group 

business

- Other operations: This segment includes those transactions of Assupol Life that are not allocated to individual and group

business (shareholders funds) as well as all Assupol Holdings, Assupol Investment Holdings, and the other smaller and dormant

entities in the Assupol Group.

Other 

operations

Inter-

segmental Total

(3 326 113)    

Investment income and net fair value gains /

   (losses) on financial assets

621 004        

621 004        

(556 278)       

3 895            

(1 456 167)    

The segments were changed during the financial year where segments were previously grouped according to the business

activities of the legal entities in the Group. The revised disclosure provides an enhanced reflection of the manner in which

information and the reporting thereof are considered by the key decision maker.

(36 410)         

4 148 127     

233 344        

Commission received on outward 

reinsurance 

96 913          
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6.1 Segment earnings (continued)

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Net insurance premium revenue 694 603        -                -               4 213 999    

-                -                -               74                

Fee income -                -                -               75 183         

3 060            332 940        (231 939)     750 972       

Other income -                32 170          (31 478)       692              

Income 697 663        365 110        (263 417)     5 040 920    

Net insurance benefits and claims (420 404)      -                -               (1 755 106)  

Commission expenses (295 049)      -                -               (888 404)     

Operating and administrative expenses (75 903)        (127 721)      30 089         (1 221 934)  

Investment management expenses (72)                (4 044)          -               (11 850)       

Change in insurance contract provisions (45 847)        -                -               (279 036)     

Fair value adjustments on:

investment contracts liabilities -                -                -               (322 265)     

Expenses (837 275)      (131 765)      30 089         (4 478 595)  

Result of operating activities (139 612)      233 345        (233 328)     562 325       

Finance charges (381)             (2 101)          -               (38 312)       

Profit / (loss) before taxation (139 994)      231 245        (233 328)     524 013       

Income tax expense 40 035          (569)             -               (171 685)     

Profit / (loss) for the year (99 959)        230 676        (233 328)     352 328       

(99 959)        230 676        (233 328)     352 328       

Commission received on outward 

reinsurance 

666 090        

(211 151)       

3 519 396     

(35 830)         

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for 

the year

4 241 564     

R'000

646 911        

(233 189)       

(322 265)       

Investment income and net fair value gains /

   (losses) on financial assets

(1 334 702)    

74                 

454 940        

454 940        

-                

(3 539 644)    

(1 048 399)    

Individual 

business

Group 

business

Other 

operations

Inter-

segmental Total

701 920        

(593 355)       

(7 734)           

75 183          
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6.2 Other financial detail per reportable segment

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Financial assets - Investments 5 476 203    107 626        1 770 482    -               7 354 311    

Policyholder assets 2 764 014    (130 629)      -                -               2 633 385    

Total other assets 991 860       -                924 220        (810 010)     1 106 070    

Policyholder liabilities 4 121 547    -                -                -               4 121 547    

Total other liabilities 1 843 340    -                23 521          (6 946)         1 859 915    

Additions to non-current assets -               -                33 724          -               33 724         

Depreciation -               -                56 842          -               56 842         

Amortisation of intangible assets -               -                26 033          -               26 033         

Impairment of intangible assets -               -                8 723            -               8 723           

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Financial assets - Investments 5 196 015    51 643          1 460 282    -               6 707 940    

Policyholder assets 2 834 074    (137 197)      -                -               2 696 877    

Total other assets 791 486       6 637            939 153        (764 489)     972 787       

Policyholder liabilities 3 920 585    -                -                -               3 920 585    

Total other liabilities 1 771 026    -                14 507          4 108           1 789 641    

Additions to non-current assets -               -                28 602          -               28 602         

Depreciation -               -                60 591          -               60 591         

Amortisation of intangible assets -               -                22 726          -               22 726         

Impairment of intangible assets -               -                8 875            -               8 875           -               -                -                

6.3 Segment information from geographical areas

6.4 Segment information per product classification

2022 2021

Individual insurance business 84.1% 83.5%

Group risk business 15.9% 16.5%

Total 100.0% 100.0%                                

The Group has no exposure to a single customer that exceeds 10% of the total customer base. A customer is defined as a

single policyholder. The customer base of Assupol Life is illustrated by the type of contracts that the company offers as a

percentage of premium.

All of the entities in the Group operates within the Republic of South Africa only.  No revenue is generated in foreign countries.

Inter-

segmental Total

Individual 

business

Group 

business

Other 

operations
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

7. NET INSURANCE PREMIUM REVENUE  
 

Gross individual premiums 3 648 774    3 359 920    -               -               

Gross group scheme and grouped individual premiums 1 065 273    993 722        -               -               

Gross inward reinsurance premiums -                5 470            

Outward reinsurance premiums paid (178 012)      (145 113)      -               -               

Total net insurance premium revenue 4 536 035    4 213 999     -               -               

8. FEE INCOME

Investment management fee charges 91 218          68 780          -               -               

Policy fee 38 632          36 141          -               -               

Management fees 52 586          32 639          -               -               

Surrender charges 5 498            6 122            -               -               

Amortisation of deferred revenue 197               281               -               -               

Total fee income 96 913          75 183           -               -               

9. INVESTMENT INCOME ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

At fair value through profit or loss 269 099        226 360        -               -               

Interest received on financial assets (note 21) 216 121        191 431        -               -               

Dividends received 52 978          34 929          -               -               

At amortised cost 167 512        157 073        1 293           2 692           

Interest received on financial assets 154 846        145 588        -               -               

Interest received on insurance and other receivables 356               500               -               -               

Loans to personnel 356               500               -               -               

Cash and cash equivalents 12 310          10 985          1 293           2 692           

Dividend received from subsidiaries -                -                186 551       232 207       

Total investment income 436 611        383 433         187 844       234 899       

10.

At fair value through profit or loss

Equity securities

Local listed shares 18 645          218 641        -               -               

Global unit trusts (11 643)        40 816          -               -               

Debt securities

Local debt securities (97 161)        107 711        -               -               

Global debt securities (3 334)          (9 916)          -               -               

Deposit and money market securities

Structured products (9 970)          10 287          -               -               

Total net fair value (losses) / gains on financial assets (103 463)      367 539         -               -               

NET FAIR VALUE (LOSSES) / GAINS ON FINANCIAL

ASSETS
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

11. OTHER INCOME

Profit on disposal of equipment 1 633            372               -               -               

Other income 812               320               -               -               

Total other income 2 445            692                -               -               

12. NET INSURANCE BENEFITS AND CLAIMS

Individual benefits 1 289 091    1 179 879    -               -               

Death and disability claims 1 028 519    1 151 217    -               -               

Accident and dread disease claims 26 960          21 305          -               -               

Maturities 356 900        200 018        -               -               

Annuities 41 890          31 797          -               -               

Surrenders 22 319          23 861          -               -               

Inward reinsurance claims 5 493            12 953          -               -               

Outward reinsurance recoveries (192 990)      (261 272)      -               -               

Group scheme and grouped individual benefits 536 884        575 227        -               -               

Total net insurance benefits and claims 1 825 975    1 755 106     -               -               

13. COMMISSION EXPENSES

Insurance contracts

Commission paid 846 624        874 862        -               -               

Investment contracts

Amortisation of intangible asset (DAC) 12 475          13 542          -               -               

Total commission expenses 859 099        888 404         -               -               
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

14. OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Office costs 396 192        372 502        1 631           730              

Employee costs 464 522        453 023        -               -               

Advertising and promotions 211 305        209 336        -               -               

Provision for impairments on receivables 20 256          20 917          -               -               

Training and development costs 10 913          8 389            -               -               

Share register and trading cost 1 666            1 043            1 666           1 043           

Strategic projects 1 054            -                1 054           -               

Other 175 697        156 724        5 472           5 942           

Total operating and administrative expenses 1 281 605    1 221 934    9 823           7 715           

Operating and administrative expenses include the following:

Depreciation on property and equipment 56 842          60 591          -               -               

Owned computer equipment 14 531          16 709          -               -               

Motor vehicles 9 541            8 987            -               -               

Office equipment 3 585            4 023            -               -               

Right-to-use assets: Property 28 543          30 230          -               -               

Right-to-use assets: Equipment 642               642               -               -               

Auditors' remuneration 7 662            6 868            1 281           728              

Audit fees - current year 2 808            2 270            -               -               

Audit fees - prior years 4 854            4 598            1 281           728              

Repairs and maintenance 17 062          16 131          -               -               

Professional services 67 424          57 379          979              798              

Actuarial services 5 896            5 720            -               -               

Legal 3 168            3 994            636              3                  

Information technology 16 153          16 757          -               -               

Professional and consulting 42 207          30 908          343              795              

Lease rentals 20 256          16 988          -               -               

Office equipment 7                   72                 -               -               

Office buildings 20 249          16 916          -               -               

Amortisation of intangible assets (excluding DAC) 13 558          9 184            -               -               

Trademark and customer relationships 5 576            5 576            -               -               

IT development cost 7 982            3 608            -               -               
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

14. OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

  (continued)

Impairment of intangible assets (note 19) 7 044            8 875            -               -               

Deferred acquisition cost (DAC) (1)
7 044            8 875            -               -               

Employee costs (2)
464 522        453 023        -               -               

Salaries and wages 377 452        354 604        -               -               

Leave pay 3 232            (735)             -               -               

Bonus 26 561          33 858          -               -               

Pension costs - defined contribution plan 39 919          36 342          -               -               

Equity-settled share-based payments:

Deferred bonus 16 462          28 418          -               -               

Other share incentives 211               536               -               -               

Cash-settled share-based payments 685               -                -               -               

Total directors' emoluments (3)
55 546          53 817          4 780           3 784           

Executive directors (including the prescribed officers) 42 568          42 124          -               -               

Non-executive directors (4)
12 978          11 693          4 780           3 784           

(2) The number of permanent salaried staff, contract and temporary workers at 30 June 2022 was 1110 (30 June 2021: 1076).

(4) The fees include deemed VAT applicable to non-resident non-executive directors.

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

15. FINANCE CHARGES

Lease liability (notes 3.4 and 30) (13 317)        (12 911)        -               -               

Subordinated debt (note 30) (25 403)        (25 401)        -               -               

SA Revenue Services (26)                -                -               -               

Total interest expense (38 746)        (38 312)        -               -               

(3) The emoluments of the executive directors and prescribed officers are included in the employee costs above. All executive directors and

prescribed officers are eligible for an annual performance bonus. Performance related bonuses are based on the financial performance and

indicators of the Group.  Refer note 37.

(1) The impairment of the deferred acquisition cost is affected when any of the underlying contracts where a deferred acquisition cost asset has

been recognised become inactive, and no further recovery of the deferred cost is possible.
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

16. INCOME TAXATION EXPENSE

Current taxation (253 855)      (181 933)      (362)             (832)             

Deferred taxation (note 33) 96 442          10 248          -               -               

Total income taxation expense - South African normal tax (157 413)      (171 685)      (362)             (832)             

Reconciliation of taxation rate

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

% % % %

Standard rate of taxation 28.00            28.00            28.00           28.00           

Adjusted for:

Non taxable income (1)
(1.45)            0.81              (29.35)         (28.65)         

Non deductible (2) 
0.62              2.47              1.55             0.98             

Capital gains not subject to taxation 0.04              0.15              -               -               

Amounts not credited to profit or loss (3)
(2.79)            1.04              -               -               

Under- / (over) provision of prior years -                0.29              -               0.04             

Change in tax rate (4.03)            -                -               -               

Effective taxation rate 20.39            32.76            0.20             0.37             

CONSOLIDATED

2022 2021

R'000 R'000

17. GROUP EARNINGS PER SHARE

Total earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders 614 800        352 680        

Total diluted earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders 614 800        352 680        

Weighted average number of shares in issue * 423 472        418 766        

Effect of restricted share plans 3 588            6 301            

Diluted average number of shares in issue 427 059        425 067        

Group earnings per share (cents):

Basic (cents) 145.2            84.2              

Diluted (cents) 144.0            83.0              

(3) This adjustment includes transactions relating to investment contracts that are not recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average

taxation rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

* The weighted average number of shares in issue in the calculation includes the weighted number of B3 (2.03 million (2021: 2.03 million)), B4 (2.09 million (2021:

2.09 million)), and B5 (0.34 million (2021: 0)) non par value shares that were not issued at year-end.  Refer note 24.

The basic earnings per share is the basic earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders divided by the weighted average number

of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The shares relating to the restricted share plans are excluded from the weighted average number of shares in issue as it was

either issued at no or little consideration or are subject to recall. It is included in the diluted average number of shares in issue as

it is considered that the conditions were satisfied at the end of reporting period assuming that the end of the current reporting

period was the end of the contingency period.

(1) Non taxable income mainly comprises dividend income which is not taxable.

(2) Non deductible expenses comprises expenses which are not attributable to the generation of income and therefor not deductible for tax

purposes.

The diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue, assuming the

conversion of all issued shares with dilutive potential.
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Consolidated

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Net book value 

at beginning of year 18 817         35 952         24 720          119 259        1 337           200 085       

Additions 855              6 981           17 715          8 173            -               33 724         

Remeasurement -               -               -                53 468          -               53 468         

Disposals (84)              (332)            (1 929)          -                -               (2 345)         

Depreciation charge (3 584)         (14 532)       (9 540)          (28 543)        (642)            (56 841)       

Net book value at end of year 16 004         28 069         30 966          152 357        695              228 091       

-               -               -                -                -               -               

At 30 June 2022   

Cost 49 802         112 939       59 373          299 631        3 204           524 949       

Accumulated depreciation (33 798)       (84 870)       (28 407)        (147 274)      (2 509)         (296 858)     

Non-current asset 16 004         28 069         30 966          152 357        695              228 091       

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Net book value 

at beginning of year 21 665         46 534         25 435          139 505        1 980           235 119       

Additions 1 269           6 555           10 795          9 983            -               28 602         

Disposals (94)              (429)            (2 522)          -                -               (3 045)         

Depreciation charge (4 023)         (16 708)       (8 988)          (30 229)        (643)            (60 591)       

Net book value at end of year 18 817         35 952         24 720          119 259        1 337           200 085       
-               -               -                -                -               -               

At 30 June 2021  

Cost 49 223         107 466       47 782          237 990        3 204           445 665       

Accumulated depreciation (30 406)       (71 514)       (23 062)        (118 731)      (1 867)         (245 580)     

Non-current asset 18 817         35 952         24 720          119 259        1 337           200 085       
-               

No item of property and equipment has been pledged as security.

Office 

equipment

Right-of-use 

asset: 

Equipment

Right-of-use 

asset: 

Property

Computer 

equipment Total

Motor 

vehicles
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Consolidated

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Net carrying amount at beginning of year 75 134         33 849          61 134          11 152         181 269       

Additions -               -                71 041          -               71 041         

New business -               13 117          -                -               13 117         

Impairment -               (7 044)          (1 679)          -               (8 723)         

Amortisation charge -               (12 475)        (7 982)          (5 576)         (26 033)       

Net carrying amount at end of year 75 134         27 447          122 514        5 576           230 671       

At 30 June 2022 -               

Cost 85 608         53 937          136 472        27 881         303 898       

Accumulated impairment / amortisation (10 474)       (26 490)        (13 958)        (22 305)       (73 227)       

Net carrying amount at end of year 75 134         27 447          122 514        5 576           230 671       

-               -                -                -               

Non-current asset 75 134         17 476          122 514        5 576           220 700       

Current asset -               9 971            -                -               9 971           

-               -                -                -               -               

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Net carrying amount at beginning of year 75 134         38 564          20 742          16 728         151 168       

Additions -               -                44 000          -               44 000         

New business -               17 702          -                -               17 702         

Impairment -               (8 875)          -                -               (8 875)         

Amortisation charge -               (13 542)        (3 608)          (5 576)         (22 726)       

Net carrying amount at end of year 75 134         33 849          61 134          11 152         181 269       

At 30 June 2021

Cost 85 608         61 260          67 110          27 881         241 859       

Accumulated impairment / amortisation (10 474)       (27 411)        (5 976)          (16 729)       (60 590)       

Net carrying amount at end of year 75 134         33 849          61 134          11 152         181 269       

Non-current asset 75 134         22 264          61 134          11 152         169 684       

Current asset -               11 585          -                -               11 585         

IT develop-

ment cost
 (3)

Total

Deferred 

acquisition 

cost (DAC)
 (2)

(2) The impairment relates to policies that have lapsed or have been cancelled during the current and prior years. As the policies are now

inactive, the Group will not receive any future fees on the policies. The net value of the impairment is R7.044 million (2021: R8.875 million).

Trademark and 

customer 

relationships
 (4)

(4) The trademark and customer relationships are an intangible asset which have been separately identified during the acquisition of Top Top

Business Consultants.  This asset has an estimated life of 5 years and is amortised over that period.

(3) IT development cost consists of a number of projects that is technically and commercially feasible for use. These projects include the

digitalisation of the sales environment and client relationship management. Once a project is completed and ready for use, it is amortised over the

project's estimated life which is measured against the pattern of benefits arising from the use thereof.

Goodwill
 (1)

(1) Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs) identified according to the business segment. The recoverable amount of a

CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations which is supported the embedded value in Assupol Life of the Cornerstone policy book.

The embedded value is equal to the adjusted net worth of Assupol Life, plus the value of the future profits from the in-force covered business,

less the cost of required capital. The risk discount rate used to determine the value of the in-force profits is 12.8% (2021: 10.9%). There are

sufficient compulsory margins to support the value of goodwill (refer to the assumptions in note 4.1).
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COMPANY

2022 2021

R'000 R'000

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Unlisted)

Balance at beginning of year 813 390       784 436       

Equity-settled share-based payments

Deferred bonus - Assupol Life 16 462         28 418         

Other share incentives - Assupol Life 211              536              

Investment in Assupol Investment Holdings 12 677         -               

Investment in Assupol Wealth (1)
-               -               

Non-current asset - unlisted equity investments  842 740       813 390       

Unlisted equity investments, valued at cost, comprise the following: 842 740       813 390       

Assupol Life 813 180       796 507       

Assupol Investment Holdings 29 560         16 883         

(1) The additional investment in Assupol Wealth was at R1.

For detail of the ownership interest in each subsidiary as well as the acquisition of additional shares in the subsidiaries, refer

notes 39.
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS
 

At fair value through profit or loss (designated)
 (3)

Equity securities - quoted and listed 2 031 500    1 564 654    -               -               

Local listed shares and equity linked notes 1 681 748    1 194 759    -               -               

Global unit trusts 349 752        369 895        -               -               

Total equity securities 2 031 500    1 564 654    -               -               

Debt securities - quoted and listed (local) (1)
2 329 921    2 171 708    -               -               

Government bonds 506 355        439 374        -               -               

Unit trusts 1 823 566    1 732 334    -               -               

Insurance policy - Global bonds (2)
61 022          50 402          -               -               

Total debt securities 2 390 943    2 222 110    -               -               

Deposits and money market securities 1 374 258    1 051 868    -               -               

Total at fair value through profit or loss (designated) (3)
5 796 701    4 838 632    -               -               

At amortised cost

Deposits and money market securities (4)
1 557 610    1 869 308    -               

Total at amortised cost (5)
1 557 610    1 869 308    -               -               

Total financial assets - investments 7 354 311    6 707 940    -               -               

Non-current asset

Debt securities - quoted and listed (local) 506 355        341 846        -               -               

Deposits and money market securities 1 264 203    1 135 053    -               -               

Current asset

Equity securities - quoted and listed 2 031 500    1 564 654    -               -               

Debt securities - quoted and listed (local) 1 884 588    1 880 264    -               -               

Deposits and money market securities 1 667 665    1 786 123    -               -               

(5) The value of the amortised assets is less than the policyholder liability at amortised cost due to the initial recognition at fair value of the

liabilities. The impact of a higher guaranteed rate offered by the company due to the utilisation of the assessed tax loss, is added to the liability at

initial recognition and this portion is amortised over time.

(2) The insurance policy was entered into to obtain global bond exposure as required for certain savings and investments products the Group

sells.  The policy relates only to the linked liabilities.

(3) Designated at fair value through profit and loss as it is managed on a fair value basis to back policyholder assets and policyholder liabilities

under investment contracts.

(4) These financial assets relate to the guaranteed single premium products. The interest rate varied between 2.71% and 9.72% (2021: 2.71%

and 10.0%)

(1) Listed debt securities in this category include floating-rate instruments and other debt securities. Bonds paid a yield that varied between

2.89% and 7.97% (2021: 2.47% and 7.49%).
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS (continued)

Analysis of movements in financial assets - investments:

Balance at beginning of year 6 707 940    5 646 691    -               -               

Additions

At fair value through profit or loss 1 471 484    836 257        -               -               

At amortised cost 341 914        149 610        -               -               

Disposals at carrying value (1)

At fair value through profit or loss (682 380)      (616 865)      -               -               

At amortised cost (805 029)      (47 176)        -               -               

Net fair value (losses) / gains (103 461)      367 539        -               -               

Interest received

At fair value through profit or loss 216 121        191 431        -               -               

At amortised cost 154 744        145 523        -               -               

Dividends received 52 978          34 930          -               -               

Balance at end of year 7 354 311    6 707 940    -               -               

(1) Prior year information was disaggregated to enhance disclosure.  It was not changed as a result of an error.

Contractual maturity profile for financial assets - investments:

Consolidated Open-ended 0 to 1 year 2 to 5 years 6 to 10 years > 10 years TOTAL

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

30 June 2022

Equity securities

Local listed shares 1 000 065    -               -                -                 -               1 000 065    

Equity linked notes 681 683       -               -                -                -               681 683       

Global unit trusts 349 752       -               -                -                -               349 752       

Debt securities

Government bonds -               -               191 350        117 902        197 103       506 355       

Unit trust 1 823 566    -               -                -                -               1 823 566    

61 022         -               -                -                -               61 022         

Fixed rate -               476 079       1 070 001    194 202        -               1 740 282    

Floating rate -               11 346         -                -                -               11 346         

Unit trust 1 180 240    -               -                -                -               1 180 240    

Total 5 096 328    487 425       1 261 351    312 104        197 103       7 354 311    

30 June 2021

Equity securities

Local listed shares 995 210       -               -                -                 -               995 210       

Equity linked notes 199 549       -               -                -                 -               199 549       

Global unit trusts 369 895       -               -                -                -               369 895       

Debt securities

Government bonds -               97 528         127 168        97 969          116 709       439 374       

Unit trust 1 732 334    -               -                -                -               1 732 334    

50 402         -               -                -                -               50 402         

Fixed rate -               863 541       1 021 230    113 823        -               1 998 594    

Floating rate -               6 336           -                -                -               6 336           

Unit trust 916 246       -               -                -                -               916 246       

Total 4 263 636    967 405       1 148 398    211 792        116 709       6 707 940    

Deposits and money

  market securities

Deposits and money

  market securities

Insurance policy

    Global bonds

Insurance policy

    Global bonds
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

22. INSURANCE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Premiums receivable 49 378          60 079          -               -               

Gross premiums outstanding 165 899        156 344        -               -               

Provision for impairment (1)
(116 521)      (96 265)        -               -               

Sundry insurance receivables 10 056          9 501            -               -               

Gross receivables outstanding (2)
17 808          96 831          -               -               

Provision for impairment (3)
(7 752)          (87 330)        -               -               

Other sundry receivables 14 001          17 893          3 300           1 824           

Reinsurance recoveries 134 094        109 902        -               -               

Loans to personnel (4)
651               7 046            -               -               

Total insurance and other receivables 208 180        204 421         3 300           1 824           

Non-current asset 12 437          16 413          -               -               

Current asset 195 743        188 008        3 300           1 824           

Interest bearing receivables 166 550        163 390        -               -               

Provisions for impairment (124 273)      (183 595)      -               -               

Non-interest bearing receivables 165 903        224 626        3 300           1 824           

Total insurance and other receivables consist of:

Insurance receivables 193 528        179 482        -               -               

Premiums receivable - insurance contracts 49 378          60 079          -               -               

Sundry insurance receivables 10 056          9 501            -               -               

Reinsurance recoveries 134 094        109 902        -               -               

Other receivables 14 652          24 939          3 300           1 824           

Other sundry receivables 14 001          17 893          3 300           1 824           

Loans to personnel 651               7 046            -               -               

Total insurance and other receivables 208 180        204 421         3 300           1 824           

(1) Movements in provision for impairment of premiums receivable:

Balance at beginning of year 96 265             75 348             -                 -                 

Recognised in profit or loss 20 256             20 917             -                 -                 

Balance at end of year 116 521           96 265             -                 -                 

(2) 

The provision for impairment of premiums receivable relates to premiums on policies on which the premium in arrears exceeds the cash

value less any outstanding policy loan balance.

The gross receivables outstanding exclude receivables that were written off to an amount of R96.9 million (2021: R62.8 million).
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

22. INSURANCE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(3)

Balance at beginning of year 87 330             58 602             -                 -                 

Recognised in profit or loss (79 578)           28 728             -                 -                 

Balance at end of year 7 752               87 330             -                 -                 

(4)

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances 439 128        384 400        35 068         39 064         

Balance at end of year (Current asset) 439 128        384 400        35 068         39 064         

24. SHARE CAPITAL (Consolidated and company)

Authorised share capital

5 700 000 000 ordinary no par value shares (2021: 5 700 000 000 ordinary shares with a par value of R0.001 each)

200 'A' preference no par value shares 

100 000 000 'B' no par value shares 

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to classes of shares

Ordinary shares

'A' preference no par value shares 

'B' no par value shares 

Movements in the provision for impairment of sundry 

insurance receivables:

The effective interest rate on all short-term bank accounts during the year was 4.27% (2021: 2.93%) for the Group. All cash balances are

available on demand.

New housing loans and vehicle finance are no longer granted to staff. The closing balance still includes outstanding balances of loans

previously granted. Loans to personnel are measured at amortised cost. Interest on housing loans is charged at 8.0% per annum. Vehicle

finance loans bear interest at the official interest rate in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 58 of 1962.

B shares were authorised without specifying associated preferences, rights, limitations or other terms. The Board of Directors

determines the associated terms before shares are issued subject to the prior written approval of the main shareholders. B

shares can be designated upon issue as B1 and so forth.

This class of shares was authorised without specifying associated preferences, rights, limitations or other terms. The Board of

Directors determines the associated terms before shares are issued.

Holders of ordinary shares have the right to participate and vote on any matter at any meeting of the shareholders. Furthermore,

shareholders have a right to receive a distribution if declared by the company, and a right to a portion of the remaining total net

assets in the case of liquidation.

The provision for impairment of sundry insurance receivables mainly relates to broker clawback debtors. The debtors are impaired based on

an assessment of the recoverability of each debtor, taking into consideration the activity level of each debtor.

During the financial year 3 827 819 B2 shares that were issued as a deferred bonus in 2018, have vested.

The company has awarded B3, B4 and B5 no par value shares to employees but is subject to the approval by the Prudential

Authority of South Africa for the issue thereof.  Also refer note 26.
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (Consolidated and company) (continued)

Issued share capital

Number of Share Share

shares capital premium Total

'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Ordinary shares

Balance at 30 June 2020 415 907        58 793          544 532       603 325       

Vesting of B1 no par value shares 5 808            35 350          -               35 350         

Adjustment of redemption of preference shares -                -                1 820           1 820           

Balance at 30 June 2021 421 715        94 143          546 352       640 495       

Vesting of B2 no par value shares 3 828            36 387          -               36 387         

Balance at 30 June 2022 425 543        130 530        546 352       676 882       

B no par value shares 

Balance at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2022 69                 417               -               417              

B1 no par value shares 

Balance at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2022 192               1 392            -               1 392           

B2 no par value shares 

Balance at 30 June 2021 4 186            39 791          -               39 791         

Vesting of shares (3 828)          (36 387)        -               (36 387)       

Balance at 30 June 2022 358               3 404            -               3 404           

Total balance at 30 June 2022 426 162        135 743        546 352       682 095       
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

25. TREASURY SHARES (other than share-based payments)

Balance at beginning of year (4 181)          (2 505)          -               -               

Shares acquired by Assupol Investment Holdings (8 928)          (1 676)          -               -               
 

Balance at end of year (13 109)        (4 181)          -               -               

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
 

A. Treasury shares
 (1)

Share incentive scheme (15)                (15)                (15)               (15)               

Balance at beginning and end of year (15)                (15)                (15)               (15)               

Deferred bonus (5 082)          (41 419)        (5 082)         (41 419)       

Balance at beginning of year (41 419)        (36 978)        (41 419)       (36 978)       

Vesting of deferred bonus shares 36 337          35 350          36 337         35 350         

Issue of shares -                (39 791)        -               (39 791)       
 

Balance at end of year - Unvested shares (5 097)          (41 434)        (5 097)         (41 434)       

B. Employee benefits reserve
 (2)

 

Share incentive scheme 31 226          31 226          31 226         31 226         

Balance at beginning and end of year 31 226          31 226          31 226         31 226         

Deferred bonus 85 853          105 728        85 853         105 728       

Balance at beginning of year 105 728        112 660        105 728       112 660       

Vesting of deferred bonus shares (36 337)        (35 350)        (36 337)       (35 350)       

Cost of deferred bonus scheme 16 462          28 418          16 462         28 418         

Other share incentives 66 908          66 697          66 908         66 697         

Balance at beginning of year 66 697          66 161          66 697         66 161         

Cost of share incentives 211               536               211              536              

Balance at end of year - Employee benefits reserve 183 987        203 651        183 987       203 651       

 
(1) The treasury shares represent the unvested ordinary shares in terms of share-based payments as described below. These shares are held

on behalf of the employees until the restrictions are lifted.

(2) The employee benefits reserve consists of the cumulative share-based payment expenses of any unvested shares and share options that are

granted to employees in the Group.
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
 

Details of the share-based transactions in the company are provided below:

i. Share incentive scheme (Equity-settled)
 

Number of Number of

shares options

issued allocated

'000 '000

Options outstanding at 30 June 2020 1 681           112              

Options exercised (112)             (112)             

Unallocated shares at 30 June 2021 1 568           -               

Unallocated shares at 30 June 2022 1 568           -               

This scheme has been closed and no more allocated shares expected.

Qualifying employees were provided with an option to subscribe to ordinary shares that were allotted to the Assupol Share

Incentive Trust. The share options were allocated based on a court-approved formula determined during demutualisation. In

terms of the trust deed the right to receive dividends and other distributions from the Group will be suspended as long as such

shares remain shares of the Assupol Share Incentive Trust.
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
 

ii. Deferred bonus scheme (Equity-settled and cash-settled)

Equity-settled share-based component

Cash-settled share-based component

Information on physical share allocations (B shares) granted

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Balance at beginning of year (27 873)        (52 275)        -               -               

Allocation for financial year -                (4 016)          -               -               

Adjustment to previous financial year allocation 1 408            -                -               -               

Recognised in profit or loss: Equity-settled 16 462          28 418          -               -               

Balance at end of year (10 003)        (27 873)        -               -               

Recognition in profit or loss

Grant date R'000 '000 R'000 R'000

14 September 2018 (1)
41 048         4 324            B2 41 048         -               

20 September 2019 (1)
22 228         2 256            B3 20 376         1 852           

17 September 2020 (1)
14 900         2 090            B4 8 692           6 208           

23 September 2021 (2)
2 608           329               B5 665              1 943           

21 September 2022 (3)
-               -                B6 -               -               

Balance at end of year 10 003         

(1) 100% of the long term incentive was issued as ordinary shares in the company. 

(2) 

(3)

(4)

50% of the long term incentive is issued as ordinary shares in the company at the date when the bonus is determined and

granted to the employee. At date of allocation the fair value of the shares is determined as the 30-day volume-weighted average

price (VWAP) of the share trades on the Cape Town Stock Exchange.  

The remaining 50% of the long term incentive component is linked to phantom shares of which the value will be tracked against

the embedded value per share. At date of allocation the fair value of the shares is determined as the published embedded value

per share.  

The right to trade with these shares is restricted until the shares vest, where a portion of the shares will vest from year 2 up to

year 5 when all of the shares have vested.

B shares are issued for these purposes and the economic benefits of these shares, including the receipt of dividends, are

restricted. A new block of shares is issued for a specific financial year, e.g. B4 shares in 2020 and B5 shares in 2021. These

shares will convert to ordinary shares after the restricted period. The employees will receive a cash bonus at the end of the

restricted period where the value of the bonus will equal the total value of dividends declared on ordinary shares of the company

during the restricted period.

The executive directors and senior management participate in an incentive scheme that consists of short term and long term

incentive components. The bonus amount is determined by the Remuneration Committee in terms of the incentive scheme rules.

The short term incentive component is settled in cash when the bonus is granted.

 Value of 

deferred 

bonus 

50% of the long term incentive was issued as ordinary shares in the company and 50% was linked to phantom shares. 

Similar to the B shares, the phantom shares will vest over a 5-year period from year 2 onwards.

The employees will receive a cash bonus at the end of the restricted period where the value of the bonus will equal the notional

value of dividends declared on ordinary shares of the company during the restricted period.

Number of B 

shares 

allocated
 (4)

The issue of the B3, B4 and B5 no par value shares is subject to the approval by the Prudential Authority of South Africa. The expense was recognised during

the financial year as per the accounting policy as no adverse response is expected from the Prudential Authority.

 Block 

name: 

B shares 

The Remuneration Committee provided participants with the option to select between a cash or deferred bonus. As the outcome of this election will only be

known after the publication of the financial statements, it was assumed that all participants will elect a cash bonus. 

Total to date

 Future 

recognition 
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
 

ii. Deferred bonus scheme (Equity-settled and cash-settled) (continued)

Information on phantom share allocations granted

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Balance at beginning of year -                -                -               -               

Allocation for financial year -                -                -               -               

Adjustment to previous financial year allocation (2 608)          -                -               -               

Recognised in profit or loss: Cash-settled 685               -                -               -               

Balance at end of year (1 923)          -                -               -               

Recognition in profit or loss

Grant date R'000 '000 R'000 R'000

23 September 2021 (1)
2 608            170               685              1 923           

21 September 2022 (2)
-                -                -               -               

Balance at end of year 1 923           

(1)

(2)

(3) The amount recognised in profit and loss includes the remeasurement of the fair value at the reporting date.

iii. Other share incentives (Equity-settled)

Information on share allocations granted
 

Grant date Vesting conditions

'000 R'000

January 2017 33% of the shares vest annually from 1 January 2020 5 years 260              1 341           

January 2019 100% of the shares vest on 1 January 2022 3 years 90                1 000           

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

27. BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT RESERVE

Balance at beginning and end of year 14 300          14 300          14 300         14 300         

 

At date of allocation the fair value of the shares was determined as the 30-day volume-weighted average price (VWAP) of the

share trades on the exchange. The officers were not entitled to pledge, cede or dispose of these shares unless they became

unrestricted. The officers became entitled to all the economic benefits and rights, including dividends, at the date of issue, with

the exception of the shares issued in January 2019.   

 Fair value 

granted 

Contractual 

life

 Number of 

shares 

On 15 October 2012 the company concluded a Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment transaction with WDB Investment

Holdings Proprietary Limited ('WDB'), the investment arm of the WDB Group. The transaction resulted in WDB acquiring a 10%

shareholding in Assupol Holdings at that date. 

The company issued shares to prescribed officers in terms of their employment- and restraint of trade agreements. These

shares vested in full during the financial year.  

The conditions attached to the shares issued in January 2019 are the same as the B-shares issued under the deferred bonus

scheme as described in note 26 ii.

 Value of 

deferred 

bonus 

Number of 

phantom 

shares

Total to

date
 (3)

 Future 

recognition 

The Remuneration Committee provided participants with the option to select between a cash or deferred bonus. As the outcome of this election will only be

known after the publication of the financial statements, it was assumed that all participants will elect a cash bonus. 

50% of the long term incentive was issued as ordinary shares in the company and 50% was linked to phantom shares. 
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

28. POLICYHOLDER (ASSETS) / LIABILITIES

UNDER INSURANCE CONTRACTS

Insurance contracts

Discounted liabilities (2 727 966)   (2 761 239)   -               -               

Balance at beginning of year (2 761 239)   (3 069 496)   -               -               

Opening modelling adjustments (57 686)        2 143            

Expected interest on insurance liabilities (249 063)      (237 683)      -               -               

Expected premiums on insurance liabilities 3 734 090    3 382 375    -               -               

Expected claims, expiries and lapses (1 434 563)   (1 166 491)   -               -               

Expected expenses, commission and charges (653 434)      (599 019)      -               -               

Expected profits (982 080)      (719 461)      -               -               

Additional unit linked returns (policyholders) (4 460)          21 159          -               -               

Experience variations 167 181        55 810          -               -               

Changes in estimates (renewal business only) 331 463        433 969        -               -               

New business added during the year (818 175)      (864 545)      -               -               

Undiscounted liabilities 160 883        164 955        -               -               

Balance at beginning of year 164 955        116 098        -               -               

Withdrawals during the year 2 076            (1 463)          -               -               

New business added during the year 9                   357               -               -               

Changes in estimates (renewal business only) 45 482          76 783          -               -               

Expected claims, expiries and lapses (51 639)        (26 820)        -               -               

Total insurance contracts (2 567 083)   (2 596 284)   -               -               

Reinsurance contracts

Discounted liabilities (66 302)        (100 593)      -               -               

Balance at beginning of year (100 593)      (22 515)        -               -               

Opening modelling adjustments (4 155)          -                -               -               

Expected amortisation on liabilities 67 948          21 419          -               -               

New business added during the year (9 804)          (2 666)          -               -               

Changes in estimates (renewal business only) (19 698)        (96 831)        -               -               

Total reinsurance contracts (66 302)        (100 593)      -               -               

Total insurance (assets) / liabilities (2 633 385)   (2 696 877)   -               -               

Reconciliation of total insurance (assets) / liabilities:

Balance at beginning of year (2 696 877)   (2 975 913)   -               -               

Recognised in statement of comprehensive income 63 492          279 036        -               -               

Balance at end of year (2 633 385)   (2 696 877)   -               -               

Non-current (asset) / liability (2 841 135)   (3 043 026)   -               -               

Current (asset) / liability 207 750        346 149        -               -               

-                

Maturity profile - Insurance contract liabilities 0 to 1 year 2 to 5 years > 5 years TOTAL

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Consolidated - 30 June 2022 207 750        197 453        (3 038 588)  (2 633 385)  

Consolidated - 30 June 2021 346 149        199 026        (3 242 052)  (2 696 877)  
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

29. POLICYHOLDER LIABILITIES

UNDER INVESTMENT CONTRACTS

Balance at beginning of year 3 920 585    3 376 877    -               -               

Premiums received 1 389 322    701 229        -               -               

Payments of death, surrender

and other terminations (1 208 056)   (404 884)      -               -               

Fees deducted from account balances (96 716)        (74 902)        -               -               

Value adjustment on liabilities 116 412        322 265        -               -               

Gross fair value adjustment to liabilities (87 804)        (29 231)        -               -               

Interest accrued to policyholders 204 216        351 496        -               -               

Balance at end of year (1)
4 121 547    3 920 585    -               -               

At fair value through profit or loss 2 524 658    1 995 293    -               -               

At amortised cost 1 596 889    1 925 292    -               -               

Balance at end of year 4 121 547    3 920 585    -               -               

Current liability 4 121 547    3 920 585    -               -               

Maturity profile - Investment contract liabilities
 (2)

0 to 1 year 2 to 5 years > 5 years TOTAL

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Consolidated - 30 June 2022 1 111 275    1 410 298    1 599 974    4 121 547    

Consolidated - 30 June 2021 987 796        1 559 935    1 372 854    3 920 585    

(2) The maturity profile is presented on an expected basis but due to the surrender option the liability is payable on demand.

(1) The value of the liability shown at amortised cost exceeds the value of the corresponding assets due to the initial recognition at fair value of

the liabilities. The impact of a higher guaranteed rate offered by the company due to the utilisation of the assessed tax loss, is added to the

liability at initial recognition and this portion is amortised over time. At the end of the financial year, the value of this impact was R75 million (2021:

R65 million).
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

30. OTHER LIABILITIES

Lease liability (1) (3)
196 258        161 976        -               -               

Balance at beginning of year 161 976        178 231        -               -               

Liability raised during the year 61 638          9 983            -               

Finance charges 13 317          12 911          -               -               

Payments made (40 673)        (39 149)        -               -               

Subordinated debt (2) (3)
250 070        250 070        -               -               

Balance at beginning of year 250 070        250 070        -               -               

Finance charges 25 403          25 401          -               -               

Payments made (25 403)        (25 401)        -               -               
-                -                

Total long-term financing obligations 446 328        412 046         -               -               

Non-current liability 305 497        384 055        -               -               

Current liability 140 832        27 991          -               -               

(1) Refer note 3.4 for detail of the estimates and interest rates used in determining the value of the liability.

(3) This note represents the net debt reconciliation.

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Accrual for leave pay 20 365          20 756          -               -               

Balance at beginning of year 20 756          24 773          -               -               

Utilised during the year (3 623)          (3 282)          -               -               

Recognised in profit or loss 3 232            (735)             -               -               

Provision for bonuses 52 932          55 648          -               -               

Balance at beginning of year 55 648          50 492          -               -               

Utilised during the year (35 959)        (34 852)        -               -               

Recognised in profit or loss

33 243          40 008          -               -               

Cash-settled share-based payment liability (note 26) 685               -                -               -               

Balance at beginning of year -                -                -               -               

Transfer to employee benefit reserve 685               -                -               -               

Total employee benefits 73 982          76 404          -               -               

Current liability 73 982          76 404          -               -               

(2) The subordinated debt agreement with Investec Bank Limited complies with the requirements for Tier 3 subordinated debt as determined in

the Prudential Standard FSI 2.3 that were issued by the Prudential Authority of South Africa. The debt is repayable 4 years after the drawdown

date.  Interest is determined per drawdown and varied at year-end between 8.01% and 10.29%.

Cash bonus (including cash bonus on deferred 

portion)
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

32. DEFERRED REVENUE LIABILITY

Balance at beginning of year 478               610               -               -               

Deferred revenue relating to new business 205               149               -               -               

Amortisation of deferred revenue (197)             (281)             -               -               

Balance at end of year 486               478                -               -               

Non-current liability 314               324               -               -               

Current liability 172               154               -               -               

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

33. DEFERRED TAXATION LIABILITY

Balance at beginning of year (798 961)      (809 208)      -               -               

Movements during year attributable to: 96 442          10 247          -               -               

Temporary differences

Deferred acquisition costs 221               533               -               -               

Other timing differences (178)             1 951            -               -               

Change in tax rate (1)
31 146          -                -               -               

Unrealised gains 22 451          (43 714)        -               -               

Capital loss carried forward (910)             362               -               -               

Elimination of negative reserves 9 147            80 998          -               -               

Special transfer credit (7 609)          (17 973)        -               -               

Adjusted IFRS phasing-in amount 12 379          12 355          -               -               

Revaluation of amortised cost liabilities (2 703)          (18 399)        -               -               

Assessed loss 32 498          (5 866)          -               -               

Balance at end of year (702 519)      (798 961)      -               -               

The deferred taxation balance consists of the following:

Temporary differences

Deferred acquisition costs (1 457)          (1 678)          -               -               

Other timing differences 12 099          12 277          -               -               

Change in tax rate (1)
31 146          -                -               -               

Unrealised gains (4 086)          (26 537)        -               -               

Capital loss carried forward -                910               -               -               

Elimination of negative reserves (842 054)      (851 201)      -               -               

Special transfer credit 4 459            12 068          -               -               

Adjusted IFRS phasing-in amount (24 685)        (37 064)        -               -               

Revaluation of amortised cost liabilities (21 102)        (18 399)        -               -               

Assessed loss 143 161        110 663        -               -               

Non-current liability (702 519)      (798 961)      -               -               

(1) It was announced that the corporate income tax rate will change from 28% to 27% for years of assessments commencing on or after 1 April

2022.  The Group has applied the adjusted rate to the calculation of the deferred taxation.

The deferred revenue liability is up-front fees received from investment policyholders as a prepayment for asset management and related

services. These amounts are non-refundable and are released to income as the services are rendered. Approximately 35% of the liability will be

recognised in the next financial year and 65% in years 2 to 5.

Deferred taxation is calculated on all temporary differences

under the liability method, using applicable taxation rates.
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

The offset amounts are: (1)

Deferred taxation assets 190 865        135 918        -               -               

Deferred taxation liabilities (893 384)      (934 879)      -               -               

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

34. INSURANCE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accounts payable 61 788          69 180          10 094         11 435         

Sundry insurance payables 97 011          96 088          -               -               

Outstanding claims and benefits payable

On insurance contracts 405 529        292 000        -               -               

On investment contracts 33 445          27 866          -               -               

Premiums received in advance 16 473          16 618          -               -               

Amounts due to subsidiaries -                -                12 544         660              

Total insurance and other payables 614 246        501 752         22 638         12 095         

Non-current liability -                -                -               -               

Current liability 614 246        501 752        22 638         12 095         

Insurance and other payables consist of:

Insurance payables 552 458        432 572        -               -               

Sundry insurance payables 97 011          96 088          -               -               

Outstanding claims and benefits payable:

- Insurance contracts 405 529        292 000        -               -               

- Investment contracts 33 445          27 866          -               -               

Premiums received in advance 16 473          16 618          -               -               

Other payables 61 788          69 180          22 638         12 095         

Accounts payable 61 788          69 180          10 094         11 435         

Amounts due to subsidiaries (1)
-                -                12 544         660              

Total insurance and other payables 614 246        501 752         22 638         12 095         
-                -                -               -               

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

35. CURRENT TAXATION

Balance at beginning of year 2 612            (9 797)          (8)                 (222)             

Recognised in profit or loss (253 809)      (181 979)      (316)             (878)             

Taxation paid during the year 228 843        194 388        309              1 092           

Total current taxation (22 354)        2 612             (15)               (8)                 

Deferred taxation assets of R143.2 million (2021: R110.7 million) have been recognised by the Group. This amount is only a portion of the total

assessed loss available for utilisation. The deferred taxation asset that has been raised is in respect of taxation losses which is expected to be

utilised in the foreseeable future related to Assupol Life's individual policyholder fund (IPF) as a result of guaranteed single premium business and

other linked endowments.  R40.3 million is expected to be utilised in the next financial year.  Refer note 3.3.

(1) The short term loan due to Assupol Life amounts to R12.5 million (2021: R0.7 million) and is unsecured. It is repayable on demand and bears

no interest.

(1) Deferred income taxation assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current taxation assets against

current taxation liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.
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CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

36. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
 

Profit before taxation 772 028        524 013        178 021       227 184       

Movement in policyholder assets / liabilities: 264 454        822 744        -               -               

Insurance contracts (note 28) 63 492          279 036        -               -               

Investment contracts (note 29) 200 962        543 708        -               -               

Items disclosed separately: (268 468)      (224 888)      (187 890)     (234 853)     

Interest received (note 9) (228 787)      (202 916)      (1 293)         (2 692)         

Dividends received (note 9) (52 978)        (34 929)        (186 551)     (232 207)     

Finance charges (note 15) 13 343          12 911          -               -               

(46)                46                 (46)               46                

Non-cash items: 67 233          (381 618)      -               3 588           

Interest on financial assets at amortised cost (note 9) (154 846)      (145 588)      -               -               

Net fair value gains on financial assets (note 10) 103 463        (367 539)      -               -               

Depreciation of property and equipment (note 14) 56 841          60 591          -               -               

(Profit) / loss on sale of equipment (note 11) (1 633)          (372)             -               -               

(13 117)        (17 702)        -               -               

Amortisation of intangible assets (note 19) 26 033          22 726          -               -               

Impairment of intangible assets (note 19) 8 723            8 875            -               -               

Adjustment of redemption of preference shares -                3 588            -               3 588           

Amortisation of deferred revenue liability (note 32) (197)             (281)             -               -               

Equity-settled share-based payments (note 14) 16 673          28 954          -               -               

Accrued interest 25 088          24 981          -               -               

Fee income deferred on new business (note 32) 205               149               -               -               

Changes in working capital: 106 625        80 160          9 067           25 088         

Insurance and other trade receivables (note 22) (3 446)          (62 630)        (1 476)         39 717         

Employee benefits (note 31 ) (2 422)          1 139            -               -               

Insurance and other payables (note 34) 112 493        141 651        10 543         (14 629)       

Cash generated from operations 941 872        820 411        (802)             21 007         

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated 

from operations:

SARS penalty paid and refunded

Deferred acquisition cost on new business (note 19)
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A. Related parties defined

B. Key management

CONSOLIDATED

2022 2021

R'000 R'000

i. Loans to key management (included in note 22)

Balance at end of year -               5 984           

Balance at beginning of year 5 984           6 100           

Loan repayments received (6 299)         (536)            

Interest charged 315              420              

CONSOLIDATED

2022 2021
Restated

R'000 R'000

ii. Aggregate details of contracts between the Group and key management

Insurance contracts

Aggregate insured cover 8 662           8 445           

Premiums received 167              149              

Surrender value 123              -               

Investment contracts 28 442         21 691         

Fund value at beginning of year 21 691         20 436         

Premiums received 5 000           -               

Resignations (104)            (367)            

Investment returns credited net of charges 1 855           1 622           

Surrender value 27 232         20 632         

All subsidiaries in the Assupol Group, their key management (including immediate family members as defined in IAS 24), as well

as entities that have a significant influence over the Group, are deemed related parties.

The amounts reported in the previous financial year were restated to include contracts with directors that were not included. This pertains to

directors of dormant subsidiaries in the Group.

Assupol Life granted a loan to an executive director for the purchase of shares in Assupol Holdings. This was approved as required by the

Companies Act, 71 of 2008, and the Long Term Insurance Act, 52 of 1998.  The loan was fully repaid during the financial year.

The directors of the companies in the Group declared that they did not have any material interest in any contract signed by the

Group during the year.

No salaries for key management of the subsidiaries are paid by the holding company. Assupol Life pays the salaries of key

management of Assupol Holdings. Key management is defined as executive and non-executive directors as well as prescribed

officers of any subsidiary in the Group.

Information pertaining to the remuneration, directors' fees and securities held by directors and prescribed officers are disclosed

below.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

iii. Executive directors’ and prescribed officers' remuneration

R'000

30 June 2022

Fixed

Salary 4 543         3 441         6 399         3 084         2 673         2 631         2 888         2 878         28 537       

Other benefits 51              35              64              33              26              20              21              21              271            

Pension fund contributions 505            387            639            349            306            298            327            326            3 137         

Variable

Cash bonus (2)
-             463            882            472            -             275            347            332            2 771         

Restricted incentives (3)

Deferred bonus 622            1 529         1 549         842            1 113         545            793            648            7 641         

Other share incentives -             -             -             -             -             -             45              166            211            

Total 5 721         5 855         9 533         4 780         4 118         3 769         4 421         4 371         42 568       

Accrued and settled 5 099         4 326         7 984         3 938         3 005         3 224         3 583         3 557         34 716       

Restricted incentives (2)
622            1 529         1 549         842            1 113         545            838            814            7 852         

(1) Mr CJ van Dyk resigned on 8 November 2021.

A list of the directors and the prescribed officers is disclosed in the Directors’ report. All directors and prescribed officers declared that they did not have any material interest in any contract signed by

the Assupol Group during the year.

The Group provides cash as well as non-cash benefits to executive directors, prescribed officers and employees. Bonuses for executive directors, the prescribed officers and senior management are

awarded based on an agreed bonus structure as determined by the Group Remuneration Committee and consist of a cash and deferred component. Furthermore, shares linked to employment- and

restraint of trade agreements have been issued to prescribed officers.  Refer note 26 to the financial statements for more detail on the restrictions and vesting periods that apply to the share schemes.

(3) Restricted incentives are allocations of shares under the conditions of the deferred bonus structure and other share agreements as described in note 26. The amounts disclosed in the table above are the value of the

expense recognised in profit or loss and do not represent an amount paid to the individual.

CJ 

van Dyk (1)
D

de Klerk

SL

Ndwalaza

EZ 

Mngoma

MP

Salmon Total

MS

Keetse

MB Mokwena-

Halala

EN 

Nelwamondo

(2) The Remuneration Committee provided participants with the option to elect between a cash or deferred bonus for the bonus awarded in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2022. All of the executive directors

and public officers elected a cash bonus.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

iii. Executive directors’ and prescribed officers' remuneration (continued)

R'000

30 June 2021

Fixed

Salary 4 298         2 976         3 658         2 894         2 508         2 469         2 710         2 701         24 214       

Other benefits 51              30              47              30              26              17              18              19              238            

Pension fund contributions 490            340            418            330            286            281            309            308            2 762         

Variable

Cash bonus -             -             -             -             249            246            270            269            1 034         

Restricted incentives (1)

Deferred bonus 2 505         2 694         2 914         1 575         1 765         225            1 347         373            13 398       

Other share incentives -             -             -             -             -             -             145            333            478            

Total 7 344         6 040         7 037         4 829         4 834         3 238         4 799         4 003         42 124       

Accrued and settled 4 839         3 346         4 123         3 254         3 069         3 013         3 307         3 297         28 248       

Restricted incentives (1)
2 505         2 694         2 914         1 575         1 765         225            1 492         706            13 876       

(1) Restricted incentives are allocations of shares under the conditions of the deferred bonus structure and other share agreements as described in note 26. The amounts disclosed in the table above are the value of the

expense recognised in profit or loss and do not represent an amount paid to the individual.

EN 

Nelwamondo Total

SL

Ndwalaza

EZ 

Mngoma

MP

Salmon

CJ 

van Dyk

D

de Klerk

MB Mokwena-

Halala

MS

Keetse
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

iv. Summary of restricted incentives

Units ('000)

Deferred bonus structure 4 142               142                  (2 412)            1 872              

D de Klerk 788                  -                  (411)               377                

MS Keetse 126                  60                    -                 186                

MB Mokwena-Halala 859                  -                  (474)               385                

EZ Mngoma 558                  16                    (291)               283                

SL Ndwalaza 490                  -                  (269)               221                

EN Nelwamondo 167                  49                    -                 216                

M Salmon 440                  17                    (253)               204                

CJ van Dyk 714                  -                  (714)               -                 

Other share incentives 177                  -                   (177)               -                  

MP Salmon 87                    -                  (87)                 -                 

EN Nelwamondo 90                    -                  (90)                 -                 

v. Non-executive directors' fees

Board Committee

R'000 fees fees

30 June 2022 8 541            4 286           12 827         

RJ Khoza (Chairman) 3 536            -               3 536           

EDJ Ashkar 671               528              1 199           

GR Burger 575               190              765              

SIM Braudo 760               1 070           1 830           

MD Collier (1)
661               723              1 384           

NB Duker 585               879              1 464           

NE Gubb 642               258              900              

SRL Mbili 533               144              677              

LJ Sennelo 578               494              1 072           
-                

30 June 2021 6 877            4 500           11 377         

RJ Khoza (Chairman) 3 352            -               3 352           

EDJ Ashkar 611               1 069           1 680           

GR Burger 517               280              797              

SIM Braudo (1)
558               1 515           2 073           

MD Collier (1)
504               490              994              

NB Duker 531               661              1 192           

NE Gubb 610               393              1 003           

LJ Sennelo 194               92                286              -                

(1) The fees exclude deemed VAT applicable to non-resident non-executive directors, amounting to R207 510 (2021: R315 956).

Balance 

restricted at 

beginning of 

year

Allocated 

during the year

Unrestricted 

during the 

year

Balance 

restricted at 

end of 

year

Total fees for 

the year
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

vi. Securities held by directors and prescribed officers 
(1)

Units ('000)

D de Klerk 5 765            573              6 338           

MB Mokwena-Halala 2 555            1                  2 556           

SL Ndwalaza 8 625            -               8 625           

EZ Mngoma 1 071            -               1 071           

MP Salmon 2 311            393              2 703           

(1) The units exclude any securities that are linked to restricted incentives. 

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

C. Balances with related parties

Total amounts due to subsidiaries as listed in note 34

Operational account with Assupol Life -                -                (12 544)       (660)             

Balance at beginning of year -                -                (660)             (13 421)       

Repayments -                -                -               19 458         

Transactions funded during the year -                -                (11 884)       (6 697)         

Shareholding in Assupol Holdings (note 25)

Assupol Investment Holdings 13 109          4 181            -               -               

Total amounts due to other related parties

Investec Bank Limited (note 30) 250 070        250 070        -               -               

38. COMMITMENTS

Lease commitments

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Property

• Due in 1 year or less 14 180          27 287          -               -               

• Due between 1 and 2 years 10 372          26 938          -               -               

• Due between 2 and 3 years 8 728            25 071          -               -               

• Due between 3 and 4 years 10 237          26 114          -               -               

• Due between 4 and 5 years 13 593          29 689          -               -               

• Due after 5 years 138 291        25 316          -               -               

Total 195 401        160 415        -               -               

Equipment

• Due in 1 year or less 789               704               -               -               

• Due between 1 and 2 years 68                 789               

• Due between 2 and 3 years -                68                 -               -               

Total 857               1 561            -               -               

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases are set out in the table below.  

 Direct 

beneficial 

 Indirect 

beneficial Total

The Group leases property and equipment under non-cancellable lease agreements. The leases have varying terms, escalation

clauses and renewal rights.  The lease expenditure is recognised in profit or loss (refer note 14).
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39. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Effective holdings Interest of holding company

Subsidiary name 2022 2021 2022 2021

R'000 % % R'000 R'000

Subsidiaries of Assupol Holdings

Assupol Life (1)
490 019       100% 100% 813 180       796 507       

Assupol Investment Holdings (2)
70 431         100% 100% 29 560         16 883         

Subsidiaries of Assupol Investment Holdings

Assupol Wealth (3)
-               100% 51% -               -               

Cornerstone Brokers Corporate (4)
9 273           100% 100% 475              587              

1                  100% 100% -               125              

1 000           100% 100% 1 943           2 049           

Other consolidated entities

Assupol Share Incentive Trust (5)
Trust -                -                -               -               

Nature of business

(1) A registered long term insurer in terms of the Insurance Act, 18 of 2017.

(2) An investment holding company that holds the investments in all of the non-life subsidiaries of the Group.

(3)

(4)

(5)

40. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Dividend declaration

Subordinated debt

Subsequent to the year-end Assupol Life has received approval from the Prudential Authority to raise debt to an amount of R350

million through a debt medium term note programme. The Board approved this subordinated debt prior to the year end. It is

expected that the process will be completed by the end of September 2022.

A registered financial services provider in terms of the Insurance Act, 18 of 2017. The Group acquired an additional 49% of the issued share

capital.  The total consideration paid was R1.

The dividends have been declared from retained earnings. A dividend withholding taxation of 20% will be applicable to all

shareholders who are not exempt.

Issued share 

capital

The subsidiaries are unlisted and incorporated in South Africa. Transactions between subsidiaries are listed in note 37 to the annual financial

statements.

Siebador Sewentien (4)

The company has no operations.  It is management's intention to deregister the company.

Top Top Business Consultants (4)

The qualifying shares at the date that these financial statements were approved included the listed ordinary shares but excluding

shares held by the Share Incentive Trust. It will also include those 'B' shares that qualify to be converted to ordinary shares after

the restricted period ends in September 2022 and that are unrestricted at record date (note 26).

The trust manages the ordinary shares that were allotted to the trust and related share options that were allocated to qualifying employees in

terms of the demutualisation scheme  - refer notes 5.4.1.b and 26 (i.)

The Board of Directors approved an ordinary dividend of 64 cents and special dividend of 42 cents per qualifying ordinary share

for the year ended 30 June 2022 of which the declaration date will be 28 September 2022. The dividend is payable on 17

October 2022 to qualifying shareholders registered on 14 October 2022.


